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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
ACRONYMS: 
 

Acronym 
 

Chapter 

IFRIC Interpretation of International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee C.5.1 

FVPL Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Statement of Cash flows 

CDS Credit default swap C.1.5 

IRS Interest rate swap C.1.5 

CCS Cross currency swap C.1.5 

   

CDO Credit default option C.1.5 

ABS Asset backed securities C.1.5 

MTPL Motor Third Party Liability C. 2.2 

QS Quota-share reinsurance E.7.2 

X/L Excess of Loss reinsurance E.7.2 

DPF Discretionary participation features C.1.13.2 

   

PVFP Present value of future profit C.1.1.2 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

Amounts as at 31 December 
 

(CZK million) Note 2010 2009 

1 Intangible assets F.1 2,886 2,835 

1.1 Goodwill F.1.1 1,273 1,323 

1.2 Other intangible assets F.1.2 1,613 1,512 

2 Tangible Assets F.2 432 449 

2.1 Land and buildings (own use) F.2.1 117 115 

2.2 Other tangible assets F.2.2 315 334 

3 Investments F.3 155,647 153,120 

3.1 Investment properties F.3.1 1,889 85 

3.2 Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies F.3.2 6 9 

3.3 Held-to-maturity investments F.3.3  - 87 

3.4 Loans and receivables F.3.4 13,173 21,651 

3.5 Available-for-sale financial assets F.3.5 103,507 95,211 

3.6 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss F.3.6 37,072 36,077 

     of which financial assets relating to unit-linked policies F.3.6 7,205 3,450 

4 Reinsurance assets F.4 10,276 9,265 

5 Receivables F.5 11,831 8,934 

5.1 Receivables arising out of direct insurance operations F.5 2,931 3,707 

5.2 Receivables arising out of reinsurance operations F.5 1,946 3,008 

5.3 Trade and other receivables F.5 6,918 2,154 

5.4 Current income tax receivables F.5 36 65 

6 Other assets F.6 1,344 1,141 

6.1 Deferred acquisition costs F.6.1 801 791 

6.2 Deferred tax assets F.6 178 112 

6.3 Other assets F.6 365 238 

7 Cash and cash equivalents F.7 751 540 

    183,167 176,284 

8 Assets held-for-sale F.8  - 3,878 

Total assets F 183,167 180,162 

    1 ShareholderΩs equity F.9 24,253 23,140 

1.1 ShareholderΩs equity attributable to the Group F.9 24,186 23,120 

1.1.1 Share capital F.9 4,000 4,000 

1.1.2 Capital and revenue reserves F.9 20,186 19,120 

1.2 ShareholderΩs equity attributable to non-controlling interest F.9 67 20 

2 Other provisions F.10 1,875 2,056 

3 Insurance provisions F.11 91,124 89,449 

4 Financial liabilities F.12 56,663 51,219 

4.1 Financial liabilities through profit or loss F.12 676 1,461 

4.2 Other financial liabilities F.12 55,987 49,758 

5 Payables F.13 7,242 10,040 

5.1 Payables arising out of direct insurance operations F.13 1,985 2,130 

5.2 Payables arising out of reinsurance operations F.13 3,884 4,934 

5.3 Current income tax payables F.13 27 1,587 

5.4 Other payables F.13 1,346 1,389 

6 Other liabilities F.14 2,010 2,068 

6.1 Deferred tax liabilities F.14 125 77 

6.2 Other liabilities F.14 1,885 1,991 

    183,167 177,972 

8 Liabilities associated with assets held-for-sale F.8  - 2,190 

Total shareholderΩs equity and liabilities F 183,167 180,162 
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 

Amounts for the year ended 31 December 
 

(CZK million) Note 2010 2009 

1.1 Net earned premiums revenue F.15 26,828 27,801 

1.1.1 Gross earned premiums F.15 37,664 39,100 

1.1.2 Earned premiums ceded F.15  (10,836)  (11,299) 

1.2 Fee and commission income and income from financial service activities 
 

217 99 

1.3 Net income from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss F.16 2,673 4,381 

     of which net income from financial investments relating to unit-linked policies F.16 45 71 

1.4 Share of results of associates accounted for using the equity method 
 

 - 118 

1.5 Net gains/ (losses) related to disposal of subsidiaries and associates F.17  -  (599) 

1.6 Income from other financial instruments and investment properties F.18 7,116 6,133 

1.6.1 Interest income F.18 4,003 3,907 

1.6.2 Other income F.18 269 132 

1.6.3 Realised gains F.18 2,844 2,094 

1.7 Other income F.19 491 533 

1 Total income   37,325 38,466 

2.1 Net insurance benefits and claims F.20  (19,858)  (18,810) 

2.1.1 Claims paid and change in insurance provisions F.20  (26,315)  (24,273) 

2.1.2 Reinsurers' share F.20 6,457 5,463 

2.2 Fee and commission expenses and expenses from financial services activities F.21  (440)  (513) 

2.3 Expenses from other financial instruments and investment properties F.22  (1,647)  (1,547) 

2.3.1 Interest expense F.22  (1,046)  (578) 

2.3.2 Other expense F.22  (51)  (9) 

2.3.3 Realised losses F.22  (409)  (362) 

2.3.4 Impairment losses F.22  (141)  (598) 

2.4 Acquisition and administration costs F.23  (6,749)  (6,836) 

2.4.1 Commissions and other acquisition costs F.23  (3,512)  (3,478) 

2.4.2 Investment management expenses F.23  (299)  (269) 

2.4.3 Other administration costs F.23  (2,938)  (3,089) 

2.5 Other expenses F.24  (1,305)  (1,337) 

2 Total Expenses    (29,999)  (29,043) 

Change in net assets attributable to unitholders     (97)  (150) 

EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES   7,229 9,273 

Income taxes F.25  (1,154)  (1,384) 

Profit from discontinued operations after tax F.8 3,829 941 

NET PROFIT OF THE YEAR   9,904 8,830 

Result of the period attributable to the equityholder of the parent   9,893 8,827 

Result of the period attributable to non-controlling interest   11 3 

 

Earnings per share for net profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent during the 
year (expressed in CZK thousands per share): 

(CZK thousand) 2010 2009 

- From continuing operations (basic, diluted) 152 197 

- From discontinued operations (basic, diluted) 96 24 

Total 248 221 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

For the year ended 31 December 
 

(CZK million) Note 2010 2009 

Net profit of the year 
 

9,904 8,830 

Other comprehensive income 
 

    

Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation in equity F.9 2,384 5,124 

Available-for-sale financial asset revaluation realised in income statement F.18, F.22 (2,405) (1,726) 

Available-for-sale impairment losses F.18, F.22 63 152 

Available-for-sale share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of associates F.9 - 61 

Currency translation differences 
 

(71) (106) 

Changes in cash-flow hedge reserve F.9 18 0 

Reclassification of other comprehensive income from disposal of subsidiaries   83 (297) 

Total gains and losses recognised directly in equity   72 3,208 

Tax on items taken directly to or transferred into equity  F.9 (54) (630) 

Other Comprehensive income, net of tax   18 2,578 

        

Total comprehensive income   9,922 11,408 

        

Attributable to:       

 - equity holders of Parent Company   9,912 11,400 

 - non-controlling interest   10 8 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

For the year ended 31 December 
 

(CZK million) Note 
Share 
capital 

Revaluation 
- financial 
assets AFS 

Revaluation 
ς Land and 
buildings 

Statutory 
reserve 

fund 
Translation 

reserve 

Cash flow 
hedge 
reserve 

Equalisation 
reserve 
fund1 

Other 
retained 
earnings 

Attributable to 
equity holders 

of parent 
company 

Attributable 
to non-

controlling 
interest Total 

Balance as at 1 January 2009   4,000 (1,317) 4 1,051 (59)  - 3,001 10,913 17,593 12 17,605 

Net profit for the year                 8,827 8,827 3 8,830 

Available-for-sale financial assets 
revaluation in equity     5,124             5,124   5,124 

Available-for-sale financial asset 
realised revaluation in income 
statement     (1,726)             (1,726)   (1,726) 

Available-for-sale impairment 
losses     152             152   152 

Available-for-sale share of other 
comprehensive income/(loss) of 
associates     61             61   61 

Currency translation differences           (103)       (103) (3) (106) 

Changes in cash-flow hedge 
reserve                    -    - 

Reclassification of other 
comprehensive income from 
disposal of subsidiaries     (111)     (129)     (65) (305) 8 (297) 

Tax on items of other 
comprehensive income  F.9   (630)             (630)   (630) 

Total comprehensive income    - 2,870  -  - (232)  -  - 8,762 11,400 8 11,408 

Changes in catastrophe and 
equalisation reserve               (1,705) 1,705 -   - 

Dividends to shareholders   F.9.1               (5,873) (5,873)   (5,873) 

Balance as at 31 December 2009   4,000 1,553 4 1,051 (291)  - 1,296 15,507 23,120 20 23,140 

 
1 Equalisation reserve is required under local insurance legislation and is classified as a separate part of equity within these accounts as it does not meet the definition of a liability under IFRS. It is not available for 
distribution. Change in equalisation reserve is captured as a transfer between distributable retained earnings and non-distributable equalisation reserve fund in equity. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  (continued)  

For the year ended 31 December 
 

(CZK million) Note 
Share 
capital 

Revaluation 
- financial 
assets AFS 

Revaluation 
ς Land and 
buildings 

Statutory 
reserve 

fund 
Translation 

reserve 

Cash flow 
hedge 
reserve 

Equalisation 
reserve 
fund1 

Other 
retained 
earnings 

Attributable to 
equity holders 

of parent 
company 

Attributable 
to non-

controlling 
interest Total 

Balance as at 1 January 2010   4,000 1,553 4 1,051 (291)  - 1,296 15,507 23,120 20 23,140 

Net profit for the year                 9,893 9,893 11 9,904 

Available-for-sale financial assets 
revaluation in equity     2,384             2,384   2,384 

Available-for-sale financial asset 
realised revaluation in income 
statement     (2,405)             (2,405)   (2,405) 

Available-for-sale impairment 
losses     63             63   63 

Available-for-sale share of other 
comprehensive income/(loss) of 
associates      -              -    - 

Currency translation differences           (70)       (70) (1) (71) 

Changes in cash-flow hedge 
reserve             18     18   18 

Reclassification of other 
comprehensive income from 
disposal of subsidiaries     (126)     209       83   83 

Tax on items of other 
comprehensive income  F.9   (54)             (54)   (54) 

Total comprehensive income    - (138)  -  - 139 18  - 9,893 9,912 10 9,922 

Changes in ownership interests in 
subsidiaries that do not result in a 
loss of control                 (48) (48) 37 (11) 

Changes in catastrophe and 
equalisation reserve               (719) 719  -    - 

Transfers to and use of funds         30       (30)  -    - 

Dividends to shareholders   F.9.1               (8,798) (8,798)   (8,798) 

Balance as at 31 December 2010   4,000 1,415 4 1,081 (152) 18 577 17,243 24,186 67 24,253 

 
1 Equalisation reserve is required under local insurance legislation and is classified as a separate part of equity within these accounts as it does not meet the definition of a liability under IFRS. It is not available for 
distribution. Change in equalisation reserve is captured as a transfer between distributable retained earnings and non-distributable equalisation reserve fund in equity. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (indirect method)  

For the year ended 31 December 
 
(CZK million) Note 2010 2009 

Earnings before taxes   7,229 9,273 

Adjustments for:     
 Depreciation and amortisation F.24 639 671 

Amortisation of PVFP and impairment losses on goodwill  F.24 11 11 

Impairment and reversal of impairment of current and non-current assets F.22 141 598 

Loss on disposal of PPE, intangible assets and investment property   (1) (16) 

Gains from revaluation of financial assets and investment property 
F.3, F.16, 
F.18, F.22 (4,049) (4,656) 

Gains/losses on disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (excluding discontinued 
operations)   - 639 

Dividends received   - (39) 

Interest expense F.22 1,046 578 

Interest income F.18 (4,003) (3,907) 

Interest income/expense from financial instruments at FVPL  
 

(1,040) 122 

Income/expense not involving movements of cash   - (394) 

Purchase of financial assets at FVPL held-for-trading   (5,014) (864) 

Proceeds from financial assets at FVPL held-for-trading   6,522 6,665 

Change in loans and receivables   7,002 (5,160) 

Change in receivables 
 

(2,646) 2,381 

Change in reinsurance assets 
 

(1,011) (700) 

Change in other assets, prepayments and accrued income   (114) 200 

Change in payables 
 

(1,278) 481 

Change in financial liabilities for investment contract with DPF   4,782 4,493 

Change in financial liabilities at FVPL held-for-trading   (785) (418) 

Change in liabilities   66 (2,039) 

Change in insurance liabilities   1,675 (3,693) 

Change in other liabilities, accruals and deferred income   (120) 161 

Change in other provisions 
 

(181) (270) 

Cash flows arising from taxes on income   (2,732) 949 

Cash flow from operating activities from discontinued operations F.8 1,186 648 

Net cash flow from operating activities   12,617 5,714 

        

Cash flow from investing activities       

Interest received   5,539 9,808 

Dividends received   - 467 

Purchase of tangible assets and intangible assets   (773) (803) 

Purchase of financial assets at FVPL not held-for-trading   (6,724) (8,175) 

Purchase of financial assets available-for-sale   (60,448) (62,303) 

Purchase of investment property   (419) - 

Net cashflow from acquisition and first consolidation of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures  B.1 37 - 

Provided hans   - (1,500) 

Proceeds from disposals of tangible and intangible assets   3 6 

Proceeds from financial assets at FVPL not held-for-trading   5,998 21,644 

Proceeds from financial assets available-for-sale   52,038 39,311 

Proceeds from sale of investment property   - 286 

Proceeds from disposal and other proceeds from subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,  
net of cash disposed   (685) 2,665 

Paid hans F.3.4 1,500 - 

Cash flow from investing activities from discontinued operations F.8 80 (3) 

Net cash flow from investing activities   (3,854) 1,403 

        

Cash flow from financing activities       

Drawing of hans   - 2,000 

Repayment of hans   - (3,300) 

Interest paid   (12) (56) 

Dividends paid to shareholders   (8,798) (5,873) 

Cash flow from financing activities from discontinued operations F.8 - (428) 

Net cash flow from financing activities   (8,810) (7,657) 

        

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents   (47) (540) 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January F.7 798 1,336 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents   - 2 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December F.7 751 798 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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A. General Information 

A.1 Description of the Group  

Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. (òĻesk§ pojiġŠovnaò or ñĻPò or ñthe Parent Companyò or the 
ñCompanyò) is a composite insurer offering a wide range of life and non-life insurance 
products and is domiciled in the Czech Republic. The Company was incorporated on 1 May 
1992, as a joint stock company and is the successor to the former state-owned insurance 
company Ļesk§ st§tn² pojiġŠovna.  

The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company for the year ended 
31 December 2010 comprise the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to 
as ñthe Groupò). 

See Section B of these financial statements for a listing of significant Group entities and 
changes to the Group in 2009 and 2010. 

Structure of Shareholders: 

CZI Holdings N.V., domiciled in the Netherlands, is the sole shareholder of the Company in 
2010. From 2008, CZI Holdings is an integral part of Generali PPF Holding B.V. (GPH), a 
company owned by Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A. (ñGeneraliò, 51%) and PPF Group N.V. 
(49%). PPF Group N.V. was the ultimate parent of the Company until 17 January 2008. 

Generali is the Companyôs ultimate parent company. Generaliôs financial statements are 
publicly available on www.generali.com. 

Registered Office of Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna: 

Sp§len§ 75/16 
113 04 Prague 1 
Czech Republic 

ID number: 45 27 29 56 

The Board of Directors authorised the financial statements for issue on 26 April 2011. 

A.2 Statutory bodies  

The Board of Directors as at the end of the reporting period: 

Chairman:   Ladislav Barton²ļek, Prague 
Vice Chairman:  Pavel řeh§k, Prague 
Vice Chairman: Marcel Dostal, Prague 

During the year 2010, there were the following changes to the Board of Directors. Vice 
Chairman Ivan Vodiļka resigned from his post on 31 May 2010 and Ġtefan Tillinger, member 
of the Board of Directors, resigned on 31 August 2010. Pavel řeh§k joined the Board and 
became a Vice Chairman on 1 July 2010. Subsequent to the year end and before the 
issuance of the financial statements, Milan Beneġ has been appointed a new board member. 

At least two members of the Board of Directors, of whom one must be the Chairman or the 
Vice-Chairman, must act together in the name of the Company in relation to third parties, 
courts and other bodies. When signing on behalf of the Company, the signatures and 
positions of at least two members of the Board of Directors, one of which must be the 
Chairman or the Vice-Chairman, must be appended to the designated business name of the 
Company. 

The Supervisory Board as at the end of the reporting period: 

Chairman:   Milan MadŊryļ, Zl²n 
Members:  Lorenzo Kravina, Trieste 

Marek Orawski resigned from his post in the Supervisory Board in September 2010. A new 
member will be elected by employees just after all the candidates have been approved by 
the Czech National Bank, a supervisory body.  
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A.3 Statement of compliance  

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union.  

The management has reviewed those standards and interpretations adopted by the EU as at 
the date of issuance of the financial statements but which were not effective as at that date. 
An assessment of the expected impact of these standards and interpretations on the Group 
is shown in Note C.5. 

A.4 Basis o f preparation  

Local accounting legislation requires that the Group prepare these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS (as adopted by EU). The Parent Company also 
prepares separate financial statements for the same period in accordance with IFRS. 

The financial statements are presented in Czech koruna (ñCZKò) which is the Companyôs 
functional currency.  

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the 
following assets and liabilities which are stated at their fair value: derivative financial 
instruments, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, financial instruments 
classified as available-for-sale and investment properties.  

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires that 
management make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form 
the basis of making the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
cannot readily be determined from other sources. The actual values may differ from these 
estimates.  

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision only affects that period or in both the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both the current and future periods. 
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B. General criteria for drawing up the consolidated financial 

statements  

B.1 Group entities  

The consolidated financial statements are made up of data of the Parent Company and of its 
directly or indirectly controlled subsidiaries. Based on the IAS 27 definition of control, all 
companies satisfying the requisites of effective control are included in the consolidation. 

The Group consolidates all material subsidiaries and measures investments in all material 
associated companies using the equity method. Immaterial subsidiaries and associated 
companies are summarised in table F.3.2. The Group structure and the changes as 
compared to the previous year are presented below. 

For the year ended 31 December 2010 

Company Country 

Proportion of 
ownership 

interest 

Proportion 
of voting 

rights 

Generali Foreign Insurance Company Inc. Belarus 67.5 67.5 

мΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ŦƻƴŘ ƪǾŀƭƛŦƛƪƻǾŀƴȇŎƘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊǻϝ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

пΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 82.8 82.8 

рΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 89.2 89.2 

сΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 91.8 91.8 

фΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ŦƻƴŘ ƪǾŀƭƛŦƛƪƻǾŀƴȇŎƘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊǻϝ Czech Republic 91.0 91.0 

City Empiria a.s.**  Czech Republic 92.6 92.6 

2Ŝǎƪł ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴŀ ½5w!±N ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

2t 5Lw9/¢Σ ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

2t Lb±9{¢ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƛőƴƝ ǎǇƻƭŜőƴƻǎǘΣ ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

2t Lb±9{¢ wŜŀƭƛǘƴƝ ¦ȊŀǾǌŜƴȇ LƴǾŜǎǘƛőƴƝ CƻƴŘΣ ŀΦǎΦϝ Czech Republic 92.6 92.6 

5ȅƴŀƳƛŎƪȇ ŦƻƴŘ ŦƻƴŘǻ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL* Czech Republic 92.9 92.9 

Generali PPF Services, a.s. όtǊǾƴƝ /ŀƭƭƛƴ ŀƎŜƴǘǳǊŀ ŀΦǎΦύ Czech Republic 80.0 80.0 

LLΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 85.3 85.3 

LLLΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 92.2 92.2 

YƻƳƻŘƛǘƴƝ ȊŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 83.6 83.6 

bŀŘŀŎŜ 2ŜǎƪŞ ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴȅ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

bŀŘŀőƴƝ ŦƻƴŘ YŀǊƭǻǾ Ƴƻǎǘ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

tŀƴƪǊłŎ {ŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ǎΦǊΦƻΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

tŜƴȊƛƧƴƝ ŦƻƴŘ 2ŜǎƪŞ ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴȅΣ ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

tCh 2tL ς мΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ htC Czech Republic 78.2 78.2 

tCh 2tL ς CƻƴŘ ƴŜƳƻǾƛǘƻǎǘƴƝŎƘ ŀƪŎƛƝ Czech Republic 69.4 69.4 

tCh 2tL - CƻƴŘ ƎƭƻōłƭƴƝŎƘ ȊƴŀőŜƪ Czech Republic 72.3 72.3 

REFICOR s.r.o. Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

¦ƴƛǾŜǊȊłƭƴƝ ǎǇǊłǾŀ ƳŀƧŜǘƪǳΣ ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

±ȅǾłȌŜƴȇ ŦƻƴŘ ŦƻƴŘǻ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘΣ 2tL* Czech Republic 93.6 93.6 

Generali PPF Invest plc* Ireland 94.0 94.0 

W{/ άDŜƴŜǊŀƭƛ [ƛŦŜϦ (CP Kazakhstan AO) Kazakhstan 100.0 100.0 

Generali SAF de Pensii Private S.A. (Generali Fond de Pensii S.A.) Romania 99.9 99.9 

CƛƴŀƴőƴƝ ǎŜǊǾƛǎ ƻΦƻΦƻΦ Russia 100.0 100.0 

* Investment funds launched during 2010 
** Entity acquired in 2010 
  



Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

15 

For the year ended 31 December 2009 

Company Country 

Proportion of 
ownership 

interest 

Proportion 
of voting 

rights 

Generali Foreign Insurance Company Inc. (Foreign Insurance Company Inc.) Belarus 67.5 67.5 

пΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 81.7 81.7 

рΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 89.1 89.1 

6. ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 91.7 91.7 

2Ŝǎƪł ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴŀ ½5w!±N ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

2t 5Lw9/¢Σ ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

2t Lb±9{¢ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƛőƴƝ ǎǇƻƭŜőƴƻǎǘΣ ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

LLΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 84.4 84.4 

LLLΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 92.1 92.1 

YƻƳƻŘƛǘƴƝ ȊŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 83.5 83.5 

bŀŘŀŎŜ 2ŜǎƪŞ ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴȅ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

bŀŘŀőƴƝ ŦƻƴŘ YŀǊƭǻǾ most Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

tŀƴƪǊłŎ {ŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ǎΦǊΦƻΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

tŜƴȊƛƧƴƝ ŦƻƴŘ 2ŜǎƪŞ ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴȅΣ ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

tCh 2tL ς мΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ htC Czech Republic 77.5 77.5 

tCh 2tL ς CƻƴŘ ƴŜƳƻǾƛǘƻǎǘƴƝŎƘ ŀƪŎƛƝ Czech Republic 74.8 74.8 

tCh 2tL ς CƻƴŘ ȌƛǾŞ ǇƭŀƴŜǘȅ Czech Republic 50.9 50.9 

tCh 2tL CƻƴŘ ƎƭƻōłƭƴƝŎƘ ȊƴŀőŜƪ Czech Republic 79.4 79.4 

tǊǾƴƝ /ŀƭƭƛƴ ŀƎŜƴǘǳǊŀ ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

REFICOR s.r.o. Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

¦ƴƛǾŜǊȊłƭƴƝ ǎǇǊłǾŀ ƳŀƧŜǘƪǳ ŀΦǎΦ Czech Republic 100.0 100.0 

W{/ άDŜƴŜǊŀƭƛ [ƛŦŜέ ό/t YŀȊŀƪƘǎǘŀƴ !hύ Kazakhstan 100.0 100.0 

Generali SAF de Pensii Private S.A. (Generali Fond de Pensii S.A.) Romania 99.9 99.9 

CƛƴŀƴőƴƝ ǎŜǊǾƛǎ ƻΦƻΦƻΦ Russia 100.0 100.0 

DŜƴŜǊŀƭƛ ttC [ƛŦŜ LƴǎǳǊŀƴŎŜ [[/ ό2Ŝǎƪł ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴŀΣ ŀΦǎΦ in Russian 
Federation)*  Russia 100.0 100.0 

*  Entity disposed in 2010 

The tables below present the list of investment funds that are considered associates and are 
reported within financial investments at fair value through profit or loss. 

For the year ended 31 December 2010 

Company Country 

тΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ ŦŀǊƳŀŎƛŜ ŀ ōƛƻǘŜŎƘƴƻƭƻƎƛƝ Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ ƪƻǊǇƻǊłǘƴƝŎƘ ŘƭǳƘƻǇƛǎǻ Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ ƴƻǾȇŎƘ ekonomik Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ ǇŜƴŠȌƴƝƘƻ ǘǊƘǳ Czech Republic 

Fond ropy a energetiky Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ ǎƳƝǑŜƴȇ Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ Ȋƭŀǘȇ Czech Republic 

tCh 2tL ς CƻƴŘ ȌƛǾŞ ǇƭŀƴŜǘȅ Czech Republic 

Generali PPF Cash & Bond Fund* Ireland 

Generali PPF Commodity Fund* Ireland 

Generali PPF Corporate Bonds Fund* Ireland 

Generali PPF Global Brands Fund* Ireland 

Generali PPF New Economies Fund* Ireland 

Generali PPF Oil & Energy Industry Fund* Ireland 

* Investment funds launched during 2010 
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 

Company Country 

тΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 2tL Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ ŦŀǊƳŀŎƛŜ ŀ ōƛƻǘŜŎƘƴƻƭƻƎƛƝ Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ ƪƻǊǇƻǊłǘƴƝŎƘ ŘƭǳƘƻǇƛǎǻ Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ ƴƻǾȇŎƘ ŜƪƻƴƻƳƛƪ Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ ǇŜƴŠȌƴƝƘƻ ǘǊƘǳ Czech Republic 

Fond ropy a energetiky Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ ǎƳƝǑŜƴȇ Czech Republic 

CƻƴŘ Ȋƭŀǘȇ Czech Republic 

Detailed information about significant transactions with subsidiaries of the Group is provided 
below.  

1) Acquisition of CITY EMPIRIA a.s. 

On 13 May 2010, the Group purchased a 100% share in ECM CITY EMPIRIA a.s., from 
ECM REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS A.G., Luxemburg. 

The Group paid EUR 10.5 million (CZK 266 million) as a purchase price and recorded an 
additional EUR 2 million (CZK 48 million) as a contingent consideration on fulfilment of 
conditions specified in the Share purchase agreement.  

The entity was renamed CITY EMPIRIA a.s., on 12 May 2010 and the new name was 
registered in the commercial register on 3 August 2010. 

As at the 31 December 2010, the conditions to pay the contingent consideration of  
EUR 2 million (CZK 48 million) were no longer considered probable and therefore, the Group 
derecognised the corresponding liability through the income statement. 

The transaction is regarded as an acquisition of a group of assets, because the transferred 
set of activities and assets does not meet the definition of business.  

The acquisition had the following effect on the Groupôs assets and liabilities: 

(CZK million) Tota fair value 

Assets 1,748 

Investment properties 1,671 

Cash and cash equivalents 28 

Other assets 49 

Liabilities 1,434 

Financial liabilities 1,380 

Other liabilities 54 

Net assets acquired 314 

Consideration transferred   

Cash consideration transferred 266 

Contingent consideration 48 

Total purchase consideration 314 

2) Establishment of ĻP Invest Realitn² uzavŚenĨ investiļn² fond, a. s. 

On 15 September 2010, the Group has incorporated the investment fund ñĻP Invest Realitn² 
uzavŚenĨ investiļn² fond, a. s.ò (ñCPI RUIFò). The initial Group investment amounted to  
CZK 2 million. On 1 October 2010, the Group paid additional share premium of  
CZK 30 million. 

On 26 October 2010, CPI RUIF management decided to increase the capital through the 
issuance of 25 new shares at a nominal amount of CZK 25 million and a share premium of 
CZK 375 million. The Group companies have subscribed 23 shares. Two remaining shares 
were subscribed by a related party from GPH group which resulted in a decrease in the 
Groupôs interest in CPI RUIF to 92.59%. 
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3) Sale of interest in Generali PPF Life Insurance LLC 

At its meeting on 13 November 2009, the Board of the Group approved the intention to sell 
the interest in Generali PPF Life Insurance LLC to the sole shareholder CZI Holdings N.V. 
On 26 November 2009 a Letter of Intent for the sale and purchase of ownership in the 
company Generali PPF Life Insurance LLC was signed to obtain the authorisation of the 
Russian authorities. The sale was finaly effective on 20 December 2010 when Generali PPF 
Life LLC was sold for CZK 5,561 million based on independent valuation. A gain of 
CZK 3,228 million was recognised through the income statement in 2010 (see note F.8). 
The receivables resulting from the transaction will be settled in 2011. 

The transaction is a result of GPH group reorganisation. Prior to the sale, the assets and 
related liabilities of Generali PPF Life Insurance LLC were classified as held-for-sale (see 
note F.8). 

4) Initial consolidation and change of the name of Prvn² Callin agentura a. s.  

The entity was renamed to Generali PPF Services, a. s. (òGPSò) on 13 May 2010. The new 
name of the company was registered in the commercial register on 21 June 2010. 

GPS was initially consolidated in 2010, in prior years it was not consolidated due to 
considerations of materiality. The initial consolidation has no significant impact on the 
consolidated financial statements. Total assets of the Group after GPS consolidation 
increased by CZK 44 million, of which CZK 9 million comprises cash and cash equivalents. 

On 10 December 2010 the Group sold a 20% share in GPS to Generali PojiġŠovna a. s., a 
related party from GPH group. The shares were sold for CZK 750 thousand and the realised 
gain of CZK 149 thousand. 

5) Establishment of new ĻP Invest investment funds 

The Groupôs subsidiary ĻP Invest has launched the following investment funds during 2010, 
which became part of the consolidation group due to the fact that the majority of the fundsô 
assets is contributed by the Parent Company: 

Fund 

мΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ŦƻƴŘ ƪǾŀƭƛŦƛƪƻǾŀƴȇŎƘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊǻ 

фΦ ½ŀƧƛǑǘŠƴȇ ŦƻƴŘ ƪǾŀƭƛŦƛƪƻǾŀƴȇŎƘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊǻ 

2t Lb±9{¢ wŜŀƭƛǘƴƝ ¦ȊŀǾǌŜƴȇ LƴǾŜǎǘƛőƴƝ CƻƴŘΣ ŀΦǎΦ 

5ȅƴŀƳƛŎƪȇ ŦƻƴŘ ŦƻƴŘǻ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 

±ȅǾłȌŜƴȇ ŦƻƴŘ ŦƻƴŘǻ ƻǘŜǾǌŜƴȇ ǇƻŘƝƭƻǾȇ ŦƻƴŘ 

6) Incorporation of Generali PPF Invest plc 

On 10 March 2009 the Group incorporated Generali PPF Invest plc. The company is an 
open-ended umbrella investment company with variable capital and with segregated liability 
between funds. It is incorporated with limited liability in Ireland as an undertaking for 
collective investment in transferable securities pursuant to European Community 
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations. 

Generali PPF Invest plc is structured as an umbrella investment company consisting of 
different funds each comprising one or more classes. The core product offer is based on  
6 mutual funds denominated in EUR with various investment strategies. They are: 

¶ Generali PPF Cash & Bond Fund 

¶ Generali PPF Corporate Bonds Fund 

¶ Generali PPF Global Brands Fund 

¶ Generali PPF Oil & Energy Industry Fund 

¶ Generali PPF New Economies Fund 

¶ Generali PPF Commodity Fund 
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All the funds are available in 4 hedged currency classes (EUR, RON, PLN, HUF). 

The Generali PPF Invest funds have been distributed since February 2010. ĻP INVEST 
investiļn² spoleļnost, a. s. is the promoter of Generali PPF Invest plc and acts as the 
exclusive distributor of Generali PPF Invest's funds. Portfolio management has been 
entrusted to Generali PPF Asset Management, related party from GPH group. 

7) Consolidation of ĻP Invest investment funds 

The Group uses its investment funds managed by its subsidiary ĻP Invest to invest assets 
that back the unit-linked business as well as for own direct investments. Funds are opened 
for external investors, too. During 2010, the participation by Group investments in one of the 
funds, PFO ĻPI ï Fond ģiv® planety, decreased below 50%. Therefore, the fund has been 
deconsolidated and reported as a financial investment within the fair value through profit or 
loss category. 

B.2 Consolidation methods and accounting for associates  

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated line by line, whereas investments in associated 
companies are accounted for using the equity method.  

Translation from functional to presentation currency 

The items in the statement of financial position in functional currencies different from the 
presentation currency of the Group were translated into Czech koruna (CZK) based on the 
exchange rates as at the end of the year. 

The profit and loss account items were instead translated based on the average exchange 
rates of the year. They reasonably approximate the exchange rates as at the dates of the 
transactions. 

The exchange rate differences arising from the translation were accounted for in other 
comprehensive income in an appropriate reserve and are recognised in the income 
statement only at the time of the disposal of the investments. 

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated 
as the foreign entityôs assets and liabilities and are translated at the closing rate. 

The exchange rates used for the translation of the main foreign currencies of the Group into 
Czech koruna (ñCZKò) are the ones published by the Czech National Bank. 

B.2.1 Consolidation procedures  

The subsidiaries where the requisites of effective control are applicable are consolidated.  

Control is presumed to exist when the Group owns, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, 
more than half of the voting rights of an entity or, in any event, when it has the power to 
govern the financial and operating policies of an investee. In the assessment of the control, 
potential voting rights are also considered. 

The consolidation of a subsidiary ceases commencing from the date when the Parent 
Company loses control. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements: 

¶ the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries are consolidated. The financial 
year-end date of each subsidiary is identical with the one of the Group, 31 December of 
each financial year; 

¶ the carrying amount of the Groupôs investment in each subsidiary and the Groupôs 
portion of equity of each subsidiary are eliminated as at the date of acquisition; 

¶ non-controlling shareholderôs interests are shown as separate items of equity; and 

¶ intra-group balances are eliminated in full. 
  



Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

19 

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. 
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the 
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the group. The 
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a 
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses 
in the period in which they are incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values as at the acquisition date. 
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the group recognises any non-controlling interest in 
the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interestôs proportionate share of the 
acquireeôs net assets.  

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree 
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less 
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain 
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.  

Changes to contingent consideration classified as a liability as at the acquisition date are 
recognised in the income statement.  

Accounting for business combinations under IFRS 3 only applies if it is considered that a 
business has been acquired. Under IFRS 3, óBusiness combinationsô, a business is defined 
as an integrated set of activities and assets conducted and managed for the purpose of 
providing a return to investors or lower costs or other economic benefits directly and 
proportionately to policyholders or participants. A business generally consists of inputs, 
processes applied to those inputs, and resulting outputs that are, or will be, used to generate 
revenues. In the absence of such criteria, a group of assets is deemed to have been 
acquired. If goodwill is present in a transferred set of activities and assets, the transferred set 
is presumed to be a business. For acquisitions meeting the definition of a business, the 
purchase method of accounting is used.  

For acquisitions not meeting the definition of a business, the Group allocates the cost 
between the individual identifiable assets and liabilities in the Group based on their relative 
fair values as at the date of acquisition. Such transactions or events do not give rise to 
goodwill. 

Transactions with non-controlling interest 

The Group is treating the transactions with non-controlling interest as equity transactions not 
affecting profit and loss. For purchases from non-controlling interest, the difference between 
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of 
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interest 
are also recorded in equity. 

Non-controlling interest is shown in the consolidated balance sheet as a separate component 
of equity, which is distinct from the Groupôs shareholdersô equity. The net income attributable 
to non-controlling interest is separately disclosed on the face of the consolidated income 
statement and statement of comprehensive income. 

Reorganisations and mergers involving companies under common control are accounted for 
using consolidated net book values, consequently no adjustments are made to carrying 
amounts in the consolidated accounts and no goodwill arises on such transactions. 

B.2.2 Using the equity method  

IAS 28 defines an associate as an entity over which the investor has significant influence. 
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions 
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. If an investor holds, 
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, 20% or more of the voting rights of the investee, it 
is presumed that the investor has significant influence. 
  



Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

20 

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost 
(including transaction costs) and the carrying amount is increased or reduced to recognise 
the change in the investorôs share of the equity of the investee after the date of acquisition. 

The investorôs share of the profit or loss of the investee, is recognised in the income 
statement. Dividends paid are deducted from the carrying amount of the investment. 

B.2.3 Consolidation of investment funds  

The Group manages open-ended investment funds through the management company ĻP 
Invest and Generali PPF Invest. The Group invests the assets related to unit-linked products 
in these investment funds as well as its own direct investments. 

When calculating the Groupós participation in individual investment funds, all the Groupôs 
investments are taken into account, including assets related to unit-linked products. For 
consolidation purposes, control is presumed to exist when the Groupós participation is above 
50%. Controlled open-ended investment funds are fully consolidated. The non-controlling 
interest in investment funds are reported within financial liabilities. The Funds where the 
Groupós control is not presumed, because the participation is below 50%, are considered 
associates and are reported within the financial investments at fair value through profit or 
loss. 

Net assets attributable to unit holders outside the Group are recognised as financial 
liabilities. 
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C. Significant accounting policies and assumptions 

C.1 Significant accounting policies  

The accounting standards adopted in preparing the consolidated financial statements, and 
the contents of the items in the financial statements, are presented in this section. 

C.1.1 Intangible assets  

In accordance with IAS 38, an intangible asset is recognised if, and only if, it is identifiable 
and controlled by the Group, it is probable that the expected future economic benefits 
attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured 
reliably.  

This category includes goodwill and other intangible assets, such as software and purchased 
insurance portfolio. 

C.1.1.1 Goodwill  

The excess of the consideration transferred; the amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree, 
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. 

In respect of associates, the carrying amount of any goodwill is included in the carrying 
amount of the investment in the associate. 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any impairment losses and it is not 
amortised. Realised gains and losses on disposal of investments in subsidiaries include the 
related goodwill. Goodwill is tested at least annually in order to identify any impairment 
losses.  

The purpose of the impairment test on goodwill is to identify the existence of any impairment 
losses on the carrying amount presented as an intangible asset. In this context, cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated are identified and tested for impairment. 
The impairment loss is equal to the difference, if negative, between the recoverable amount 
and carrying amount. The former is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell of the cash-
generating unit and its value in use, i.e. the present value of the future cash flows expected 
to be derived from the cash-generating units. The fair value of the cash-generating unit is 
determined on the basis of current market quotations or commonly used valuation 
techniques (mainly the Dividend discount model or Enterprise value). The value in use is 
based on the present value of future cash inflows and outflows, considering projections on 
budgets/forecasts approved by management and covering a maximum period of five years. 
Cash-flow projections for a period longer than five years are extrapolated using an estimated 
growth rate. The pre-tax discount rates reflect the free risk rate and are adjusted to take 
specific risks into account. Should any previous impairment losses allocated to goodwill no 
longer exist, they cannot be reversed. 

C.1.1.2 Present value  of future profits  

On acquisition of a portfolio of long-term insurance contracts or investment contracts, either 
directly, or through the acquisition of an enterprise, the net present value of the expected 
after-tax cash flows of the portfolio acquired is capitalised as an asset. This asset, which is 
referred to as the Present Value of Future Profits (ñPVFPò), is calculated on the basis of an 
actuarial computation taking into account assumptions for future premium income, 
contributions, mortality, morbidity, lapses and investment returns. 

The PVFP is amortised over the effective life of the contracts acquired, by using an 
amortisation pattern reflecting the expected future profit recognition. Assumptions used in the 
development of the PVFP amortisation pattern are consistent with the ones applied in its 
initial measurement. The amortisation pattern is reviewed on a yearly basis to assess its 
reliability and to verify its consistency with the assumptions used in the valuation of the 
corresponding insurance provisions.   
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For the life portfolio, the recoverable amount of the in-force business acquired is determined 
annually through the liability adequacy test (LAT) of the insurance provisions ð mentioned in 
note C.2.3.1 ð taking into account, if any, the deferred acquisition costs recognised in the 
statement of financial position. If any, the impairment losses are recognised in the income 
statement. 

C.1.1.3 Other in tangible assets  

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses.  

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over an 
average period of 3 - 5 years. The amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values, if 
not insignificant, are reassessed annually. If a material additional investment is made to an 
asset during the year, its useful life and residual value are reassessed at the time the cost of 
the investment is added to the carrying amount of the asset. 

C.1.2 Investment property  

Investment properties are properties that are held either to earn rental income or for capital 
appreciation or for both. A property owned by the Group is treated as an investment property 
if it is not occupied by the Group or if only an insignificant portion of the property is occupied 
by the Group. 

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as an investment property is 
classified as investment property. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, all investment properties are measured at fair value. Fair 
value is determined annually. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active 
market. If unavailable, an alternative technique is used. Valuation is based on reliable 
estimates of future cash flows, discounted at rates that reflect current market assessments of 
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows, and supported by evidence of 
current prices or rents for similar properties in the same location and condition. Any gain or 
loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in the income statement. Rental income 
from investment property is accounted for over the term of the lease. 

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a 
change in its use, any difference arising as at the date of transfer between the carrying 
amount of the item and its fair value, and related deferred tax thereon, is recognised directly 
in other comprehensive income if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is 
transferred to retained earnings. Any loss is recognised in the income statement 
immediately. 

C.1.3 Property and equipment  

Property and equipment are measured at the purchase price or production cost, less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the assetôs carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in 
which they are incurred. 

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis using the following rates: 

Item Depreciation rate (%) 

Buildings 1.98 - 10.00 

Other tangible assets and equipment 6.67 - 33.33 



Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

23 

Component parts of an asset that have different useful lives or provide benefits in a different 
pattern are recognised as separate assets with different depreciation rates. 

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values, if not insignificant, are 
reassessed annually. If a material technical improvement is made to an asset during the 
year, its useful life and residual value are reassessed at the time the technical improvement 
is recognised. Land is not depreciated. 

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired by way 
of finance leasing are stated at an amount equal to the lower of the fair value and the present 
value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated 
deprecation and impairment losses. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying 
amount. These are included in the income statement in the other operating income. 

C.1.4 Investments in associates  

This item includes investments in associated companies accounted for using the equity 
method (see note B.2.2 for the accounting policy). 

C.1.5 Financial assets  

Financial assets include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets 
available-for-sale, financial assets held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, cash and cash 
equivalents. 

Financial assets are recognised on the statement of the financial position when the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. For standard purchases and 
sales of financial assets, the Groupôs policy is to recognise them using settlement-date 
accounting. Any change in the fair value of an asset to be received during the period 
between the trade date and the settlement date is accounted for in the same way as would 
be accounted for subsequent measurements. Financial instruments are measured initially at 
fair value plus, with the exception of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument. 

Subsequent measurement is described in notes C.1.5.1 to C.1.5.4. 

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group transfers the risk and rewards of 
ownership of the financial assets or loses control over the contractual rights that comprise 
that asset. This occurs when the rights are realised, expired or surrendered. 

Fair value measurement  

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market price as at the end of 
the reporting period without any deduction for transaction costs. If a quoted market price is 
not available or if the market for an investment is not active, the fair value of the instrument is 
estimated using pricing models or discounted cash-flow techniques. 

To assess whether the market is active or not, the Group carefully determines whether the 
quoted price really reflects the fair value, i.e. in cases when the price has not changed for a 
long period or the Group has information about an important event but the price did not 
change accordingly, the market is not considered active.  
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Discounted cash-flow techniques use estimated future cash flows, which are based on 
managementôs estimates, and the discount rate, which is constructed from risk-free rates 
adjusted by risk margin (credit spread). This is usually derived from an instrument with 
similar terms and conditions (ideally from the same issuer, similar maturity and seniority) 
which reflects the market price in the best way.  

In general, in the case that pricing models are used, inputs are based on market-related 
measures as at the end of the reporting period which limits the subjectivity of the valuation 
performed by the Group, and the result of such a valuation best approximates the fair value 
of an instrument.  

The fair value of derivatives that are not exchange-traded is estimated at the amount that the 
Group would receive or pay to terminate the contract as at the end of the reporting period 
taking into account current market conditions and the current creditworthiness of the 
counterparties. In the case of options, Black-Scholes models are applied. Also, for any other 
over-the-counter instruments (CDS, IRS, CCS, etc.), generally accepted valuation models 
are applied and, again, the parameters of the valuation intend to reflect the market 
conditions. 

Effective from 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the amendment to IFRS 7 for financial 
instruments that are recognised in the statement of financial position at fair value; this 
requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value 
measurement hierarchy: 

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). 

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) 
(level 2). 

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, 
unobservable inputs) (level 3). 

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market 
prices as at the end of the reporting period. These instruments are included in level 1.  

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, 
over-the-counter derivatives or unquoted bonds) is determined by using valuation 
techniques. If all the significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in level 2. Specific valuation techniques used to value financial 
instruments include mainly quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments, 
cash-flow estimation and risk-free curves. 

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 
instrument is included in level 3. 

Level 3 contains only structured investments (CDO, ABS) where market prices are 
unavailable and entity-specific estimates are necessary.  

Fair value hedge 

From 1 October 2008, the Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of 
recognised assets. The hedge accounting has been applied to derivatives hedging a 
currency risk on all non-derivative financial assets denominated in or exposed to foreign 
currencies (equities, bonds, investment funds, etc.). 

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges 
are recorded in the income statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the 
hedged assets that are attributable to the hedged risk. 

At the inception of the transaction, the Group documents the relationship between hedging 
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for 
undertaking hedging transactions.  
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The Group also documents its assessment of the hedging effectiveness, both at hedge 
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging 
transactions are expected to be and have been highly effective in offsetting changes in the 
fair values of hedged items.  

Embedded derivatives 

Certain financial instruments include embedded derivatives, which economic characteristics 
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract. The Group designates these 
instruments at fair value through profit or loss. 

The Group does not separately measure embedded derivatives that meet the definition of an 
insurance contract. No derivatives that are not closely related and are embedded in 
insurance contracts were identified. 

C.1.5.1 Loans and receivables  

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than classified at fair value through 
profit or loss or classified as available-for-sale. 

After initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.  

C.1.5.2 Financial assets held -to-maturity  

Held-to-maturity assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturities other than those that meet the definition of loans and 
receivables that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. 

Financial assets held-to-maturity are measured at amortised cost using an effective interest 
rate method less any impairment losses. The amortisation of premiums and discounts is 
recorded as interest income or expense.  

The fair value of an individual security within the held-to-maturity portfolio can temporarily fall 
below its carrying value, but, provided there is no risk resulting from significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor, the security is not considered to be impaired. 

C.1.5.3 Financial assets available -for -sale 

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are not 
classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss.  

After initial recognition, the Group measures financial assets available-for-sale at their fair 
values, without any deduction for transaction costs that it may incur upon sale or other 
disposal, with the exception of AFS equity securities that do not have a quoted market price 
on an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured which are stated at 
cost, including transaction costs, less impairment losses.  

Any revaluation gain or loss on a financial asset available-for-sale is recognised in other 
comprehensive income with the exception of impairment losses and, in the case of monetary 
items such as debt securities, foreign exchange gains and losses. When available-for-sale 
assets are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income is recognised in the income statement. Where these instruments are 
interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest rate method is recognised in 
the income statement. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement as other 
investment income ï see note C.1.24. 
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C.1.5.4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held-for-trading and 
non-trading financial assets which are designated upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through profit or loss.  

Financial assets held-for-trading are acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of 
generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in the price or the dealerôs margin. Financial 
assets are classified as held-for-trading if, regardless of the reason they were acquired, they 
are part of a portfolio for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit 
taking.  

Financial assets held-for-trading include investments and certain purchased loans and 
derivative contracts that are not designated as effective hedging instruments. All trading 
derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fair value), as well as options purchased, are 
reported as trading assets. All trading derivatives in a net payable position (negative fair 
value), as well as options written, are reported as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss. 

If a financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near 
term (notwithstanding that the financial asset may have been acquired or incurred principally 
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term), the financial assets can only be 
reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category in rare circumstances. 

The Group designates non-trading financial assets according to its investment strategy as 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, if there is an active market and the fair 
value can be reliably measured.  

The fair value option is only applied in any one of the following situations: 

- It results in more relevant information, because it significantly reduces the measurement 
or recognition inconsistency (ñaccounting mismatchò) of securities covering unit-linked 
policies;  

- A group of financial assets is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value 
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy, with 
information being provided to key management personnel on this basis. 

- When a contract contains one or more substantive embedded derivatives, unless the 
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows that otherwise would be 
required by the contract or it is clear that separation of embedded derivatives is 
prohibited. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are 
measured at their fair values (see note C.1.5). Gains and losses arising from changes in the 
fair values are recognised in the income statement. 

Swaps 

Swaps are over-the-counter agreements between the Group and other parties to exchange 
future cash flows based upon agreed notional amounts. Swaps most commonly used by the 
Group are interest rate and cross-currency interest rate swaps. Under interest rate swaps, 
the Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference 
between fixed-rate and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed 
notional amount. Cross-currency interest rate swaps require an exchange of interest 
payment flows and capital amounts in different currencies. The Group is subject to credit risk 
arising from default of the respective counter parties. Market risk arises from potentially 
unfavourable movements in interest rates relative to the contractual rates of the contract, or 
from movements in foreign exchange rates. Credit default swaps are also used by the Group. 
Under the credit default swap agreement, a credit risk is transferred from a protection buyer 
to a protection seller. 
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Futures and forwards 

Forward contracts are commitments to either purchase or sell a designated financial 
instrument, currency, commodity or an index at a specified future date for a specified price 
and may be settled in cash or another financial asset. Forward contracts result in credit 
exposure to the counter party and exposure to market risk based on changes in market 
prices relative to the contracted amounts. 

A futures contract is a standardised contract, traded on a futures exchange, to buy or sell a 
standardised quantity of a specified commodity of standardised quality at a certain date in 
the future, at a price determined by the instantaneous equilibrium between the forces of 
supply and demand among competing buy and sell orders on the exchange at the time of the 
purchase or sale of the contract. Futures contracts bear considerably lower credit risk than 
forwards and, as forwards, result in exposure to market risk based on changes in market 
prices relative to the contracted amounts. 

Options 

Options are derivative financial instruments that give the buyer, in exchange for a premium 
payment, the right (but not the obligation) to either purchase from (call option) or sell to (put 
option) the writer a specified underlying instrument at a specified price on or before a 
specified date. The Group enters into interest rate options, foreign exchange options, equity 
and index options and credit failure options (swaps). Interest rate options, including caps and 
floors, may be used as hedges against a rise or fall in interest rates. They provide protection 
against changes in the interest rates of floating rate instruments above or below a specified 
level. Foreign currency options may also be used (commensurate with the type of option) to 
hedge against rising or falling currency rates. The Group as a buyer of over-the-counter 
options is subject to market risk and credit risk since the counter party is obliged to make 
payments under the terms of the contract if the Group exercises the option. As the writer of 
over-the-counter options, the Group is subject to the market risk, as it is obliged to make 
payments if the option is exercised by the counterparty or credit risk from a premium due 
from a counterparty. 

C.1.6 Reinsurance assets  

Reinsurance assets comprise the actual or estimated amounts, which, under contractual 
reinsurance arrangements, are recoverable from reinsurers in respect of technical provisions. 

Reinsurance assets relating to technical provisions are established based on the terms of 
reinsurance contracts and valued on the same basis as the related reinsured liabilities. The 
Group records an allowance for estimated unrecoverable reinsurance assets, if any. 

C.1.7 Insurance receivables  

Receivables on premiums written in the course of collection and receivables from 
intermediates, co-insurers and reinsurers are included in this item. They are initially 
recognised at fair value and then at their presumed recoverable amounts if lower. 

C.1.8 Other receivables  

Other receivables include all other receivables not of an insurance or tax nature. They are 
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 

Cash flow hedge 

Starting from 1 June 2010, for some of the receivables, the cash flow hedge is being applied 
in the Group to minimise its exposure to changes in the cash flows denominated in foreign 
currencies. 
  

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Contract
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Futures_exchange


Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

28 

The effective portion of the gains and losses on hedging instrument is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and is recognised in the income statement only when the hedged 
forecast transaction affects profit or loss. 
 

The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income 
statement and reported within lines ñOther incomeò or ñOther expensesò. 

At the inception of the transaction, the Group documents the relationship between hedging 
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for 
undertaking hedging transactions. The group also documents its assessment, both at hedge 
inception and on an ongoing basis of the hedging effectiveness. 

C.1.9 Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash consists of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks and other financial 
institutions. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

C.1.10 Lease transactions  

Property and equipment holdings used by the Group under operating leases, whereby the 
risks and benefits relating to asset ownership remain with the lessor, are not recorded on the 
Groupôs statement of financial position. Payments made under operating leases to the lessor 
are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

C.1.11 Non-current assets held -for -sale and discontinued operations  

The Group presents discontinued operations in a separate line in the consolidated income 
statement and consolidated statement of financial position if an entity or a component of an 
entity has been disposed of or is classified as held-for-sale and: 

(a) Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; 

(b) Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or 
geographical area of operations; or 

(c) Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale (for example, certain private 
equity investments). 

Net profit from discontinued operations includes the net total of operating profit or loss before 
tax from operations, including net gain or loss on sale before tax or remeasurement to fair 
value less costs to sell and discontinued operations tax expense. A component of an entity 
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly distinguished, operationally and for 
financial reporting purposes, from the rest of the Groupôs operations and cash flows. If an 
entity or a component of an entity is classified as a discontinued operation, the Group 
restates prior periods in the consolidated income statement to present the component 
comparative in the same way. 

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell. This measurement provisions do not apply to deferred tax 
assets and liabilities (IAS 12), financial assets in the scope of IAS 39 and investment 
properties measured at fair value. Non-current assets are classified as held-for-sale if their 
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing 
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is 
available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject to terms that are usual and 
customary for sales of such assets.  

Management must be committed to the sale and must actively market the property for sale at 
a price that is reasonable in relation to the current fair value. The sale should be expected to 
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 
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C.1.12 Equity  

C.1.12.1 Share cap ital issued  

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The share capital is the nominal amount approved 
by a shareholderôs resolution.  

C.1.12.2 Capital and revenue reserves  

This item comprises the following reserves: 

Statutory reserve fund 

The creation and use of the statutory reserve fund is limited by legislation. The statutory 
reserve fund is not available for distribution to the shareholder. 

Equalisation reserve fund 

Catastrophe and equalisation reserves are required under local insurance legislation and are 
classified as separate parts of equity within these accounts as they do not meet the definition 
of a liability under IFRS. They are not available for distribution. 

Retained earnings 

The item includes retained earnings or losses adjusted for the effect due to changes arising 
from the first application of IFRS. 

Reserve for unrealised gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets 

The item includes gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale 
financial assets, as previously described in the corresponding item of financial investments. 
The amounts are amounted net of the related deferred taxes and deferred policy holdersô 
liabilities. 

Reserve for other unrealised gains and losses through equity 

This item includes revaluation gains of land and buildings reclassified to investment 
properties. 

Reserve for cash-flow hedges 

This item includes the effective portion of gains or losses arising from changes in exchange 
rates on the instruments used for cash-flow hedges. The amounts are presented net of the 
related deferred taxes. 

Result of the period 

This item refers to the Groupôs result for the period.  

C.1.12.3 Dividends  

Dividends are recognised as a liability provided they are declared before the end of the 
reporting period. Dividends declared after the end of the reporting period are not recognised 
as a liability but are disclosed in the notes. 

C.1.13 Insurance classification  

C.1.13.1 Insurance contracts  

In accordance with IFRS 4, life segment policies are classified as insurance contracts or 
investment contracts based on the significance of the underlying insurance risk. As a general 
guideline, the Group defines significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay 
benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 5% more than the benefits 
payable if the insured event did not occur. 
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Classification requires the following steps: 

- identification of the characteristics of products (option, discretionary participation feature, 
etc.) and services rendered; 

- determination of the level of insurance risk in the contract; and 
- determination of classification in accordance with IFRS 4 

For further details on insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF, see note C.3.  

C.1.13.2 Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF  

Premiums, payments and change in the insurance provision related to products whose 
insurance risk is considered significant (e.g. term insurance, whole life and endowment with 
annual premiums, life contingent annuities and contracts containing an option to elect at 
maturity a life contingent annuity at rates granted at inception, long-term health insurance 
and unit-linked with sum assured in case of death significantly higher than the value of the 
fund) or investment contracts with discretionary participation feature ï DPF ï (e.g. policies 
linked to segregated funds, contracts with additional benefits that are contractually based on 
the results of the company) are recognised in the income statement. For further details on 
insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF, see note C.3. 

C.1.13.3 Investment contracts  

Investment contracts without DPF mainly include unit/index-linked policies and pure 
capitalisation contracts. The Group did not classify any contracts as investment contracts 
without DPF in 2010 and 2009. 

C.1.14 Insurance liabilities  

C.1.14.1 Provision for unearned premiums  

The provision for unearned premiums comprises that part of gross premiums written 
attributable to the following financial year or to subsequent financial years, computed 
separately for each insurance contract using the pro rata temporis method, adjusted to reflect 
any variation in the incidence of risk during the period covered by the contract. The provision 
for unearned premiums is created for both life insurance and non-life insurance. 

C.1.14.2 Mathematical provision  

The mathematical provision comprises the actuarially estimated value of the Groupôs 
liabilities under life insurance contracts. The amount of the mathematical provision is 
calculated by a prospective net premium valuation, taking account of all future liabilities as 
determined by the policy conditions for each existing contract and including all guaranteed 
benefits, bonuses already declared and proposed, expenses and after deducting the 
actuarial value of future premiums. 

The mathematical provision is initially measured using the assumptions used for calculating 
the corresponding premiums and remain unchanged except where a liability inadequacy 
occurs. A liability adequacy test (LAT) is performed as at each end of the reporting period by 
the Groupôs actuaries using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance 
contracts (see note C.2.3). If those estimates show that the carrying amount of the provision 
is insufficient in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the difference is recognised in 
the income statement with a corresponding increase to the other life insurance technical 
provision.  
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C.1.14.3 Claims provision  

The provision for outstanding claims represents the total estimated ultimate cost of settling all 
claims arising from events which have occurred up to the end of the financial year, whether 
reported or not, less amounts already paid in respect of such claims, including the related 
internal and external claims settlement expenses as estimated based on historical 
experience and specific assumptions about future economic conditions. 

The provision includes claims reported by policyholders but not settled (RBNS) and claims 
incurred but not reported (IBNR). 

Where benefits resulting from a claim are paid in the form of an annuity, the provision is 
calculated using recognised actuarial methods. 

With the exception of annuities, the Group does not discount its provisions for outstanding 
claims.  

Where applicable, provisions are disclosed net of the prudent estimates for salvage and 
subrogation recoveries. 

The provision for outstanding claims in respect of life insurance policies is included within the 
life insurance provision.  

Whilst the Board of Directors considers that the gross provision for claims and the related 
reinsurance recoveries are fairly stated, the ultimate liability may differ as a result of 
subsequent information and events and may result in significant adjustments to the amounts 
provided. Adjustments to the amounts of the provisions are reflected in the financial 
statements for the period in which the adjustments are made. The methods used and the 
estimates made are reviewed regularly. 

C.1.14.4 Other insurance provisions  

Other insurance provisions contain all other insurance technical provisions that are not 
mentioned above, such as the provision for unexpired risks (also referred to as ñpremium 
deficiencyò see also note C.2.3.3) in non-life insurance, the ageing provision in health 
insurance, provision for contractual non-discretionary bonuses in non-life business. 

The provision for contractual non-discretionary bonuses in non-life business covers future 
benefits in the form of additional payments to policyholders or reduction in policyholder 
payments, which are a result of past performance. This provision is not recognised for those 
contracts, where future premium is reduced by bonuses resulting from favourable past policy 
claim experience and such bonuses being granted irrespective of whether the past claim 
experience was with the reporting entity. In such a situation, the reduction of the premium 
reflects the expected lower future claims, rather than distribution of past surpluses. 

C.1.14.5 Financial liabilities for investment contracts with DPF  

Financial liabilities for investment contracts with DPF represent liabilities for contracts which 
do not meet the definition of insurance contracts, because they do not lead to the transfer 
of significant insurance risk from the policyholder to the Group, but which contain DPF (as 
defined in note C.1.32.3.). Financial liabilities arising from investment contracts with DPF are 
accounted for in the same way as those for insurance contracts. 

C.1.14.6 DPF liability for insur ance contracts  

DPF liability represents a contractual liability to provide significant benefits in addition to the 
guaranteed benefits that are at the discretion of the issuer over the timing and amount of 
benefits and that are based on the performance of defined contracts, investment returns or 
the profit or loss of the issuer. For more details, see note C.1.32.3. 
  



Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

32 

C.1.15 Other provisions  

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reasonable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. 

C.1.16 Bonds issued  

Bonds issued are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and 
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Amortisation of discount or premium and interest are 
recognised in interest expense and similar charges using the effective interest rate method. 

C.1.17 Financial liabilities to banks and non -banks  

Financial liabilities to banks and non-banks are recognised initially at fair value, net of 
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost. The amortised 
cost of a financial liability is the amount at which the financial liability was measured upon 
initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of 
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount. 

C.1.18 Financial  liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are liabilities classified as held-for-
trading, which include primarily derivative liabilities that are not hedging instruments. Related 
transactions are immediately expensed. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
are measured at fair value and the relevant gains and losses from this revaluation are 
included in the income statement. Financial liabilities are removed from the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, they are extinguished ï i.e. when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

C.1.19 Payables  

Accounts payable are when the Group has a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another 
financial asset. Accounts payable are measured at amortised cost, which will normally equal 
their nominal or repayment value.  

C.1.20 Net insurance premium revenue  

Net insurance premium revenue includes gross premiums earned from direct insurance 
business and assumed (inwards) reinsurance business, net of premiums ceded to reinsurers. 

Gross premiums comprise all amounts due during the financial year in respect of insurance 
contracts regardless of the fact that such amounts may relate in whole or in part to a later 
financial year. Gross premiums are recognised in respect of contracts meeting the definition 
of an insurance contract or an investment contract with DPF.  

The above amounts do not include the amounts of taxes or charges levied with premiums. 

Premiums are recognised when an unrestricted legal entitlement is established. For 
contracts where premiums are payable in instalments, such premiums are recognised as 
written when the instalment becomes due. 
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Premiums are recognised as earned on a pro-rata basis over the term of the related policy 
coverage via the provision for unearned premiums. For those contracts for which the period 
of risk differs significantly from the contract period, premiums are recognised over the period 
of risk in proportion to the amount of insurance protection provided. 

The change in the unearned premium provision is represented by the difference in the 
balance of the provision for unearned premium as at the beginning of the year and the 
balance as at the year end.  

C.1.21 Net insurance claims and benefits  

Insurance technical charges include claims (benefit) expenses, the change in technical 
provisions and rebates and profit sharing. 

Claims (benefits) expenses are represented by benefits and surrenders, net of reinsurance 
(life) and claims paid net of reinsurance (non-life). Benefits and claims comprise all payments 
made in respect of the financial year. These amounts include annuities, surrenders, entries 
and withdrawals of loss provisions to and from ceding insurance enterprises and reinsurers, 
and external and internal claims management costs. Sums recovered on the basis of 
subrogation or salvage are deducted. Claims paid are recognised at the moment that the 
claim is approved for settlement. 

The change in technical provisions represents change in provisions for claims reported by 
policyholders, change in provision for IBNR, change in mathematical and unit-linked 
provisions and change in other technical provisions. 

Bonuses comprise all amounts chargeable for the financial year representing an allocation of 
surplus or profit arising on business as a whole or from a section of business, after the 
deduction of amounts provided in previous years which are no longer required. Rebates 
comprise such amounts to the extent that they represent a partial refund of premiums 
resulting from the experience of individual contracts.  

C.1.22 Benefits from investment contracts with DPF (investment contract benefits)  

Investment contract benefits represent changes in financial liabilities resulting from 
investment contracts with DPF (for definition see note C.1.14.6).  

The change in financial liabilities from investment contracts with DPF involves guaranteed 
benefits credited, change in DPF liabilities from investment contracts with DPF and change in 
liability resulting from a liability adequacy test of investment contracts with DPF. 

C.1.23 Interest and similar income and interest and similar expense  

Interest income and interest expense are recognised in the income statement on an accrual 
basis, taking into account the effective yield of the asset or liability, or an applicable floating 
rate. Interest income and interest expense includes the amortisation of any discount or 
premium or other differences between the initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing 
instrument and its amount at maturity calculated using the effective interest method. 

Interest on financial assets fair valued to profit or loss is reported as a part of net income 
from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income and interest 
expense on other assets or liabilities is reported as Interest and other investment income or 
as interest expense in the income statement. 
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C.1.24 Other income and expense from financial assets  

Other income and expenses from financial assets comprise realised and unrealised 
gains/losses, dividends, net trading income and impairment loss and reversals of impairment 
(see note C.1.32.2). 

A realised gain/loss arises on the derecognition of financial assets other than financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss. The amount of the realised gain/loss represents the 
difference between the carrying value of a financial asset and the sales price adjusted for 
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in the equity.  

Net fair value gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss not 
held-for-trading represent the amount of the subsequent measurement of financial assets 
and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss to their fair value or the gain/loss 
from disposal thereof.  

Dividends from investments are recorded when declared and approved by the shareholderôs 
meeting of the respective company. 

Net trading income represents the subsequent measurement of the ñTrading assetsò and 
ñTrading liabilitiesò to fair value or the gain/loss from disposal of the ñTrading assetsò or 
ñTrading liabilitiesò. The amount of the trading income to be recorded represents the 
difference between the latest carrying value and the fair value as at the date of the financial 
statements or the sale price. 

C.1.25 Income and expense from investment property  

Income and expense from investment property comprise realised gains/losses triggered by 
derecognition, unrealised gains/losses from subsequent measurement at fair value, rental 
income and other income and expense related to investment property. 

C.1.26 Other income and other expense  

C.1.26.1 Operating lease payments  

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an 
integral part of the total lease expense. 

C.1.27 Acquisition costs  

Acquisition costs are costs arising from the conclusion of insurance or investment contracts 
with DPF and include direct costs, such as acquisition commissions or the cost of drawing up 
the insurance document or including the insurance contract in the portfolio, and indirect 
costs, such as advertising costs or the administrative expenses connected with the 
processing proposals and issuing policies. A portion of acquisition costs is being deferred, 
such as agentsô commissions and other variable underwriting and policy issue costs. General 
selling expenses and line-of-business costs as well as commissions for servicing a portfolio 
are not deferred unless they are related to the acquisition of new business. 

In non-life insurance, a proportion of the related acquisition costs are deferred and amortised 
commensurate with the unearned premiums provision. The amount of any deferred 
acquisition costs is established on a similar basis as that used for unearned premiums for a 
relevant line of business (product). Deferred acquisition costs are reported as other assets in 
the statement of financial position. 

The recoverable amount of deferred acquisition costs is assessed as at each end of the 
reporting period as part of the liability adequacy test. 

Acquisition costs in respect of life insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF 
(Discretionary Participation Feature) are charged directly to the income statement as 
incurred and are not deferred. 
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For the investment contracts with DPF the incremental acquisition costs directly attributable 
to the issue of a related financial liability carried at amortised cost are deducted from the fair 
value of the consideration received and included within the effective interest rate calculation. 

C.1.28 Administrative expenses  

Administrative expenses include expenses relating to the administration of the Group. This 
includes personnel costs, office rental expenses and other operating expenses. Staff costs 
include expenses arising from employee benefits, such as salaries and wages, management 
remuneration and bonuses, social insurance. Other operating expenses include costs of 
premium collection, portfolio administration and the processing of inwards and outwards 
reinsurance. 

C.1.29 Reinsurance commissions and profit participations  

Reinsurance commissions and profit participations include commissions received or the 
receivable from reinsurers and profit participations based on reinsurance contracts. Non-life 
reinsurance commissions are deferred in a manner consistent with the deferral of acquisition 
costs in non-life insurance. 

C.1.30 Income tax  

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax 
is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised 
in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantially enacted as at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to 
tax payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Temporary differences from the initial recognition of 
assets or liabilities outside of business combinations that affect neither accounting nor 
taxable profit are not provided for. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the 
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, 
using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted as at the end of the reporting period. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

C.1.31 Employee benefits  

C.1.31.1 Short -term employee benefits  

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that 
are due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees 
render the related service. Short-term employee benefits include mainly wages and salaries, 
management remuneration and bonuses, remuneration for membership in Group boards and 
non-monetary benefits. The Group makes contributions to the government pension scheme 
at the statutory rates in force during the year, based on gross salary payments. The benefits 
are recognised in an undiscounted amount as an expense and as a liability (accrued 
expense).  

C.1.31.2 Other long -term employee benefits  

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment 
benefits and termination benefits) that are not due to be settled within twelve months after 
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. The benefits are 
measured at present value of the defined obligation as at the balance sheet date. 
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C.1.31.3 Post -employment benefits  

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are 
payable after the completion of employment. The Group makes contributions to the 
government health, accident and guarantee insurance and unemployment schemes at the 
statutory rates in force during the year, based on gross salary payments. Throughout the 
year, the Group made contributions amounting to 21.5% (2009: 21.5%) of gross salaries up 
to a limit, which is defined by the relevant law, to such schemes, together with contributions 
made by employees of a further 8% (2009: 8%). The cost of these Group-made contributions 
is charged to the income statement in the same period as the related salary cost. There are 
no further obligations of the Group in respect of employeesô post employment benefits. 

C.1.31.4 Termination benefits  

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of the Groupôs decision to 
terminate an employeeôs employment before the normal retirement date or as a 
consequence of employerôs decision to provide benefits upon termination of employment  as 
an offer made to employees in order to accept voluntary redundancy.  

The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: 
terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without 
possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to 
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the balance 
sheet date are discounted to present value.  

C.1.32 Other accounting policies  

C.1.32.1 Foreign currency translation  

A foreign currency transaction is a transaction that is denominated in or requires settlement 
in other than the functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates. A foreign currency transaction is 
recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate 
effective as at the date of the transaction to the foreign currency amount.  

At each end of the reporting period: 

- Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing foreign exchange rate; 

- Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical 
cost are translated using the foreign exchange rate as at the date of the original 
transaction; and 

- Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency, which are carried at fair value, 
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling as at the dates the fair values 
were determined. 

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary items or from translation of the 
Groupôs monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded or 
reported in previous financial statements are recognised as Other income or as Other 
expenses in the period in which they arise (see note C.1.24). Translation differences on non-
monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part 
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities 
classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity 
unless fair value hedge accounting is applied.   
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C.1.32.2 Impairment  

The carrying amounts of the Groupôs assets, other than investment property (see note 
C.1.2), deferred acquisition costs (C.1.27), goodwill (C.1.1.1) and deferred tax assets 
(C.1.30), are reviewed as at each end of the reporting period to determine whether there is 
any indication of impairment. This determination requires judgement (C.4). If any such 
indication exists, the assetôs recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount is 
measured annually regardless of any indication of impairment for intangible assets not yet 
available for use. 

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of an asset exceeds 
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. 

Individual impairment losses are losses that are specifically identified. Collective impairment 
losses are losses that are present in a portfolio of loans or receivables but not specifically 
identified. 

Impairment of financial assets 

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are 
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events 
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a óloss eventô) and that loss event (or 
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of 
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. 

Evidence of impairment includes, for example, significant financial difficulties of the issuer, 
default or delinquency on interest or principal payments, the probability that the borrower will 
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and the disappearance of an active market 
for the financial asset. 

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument 
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. 

In all these cases, any impairment loss is recognised only after a careful analysis of the type 
of loss has established that the conditions exist to proceed with the corresponding 
recognition. The analysis includes considerations of the recoverable value of the investment, 
checks on the volatility of the stock versus the reference market or compared to competitors, 
and any other possible quality factor. The analytical level and detail of the analysis varies 
based on the significance of the latent losses of each investment. 

The recoverable amount of the Groupôs investments in held-to-maturity securities is 
calculated as the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the original 
effective interest rate inherent in the asset. Receivables with a short duration are not 
discounted.  

Loans and advances are reported net of allowances for loan losses to reflect the estimated 
recoverable amounts. Receivables are stated at their cost less impairment losses. 

The recoverable amount of an available-for-sale asset is the current fair value. When there is 
objective evidence that it is impaired, the decline in fair value that had been recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income is recognised into the income statement. 

An impairment loss in respect of a held-to-maturity security, loan, advance or receivable, 
available-for-sale debt instrument is reversed through the income statement (up to the 
amount of the amortised cost) if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be 
attributed objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. 

An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale equity instruments is not reversed through 
the income statement and any subsequent increase in fair value is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 
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Impairment of non-financial assets 

The recoverable amount of other assets is greater of their fair value less cost to sell and the 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.  

In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed through the income statement if 
there has been an increase in the recoverable amount and the increase can be objectively 
related to an event occurring after the date of the impairment. An impairment loss is reversed 
only to the extent that the assetôs carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount of 
the asset that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised. 

Goodwill impairment testing is disclosed in notes C.1.1.1 and F.1.1. 

C.1.32.3 Discretionary participation features (DPF)  

A discretionary participation feature (DPF) represents a contractual right to receive, as a 
supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits that constitute a significant portion of 
the total contractual benefits, whose amount or timing is at the discretion of the Group and 
are based on the performance of pooled assets, profit or loss of the Group or investment 
returns.  

As the amount of the bonus to be allocated to policyholders has been irrevocably fixed as at 
the end of the reporting period, the amount is presented as a guaranteed liability in the 
financial statements, i.e. within the life assurance provision in the case of insurance contracts 
or within the Guaranteed liability for investment contracts with DPF in the case of investment 
contracts with DPF.  

C.1.32.4 Segment reporting  

A segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which the 
Group may earn revenues and incur expenses and whose operating results are regularly 
reviewed by the Chief operations decision maker of the Group to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete 
financial information is available (business segment).  

Measurement of segment assets and liabilities and segment revenues and results is based 
on the accounting policies set out in the accounting policy notes. 

The reportable segments are strategic Group activities that offer different services. They are 
managed separately and have different marketing strategies. 

C.1.32.5 Repo transactions  

The Group enters into purchases (sales) of investments under agreements to resell 
(repurchase) substantially identical investments at a certain date in the future at a fixed price. 
Investments purchased subject to commitments to resell them at future dates are not 
recognised. The amounts paid are recognised in loans to either banks or non-banks. The 
receivables are shown as collateralised by the underlying security. Investments sold under 
repurchase agreements continue to be recognised in the statement of financial position and 
are measured in accordance with the accounting policy for either assets held-for-trading or 
available-for-sale, as appropriate. The proceeds from the sale of the investments are 
reported as liabilities to either banks or non-banks. 

The difference between the sale and repurchase considerations is recognised on an accrual 
basis over the period of the transaction and is included in interest. 
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C.1.32.6 Offsetting financial instruments  

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 
financial position only when there is an unconditional and legally enforceable right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

C.2 Principal assumptions  

C.2.1 Life assurance liabilities  

Actuarial assumptions and their sensitivities underline the insurance calculation. The life 
insurance provision (mathematical provision) is calculated by a prospective net premium 
valuation (see note C.1.14.2) using the same statistical data and interest rates used to 
calculate premium rates (in accordance with relevant national legislation). The assumptions 
used are locked in at policy inception and remain in-force until expiration of the liability. The 
adequacy of insurance liabilities is tested with a liability adequacy test (see note C.2.3.). 

The guaranteed technical rate of interest included in policies varies from 2% to 6% according 
to the actual technical rate used in determining the premium.  

As a part of the life insurance provision, an additional provision is established in respect of 
bonuses payable under certain conditions, referred to as ñspecial bonusesò. This provision 
corresponds to the value of special bonuses calculated using the prospective method and 
using the same interest rate and mortality assumptions used to calculate the basic life 
insurance provision. No allowance is made for lapses. 

C.2.2 Non-life insurance liabilities  

As at the end of the reporting period, a provision is made for the expected ultimate cost of 
settling all claims incurred in respect of events up to that date, whether reported or not, 
together with related claims handling expenses, less amounts already paid. 

The liability for reported claims (RBNS) is assessed on a separate case-by-case basis with 
due regard to the claim circumstances, information available from loss adjusters and 
historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case reserves are reviewed regularly and 
are updated as and when new information arises. 

The estimation of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is generally subject to a greater 
degree of uncertainty than reported claims. IBNR provisions are predominantly assessed by 
the Groupôs actuaries using statistical techniques such as chain ladder methods, whereby 
historical data is extrapolated in order to estimate ultimate claims costs. 

To the extent that these methods use historical claims development information, they 
assume that the historical claims development pattern will occur again in the future. There 
are reasons why this may not be the case, which, insofar as they can be identified, have 
been allowed for by modifying the methods. Such reasons include: 

a) economic, legal, political and social trends (resulting in different than expected levels 
of inflation); 

b) changes in the mix of insurance contracts incepted; 
c) random fluctuations, including the impact of large losses. 

IBNR provisions are initially estimated at a gross level and a separate calculation is carried 
out to estimate the size of reinsurance recoveries. 
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The assumptions which have the greatest effect on the measurement of non-life insurance 
liabilities are as follows: 

ñTailò factors  

For long-tail business, the level of provision is significantly influenced by the estimate of the 
development of claims from the latest development year for which historical data is available 
to ultimate settlement. These tail factors are estimated prudently using mathematical curves, 
which project observed development factors.  

Annuities 

In Motor Third Party Liability (MTPL) insurance and other third party liability lines, part of the 
claims payment may be in the form of an annuity. The provision for such claims is 
established as the present value of expected future claims payments. 

The key assumptions involved in the calculation are the discount rate, the expected increase 
in wages and disability pensions which influence the amount of annuities to be paid. The 
Group follows guidance issued by the Czech Bureau of Insurers and similar bodies in other 
countries in setting these assumptions. Under current legislation, future increases in disability 
pensions are set by governmental decree and may be subject to social and political factors 
beyond the Groupôs control. The same applies to the real future development of annuity 
inflation (it is also dependent on governmental decrees). 

Discounting 

With the exception of annuities, non-life claims provisions are not discounted. For annuities, 
discounting is used as described in the table below. 

  Life Annuities Certain Annuities 

Discount rate 2% p.a. 2% p.a. 

Annuity inflation 4.6% p.a. (4.6% for old legal MTPL)
1
 5.2% p.a. (6% for old legal MTPL)

1
 

1 
Until 31 December 1999 

Life annuities are paid until the death of the claimant whereas certain annuities are paid for a 
fixed term. 

In addition, the Group takes mortality into account through the use of mortality tables 
recommended by national insurance bureaus. 

C.2.3 Liability adequacy test (LAT)  

C.2.3.1 Life assurance  

The life assurance provision is tested as at each end of the reporting period against a 
calculation of future cash flows using explicit and consistent assumptions of all factors ï 
future premiums, mortality, morbidity, investment returns, lapses, surrenders, guarantees, 
policyholder bonuses, expenses and exercise of policyholder options. 

Where reliable market data is available, assumptions are derived from observable market 
prices. 

However, in the absence of market transactions in the economic environment in which the 
Group operates, there remain significant difficulties in calibrating the assumptions used by 
the Group in the liability adequacy test to observable market conditions in most cases. 

Assumptions which cannot be reliably derived from market values are based on current 
estimates calculated by reference to the Groupôs own internal models, on guidance notes 
issued by the Czech Society of Actuaries and similar bodies in other countries and publicly 
available resources (e.g. demographic information published by national statistical bureaus).  
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Due to the levels of uncertainty in the future development of the insurance markets and the 
Groupôs portfolio, the Group uses margins for risk and uncertainty within liability adequacy 
tests. Margins are based on Professional Guidance of the Czech Society of Actuaries and 
are calibrated to be consistent with the Economic balance sheet (EBS)/ Market Consistent 
Embedded Value (MCEV) valuation.  

Input assumptions are updated annually based on recent experience. 

The methodology of testing considers current estimates of all future contractual cash flows 
including cash flows from embedded options and guarantees. This methodology enables 
quantification of correlation between all risks factors.  

The principal assumptions used (see notes C.2.4.1 and C.4.1) are: 

Segmentation 

The Group segments the products into several homogenous groups according to the 
characteristics of individual products (type of product and guaranteed interest rates). Each 
group is tested separately for liability adequacy. Liability inadequacies of individual groups 
are not offset against surpluses arising on other groups in determining the additional liability 
to be established. 

The net present value of future cash flows calculated using the assumptions described below 
is compared with the insurance liabilities. This is done separately for each product group. If 
that comparison shows that the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities is inadequate in 
the light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency is recognised in profit or 
loss, by establishing an additional provision. 

Mortality and morbidity  

Mortality and morbidity are based on statistical investigations of the Groupôs mortality and 
morbidity experience over the last 15 years and supported by data supplied by the Czech 
Statistical Office and the German probabilities of Dread Disease prognosis. For pension 
insurance, the Group uses generation mortality tables, developed in co-operation with 
Munich Re, that allow for future mortality assessment improvements. 

Assumptions for mortality and morbidity are adjusted by margins for risk and uncertainty. 

Persistency 

Future contractual premiums are included without any allowance for premium indexation. 
Estimates for lapses and surrenders are based on the Groupôs past experience with 
insurance policies (split by type, policy term and policy durations). The Group regularly 
investigates its actual persistency rates by product type and duration and amends its 
assumptions accordingly.  

The assumptions as derived above are adjusted by a margin for risk and uncertainty. 

Expense  

Estimates for future renewal and maintenance expenses included in the liability adequacy 
test are derived from the Groupôs statistical data. The Groupôs estimate of annual inflation for 
particular expense items is used to allow for future expense inflation. The resulting annual 
expense inflation is 3% (in 2009: 2.63% ï 4.22%). 

The assumptions are adjusted by a margin for risk and uncertainty. 

Discount rate 

The Group discounts all expected cash flows at a rate equal to the risk-free rate less 0.25%. 
Derivation of the risk-free yield curve is based on Czech government bonds. 
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Interest rate guarantee 

The Group makes an additional allowance for the potential volatility of actual investment 
returns compared to the risk-free rate. The interest rate guarantee is calculated using internal 
model calibrated to MCEV valuation (Market Consistent Embedded Valuation) of financial 
options and guarantees (FO&G) which is considered to be a more relevant valuation of 
financial options embedded in the Groupôs portfolio compared to previously used valuation 
model (see C.4.1.1). 

Profit sharing 

While, for most life assurance policies, the amount and timing of the bonus to policyholders is 
at the discretion of the Group, the assessment of liability adequacy future discretionary 
bonuses, calculated as a fixed percentage of the excess of the risk-free rate over the 
guaranteed technical interest rate on individual policies takes into account. The percentage 
applied is consistent with the Groupôs current business practice and expectations for bonus 
allocation.  

Annuity option 

The option to choose between a lump sum payment and an annuity is available to 
policyholders under pension insurance. For the purposes of the liability adequacy test, the 
Group assumes an annuity option take-up rate increasing from the level of 1% ï 3% to  
10% ï 20% in the long-term horizon for all eligible policyholders. 

C.2.3.2 Investment contracts with Discretionary Participation Features (DPF)  

Investments contracts with DPF are included within the liability adequacy test for life 
insurance as described above. 

C.2.3.3 Non-life insurance  

Contrary to life insurance, insurance liabilities connected with non-life insurance are 
calculated by using current (not historical) assumptions and therefore no additional liabilities 
are established for outstanding claims as a result of a liability adequacy test.  

The liability adequacy test for non-life insurance is therefore limited to the unexpired portion 
of existing contracts. It is performed by comparing the expected value of claims and 
expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the end of the reporting 
period with the amount of unearned premiums in relation to such policies after deducting 
deferred acquisition costs. Expected cash flows relating to claims and expenses are 
estimated by reference to the experience during the expired portion of the contract, adjusted 
for significant individual losses which are not expected to recur. 

The test is performed by product groups which comprise insurance contracts with a similar 
risk profile. 

For annuities, the assumptions used to establish the provision include all future updated cash 
flows with changes being recognised immediately in the income statement. As such, no 
separate liability adequacy test is required to be performed. 

C.2.4 Significant variables  

Profit or loss recognised in insurance contracts and insurance liabilities are mainly sensitive 
to changes in mortality, lapse rates, expense rates, discount rates and annuitisation which 
are estimated for calculating adequate value of insurance liabilities during the LAT.  

The Group has estimated the impact on profit for the year and equity as at the year end of 
changes in key variables that have a material impact on them. 
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C.2.4.1 Life insurance  

In CZK million for the year ended 31 December 2010  

Variable Change in variable Change in P/L 
Change in insurance 

liabilities 

Mortality 10% (38) 38 

Lapse rate (10%) (11) 11 

Expense rate 10% (45) 45 

Discount rate  
100 bp 572 (572) 

(100) bp (1,159) 1,159 

Annuitisation 10% (12) 12 

    

In CZK million for the year ended 31 December 2009  

Variable Change in variable Change in P/L 
Change in insurance 

liabilities 

Mortality 10% (30) 30 

Lapse rate (10%) (4) 4 

Expense rate 10% (65) 65 

Discount rate  
100 bp 667 (667) 

(100) bp (1,387) 1,387 

Annuitisation 10% (10) 10 

Changes in variables represent reasonably possible changes in variables mentioned which 
could have occurred and would have led to significant changes in insurance liabilities as at 
the end of the reporting period. The reasonably possible changes represent neither expected 
changes in variables nor worst case scenarios.  

The analysis does not include reinsurance, as the only significant reinsured life insurance 
product is an accident rider that does not bring about the liabilitiesô inadequacy and therefore 
is not subject to LAT. Other life insurance products, which are reinsured, are insignificant in 
the sum at risk.  

The analysis has been prepared for a change in variables with all other assumptions 
remaining constant and ignores changes in the values of the related assets. 

Sensitivity was always calculated for the worse direction in movement (with the exception of 
discount rate, where both scenarios are presented); therefore, sensitivity to changes in 
mortality was calculated for a 10% decrease in mortality for pension products and a 10% 
increase in mortality for other types of products, sensitivity to changes in lapse rates was 
calculated to decrease by 10%, sensitivity to changes in expense rates and annuitisation 
(take-up rate) was calculated to increase by 10%. 

The income statement and insurance liabilities are mostly influenced by a change in the 
discount rate in both directions. Hence changes in discount rates are stated in 100 basis 
points for both directions. 

C.2.4.2 Non-life insurance  

In non-life insurance, variables that would have the greatest impact on insurance liabilities 
relate to annuities. 

The key variable in the calculation of the provision for the annuities is a discount rate. A 100 
bp decrease in the discount rate would lead to a CZK 742 million (2009: CZK 775 million) 
increase in the liability. 

An increase in wages and disability pensions that also significantly influences the amount 
of annuities to be paid is dependent on a pension growth rate. A 100 bp increase in the 
pension growth rate would lead to a CZK 602 million (2009: CZK 628 million) increase in the 
liability. 

Considering a reinsurance effect a 100 bp decrease in the discount rate would lead to a  
CZK 457 million (2009: CZK 471 million) increase in the liability and a 100 bp increase in the 
pension growth rate would lead to a CZK 377 million (2009: CZK 388 million) increase in the 
liability.  
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C.3 Terms and conditions of insurance and investment contracts with DPF 
that have a material impact on the amount, timing and uncertainty of 
future cash flows  

C.3.1 Non-life insurance contracts  

The Group offers many forms of general insurance, mainly motor insurance, property 
insurance and liability insurance. Contracts may be concluded for a fixed term of one year or 
on a continuous basis with either party having the option to cancel at 8 weeksô notice. The 
Group is therefore generally able to re-price the risk by revising the premium at intervals of 
not more than one year. It also has the ability to impose deductibles and reject fraudulent 
claims. 

Future insurance claims are the main source of uncertainty which influences the amount and 
the timing of future cash flows.  

The amount of particular claim payments is limited by the sum insured which is established in 
the insurance policy. 

The other significant source of uncertainty connected with non-life insurance arises from 
legislative regulations which entitle the policyholder to report a claim before the time 
of expiration, which usually lasts 3-4 years from the date, when the policyholder becomes 
aware of the claim. This feature is particularly significant in case of permanent disability 
arising from accident insurance, because of the difficulty in estimating the period between 
occurrence and confirmation of permanent effects.  

The following statements describe characteristics of particular types of insurance contracts if 
they are significantly different from the above-mentioned features. 

Motor insurance 

The Group motor portfolio comprises both motor third party liability insurance (MTPL) and 
motor (casco) insurance. MTPL insurance covers bodily injury claims and property claims in 
the Czech Republic as well as claims caused abroad by insured motorists under the Green 
Card system.  

Property damage under MTPL and casco claims are generally reported and settled within a 
short period of the accident occurring. Payments relating to bodily injury claims, however, 
take longer to finalise and are more difficult to estimate. Such claims may be settled in the 
form of a lump-sum settlement or an annuity. 

For claims relating to bodily injury and related losses of earnings, the amount of the related 
claim payments is derived from governmental decree. This requirement may have a 
retrospective effect on claims incurred before the effective date of this requirement. 

Policyholders are entitled to a no-claims-bonus on renewal of their policy where the 
conditions are fulfilled. 

The amount of claim payment for damage of property and compensation for losses of 
earnings does not exceed CZK 100 million per claim, as well as compensation of damage to 
health. 

Casco insurance represents standard insurance against damage; claim payment is limited by 
the sum insured and the amount of participation. 
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Property insurance 

This is broadly split into Industrial and Personal lines. For Industrial lines the Group uses risk 
management techniques to identify and evaluate risks and analyse possible losses and 
hazards and also cooperates with reinsurers. Risk management techniques include primarily 
inspection visits in the industrial areas performed by risk management team which consist of 
professionals with a long term experience and deep safety rules knowledge. Personal 
property insurance consists of the standard buildings and contents insurance. 

Claims are normally notified promptly and can be settled without delay. 

Liability insurance 

This covers all types of liabilities and includes commercial liabilities, directors and officers 
and professional indemnity as well as personal liability. 

While the majority of general liability coverage is written on a "claims-made basis", certain 
general liability coverage is typically insured on an "occurrence basis".  

Accident insurance 

Accident insurance is traditionally sold as an add-on to the life products offered by the Group 
and is included in the life insurance segment. Only a small part of accident insurance is sold 
without life insurance. 

C.3.2 Life insurance contracts  

Bonuses 

Over 90% of the Groupôs life insurance contracts include an entitlement to receive a bonus. 
Bonuses to policyholders are granted at the discretion of the Group and are recognised when 
proposed and approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with the relevant legal 
requirements. Once allocated to policyholders, bonuses are guaranteed (see note C.1.32.3). 

Premiums 

Premiums may be payable in regular instalments or as a single premium at the inception of 
the policy. Most endowment-type insurance contracts contain a premium indexation option 
which may be exercised at the discretion of the policyholder annually. Where the option is 
not exercised, premiums are not increased with inflation. 

Term life insurance products 

Traditional term life insurance products comprise risk of death, waiver of premium in case of 
permanent disability and accident rider. Premium is paid regularly or as a single premium. 
Policies offer fixed or decreasing sum insured of death. The policies offer protection from a 
few years up to medium long-term. Death benefits are paid only if the policyholder dies 
during the term of insurance. A waiver of premium arises only in case of an approved 
disability pension of the policyholder. 

The period of disability is the main source of uncertainty connected with life insurance 
products. It is limited by contractual minimum duration of the insurance policy and by the end 
of the insurance period. 
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Endowment products 

These are also traditional term life insurance products providing life-long financial protection. 
Many long-term policies have tax advantages and give the insured the possibility to finance 
their needs in retirement. Capital life insurance products for regular or single premium offers 
covering risk of death, endowment, deadly diseases, waiver of premium in case of disability 
and accident rider. Insurance benefits are usually paid as a lump-sum. 

Variable capital life insurance products 

Variable capital life insurance products offer all types of insurance risk as traditional capital 
life insurance products. In addition, they offer the policyholder the possibility to pay an extra 
single premium during the term of the insurance. The policyholder can ask to interrupt 
payment for regular premium, to withdraw a part of the extra single premium, to change the 
term of insurance, risks, sums insured and premium. 

Childrenôs insurance products 

These products are based on traditional life risk: death or endowment of assured, waiver of 
premium in case of disability and accident rider. They are paid regularly. The term of 
insurance is usually limited by the 18th birthday of the child for which the policy is negotiated. 
Benefits may be in the form of a lump-sum or annuity payment. 

Unit-linked life insurance 

Unit-linked are those products where the policyholders carry the investment risk.  

The Group earns management and administration fees and mortality results on these 
products. 

Unit-linked life insurance combines traditional term life insurance, with risks of death or dread 
diseases together with waiver of premium in case of permanent disability, and the possibility 
to invest regular premium or extra single premium to some investment funds. The 
policyholder defines funds and ratio of premium where payments are invested and can 
change the funds and ratio during the contract. He can also change sums assured, regular 
premium, and insurance risks. He can pay an additional single premium or withdraw a part of 
extra single premium. 

Retirement insurance for regular payments (with interest rates) 

Life-long retirement programme products include all kinds of pensions paid off in case of 
death, dread diseases or maturity of agreed age of assured, options for variable combination 
of component. The policyholder can pay the premium regularly or in a single payment. Basic 
types of pension are short-term pension and lifetime pension. 

C.3.3 Investment contracts with DPF  

Adult deposit life or accident insurance with returnable lump-sum principal 

These types of life or accident products allow policyholders to pay a single returnable deposit 
at the beginning of the policy. The interest earned on the deposit is used to pay the annual 
premiums. The deposit is returned at the end of assurance or on death or other claim event. 
These contracts also entitle the policyholder to a discretionary bonus, determined as under 
life insurance contracts. 
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C.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements   

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. 

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting 
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The 
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed 
below. 

C.4.1 Assumptions used to calculate insurance liabilities  

The Group uses certain assumptions when calculating its insurance liabilities. The process 
used to determine the assumptions that have the greatest effect on the measurement of the 
items in the Groupôs financial statements, and the effects of changes in the assumptions that 
would have a material effect on the recognised amounts, are discussed in note C.2.4. 

C.4.1.1 Change in assumptions in Liability Adequacy Test  

The Group uses margins for risk and uncertainty (MVM) to reflect the level of uncertainty in 
the future development of underlying assumptions used in Liability adequacy testing (LAT). 
In previous years the margins were applied on level generally recommended in Professional 
Guidance of the Czech Society of Actuaries. As at the end of 2010, the Group calibrated the 
margins according to a result of risk valuation in the internal Economic Balance Sheet model 
(EBS) and Market Consistent Embedded Valuation (MCEV), which is considered to be a 
more relevant valuation of risks embedded in the Groupôs portfolio. 

For the purpose of harmonisation with MCEV valuation, the Group has also reassessed the 
valuation of insurance contracts financial options and guarantees. In previous years the 
value of insurance contracts financial options and guarantees has been calculated using a 
general stochastic option pricing model. As at the end of 2010, the valuation model was 
calibrated to a result of financial options and guarantees in MCEV valuation where more 
sophisticated techniques are used, including a complex view on assets and liabilities of the 
Group. 

The table below demonstrates the impact of the change of individual parameters on LAT 
provision and Gross insurance benefits and claims in the income statement.  

In CZK million, for the year ended 31 December 2010 

 

LAT Provision Relative change 

Before the change 1,807  

Change in MVM (403) (22%) 

Change in Option valuation (694) (38%) 

After the change 710  

It is not practical to estimate the future impact of this change in the accounting estimate, 
because the LAT provision is not predictable for future periods. 

C.4.2 Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments  

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded on an active market (for example, 
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses its 
judgement to select a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based on 
the market conditions existing as at each end of the reporting period (see also note C.1.5). 
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C.5 Changes in accounting policies  

C.5.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing stand ards relevant for 
the Group and applied in the reporting period  

The following published amendments and interpretations of existing standards are 
mandatory and relevant to the Group and have been applied by the Group since 1 January 
2010: 

Amendments to IFRIC 9 ï Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and IAS 39 ï Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (effective for annual periods ending on or after  
30 June 2009, endorsed by the EU for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010, 
earlier application is permitted). 

The amendments to IFRIC 9 and IAS 39 clarify the treatment of derivative financial 
instruments embedded in other contracts when a hybrid financial asset is reclassified out of 
the fair value through profit or loss category. 

The reclassification amendment issued by IASB in October 2008 allows entities to reclassify 
particular financial instruments out of the óat fair value through profit or lossô category in 
specific circumstances. The amendments to IFRIC 9 and IAS 39 clarify that on 
reclassification of a financial asset out of the óat fair value through profit or lossô category all 
embedded derivatives have to be assessed and, if necessary, separately accounted for in 
financial statements. 

The amendments do not have any material effect on the Groupôs financial statements. 

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (issued in April 2009; 
amendments to IFRS 2, IAS 38, IFRIC 9 and IFRIC 16 are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2009; amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 8, IAS 1, IAS 7, IAS 17, IAS 
36 and IAS 39 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010).  

The improvements consist of a mixture of substantive changes and clarifications in the 
following standards and interpretations:  
- clarification that contributions of businesses in common control transactions and 

formation of joint ventures are not within the scope of IFRS 2;  
- clarification of disclosure requirements set by IFRS 5 and other standards for non-current 

assets (or disposal groups) classified as held-for-sale or discontinued operations;  
- requiring to report a measure of total assets and liabilities for each reportable segment 

under IFRS 8 only if such amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision 
maker;  

- amending IAS 1 to allow classification of certain liabilities settled by entityôs own equity 
instruments as non-current;  

- changing IAS 7 such that only expenditures that result in a recognised asset are eligible 
for classification as investing activities; 

- allowing classification of certain long-term land leases as finance leases under IAS 17 
even without transfer of ownership of the land at the end of the lease;  

- providing additional guidance in IAS 18 for determining whether an entity acts as a 
principal or an agent;  

- clarification in IAS 36 that a cash-generating unit shall not be larger than an operating 
segment before aggregation;  

- supplementing IAS 38 regarding measurement of fair value of intangible assets acquired 
in a business combination;  

- amending IAS 39 (i) to include in its scope option contracts that could result in business 
combinations, (ii) to clarify the period of reclassifying gains or losses on cash-flow 
hedging instruments from equity to profit or loss and (iii) to state that a prepayment option 
is closely related to the host contract if upon exercise the borrower reimburses economic 
loss of the lender;  

- amending IFRIC 9 to state that embedded derivatives in contracts acquired in common 
control transactions and formation of joint ventures are not within its scope; and  

- removing the restriction in IFRIC 16 that hedging instruments may not be held by the 
foreign operation that itself is being hedged.  
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The improvements do not have any material effect on the Groupôs financial statements. 

Eligible Hedged Items - Amendment to IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement (effective with retrospective application for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2009).  

The amendment clarifies how the principles that determine whether a hedged risk or portion 
of cash flows is eligible for designation should be applied in particular situations. The 
amendment has no impact on the Group. 

IFRS 3, Business Combinations (revised January 2008; effective for business combinations 
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period 
beginning on or after 1 July 2009).  

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition method to business combinations, 
with some significant changes. For example, all payments to purchase a business are to be 
recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent payments classified as debt 
subsequently re-measured through the profit and loss account. There is a choice on an 
acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair 
value or at the non-controlling interestôs proportionate share of the acquireeôs net assets. All 
acquisition related costs should be expensed. The revised standard does not to have any 
impact on the Groupôs financial statements; however, it will have impact on future 
acquisitions. There was no business combination in 2010, which would require the 
application of IFRS 3 (revised). 

IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (revised January 2008; effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009).  

The revised IAS 27 will require an entity to attribute total comprehensive income to the 
owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interest (previously ñminority interestsò) even 
if this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance (the current standard 
requires the excess losses to be allocated to the owners of the parent in most cases).  

The revised standard specifies that changes in a parentôs ownership interest in a subsidiary 
that do not result in the loss of control must be accounted for as equity transactions. It also 
specifies how an entity should measure any gain or loss arising on the loss of control of a 
subsidiary. As at the date when control is lost, any investment retained in the former 
subsidiary will have to be measured at its fair value.  

The amendment to the standard does not have any significant impact on the Groupôs 
financial statements due to insignificant amounts of non-controlling interest. 

C.5.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are 
not relevant for the Groupôs financial statements  

Amendment to IAS 32: Classification of Right issues (effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 February 2010). 

IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers (effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2009, endorsed by the EU for annual periods beginning on or after 31 October 
2009).  

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions - Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-
based Payment (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010).  

IFRS 1 - First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (following an 
amendment in November 2008, effective for the first IFRS financial statements for a period 
beginning on or after 1 July 2009, endorsed by the EU for annual periods beginning on or 
after 31 December 2009).  

IFRIC 17 - Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners (effective on or after 1 July 2009). 
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C.5.3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are 
not yet effective and are relevant for the Groupôs financial statements 

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have 
been published and are mandatory and relevant for the Groupôs accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2011 but have not been applied earlier by the Group: 

IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures (amended November 2009, effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2011).  

IAS 24 was revised in 2009 by:  

(a) simplifying the definition of a related party, clarifying its intended meaning and 
eliminating inconsistencies from the definition; and 

(b) providing a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements for government-related 
entities.  

The revised standard has no impact on disclosures in the Groupôs financial statements. 

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures ï Transfers of Financial Assets 
(issued in October 2010, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011, not 
yet endorsed by the EU).  

The amendment requires additional disclosures in respect of risk exposures arising from 
transferred financial assets. The amendment includes a requirement to disclose by class of 
asset the nature, carrying amount and a description of the risks and rewards of financial 
assets that have been transferred to another party yet remain on the entity's statement 
financial position. Disclosures are also required to enable a user to understand the amount of 
any associated liabilities, and the relationship between the financial assets and associated 
liabilities. Where financial assets have been derecognised but the entity is still exposed to 
certain risks and rewards associated with the transferred assets, additional disclosure is 
required to enable the effects of those risks to be understood.  

The amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group 's financial 
statements. 

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (issued in November 2009, effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted, not yet endorsed by 
the EU).  

IFRS 9 replaces those parts of IAS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of 
financial assets and financial liabilities. Key features are as follows: 

- financial assets are required to be classified into two measurement categories: those to 
be measured subsequently at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at 
amortised cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition. The classification 
depends on the entityôs business model for managing its financial instruments and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument; 

- an instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if it is a debt instrument 
and both (i) the objective of the entityôs business model is to hold the asset to collect the 
contractual cash flows, and (ii) the assetôs contractual cash flows represent only 
payments of principal and interest (that is, it has only ñbasic loan featuresò). All other debt 
instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss;  

- all equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair value. Equity instruments 
that are held-for-trading will be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other 
equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition, to 
recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses through other 
comprehensive income rather than profit or loss. There is to be no recycling of fair value 
gains and losses to profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. This election may be 
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be presented in profit or 
loss, as long as they represent a return on investment; and 

- financial liabilities are recognised similarly to currently applicable IAS 39. 
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The Group is considering the implications of the standard, the impact on the Group and the 
timing of its adoption by the Group, which depends on its endorsement by the EU. 

Annual improvements to IFRS (issued in May 2010, effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 July 2010 for amendments to IFRS 3R and amendments arising as a result of IAS 
27 (2008) apply prospectively; and 1 January 2011 for the others, with retrospective 
applications in accordance with IAS8, not yet endorsed by EU). 

The amendments are usually very specific to certain issues and result in changes to only one 
or two paragraphs for each impacted accounting standard. The amended standards are: 
IFRS 3 ï Business Combinations ï transition requirements for contingent consideration from 
a business combination that occurred before the effective date of the revised IFRS, 
measurement of non-controlling interest, un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based 
payment awards, IFRIC 13 ï Customer Loyalty Programmes ï fair value of awards credits, 
IFRS 7 ï Financial Instruments: Disclosures ï clarifies disclosures about the nature and 
extent of risks arising from financial instruments, IAS 1 ï Presentation of Financial 
Statements ï beginning/end of period reconciliations for changes resulting from other 
comprehensive income for each component of equity can be either detailed in the notes to or 
in the Statement of Changes in equity, IAS 27 ï Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements ï Amendments to IAS 21, IAS 28 and IAS 31 arising from the revision of IAS 27 
in 2008 apply prospectively, IAS 34 ï Interim Financial Reporting ï general principles for 
interim financial reporting, when an entity publishes a set of condensed financial statements. 

The improvements are not expected to have a material impact on the Groupôs financial 
statements.  

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets. 

The IASB issued amendments to IAS 12 on 20 December 2010. IAS 12 requires an entity to 
measure the deferred tax relating to an asset depending on whether the entity expects to 
recover the carrying amount of the asset through use or sale. It can be difficult and subjective 
to assess whether recovery will be through use or through sale when the asset is measured 
using the fair value model in IAS 40 Investment Property. The amendment provides a 
practical solution to the problem by introducing a presumption that recovery of the carrying 
amount will, normally, be through sale. 

C.5.4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are 
not yet effective and that are not relevant for the Groupôs financial  statements  

IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments (effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010).  

Amendment to IFRIC 14 - Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011).  

IFRS 1 amendment - limited exemption from comparative IFRS 7 disclosures for first-time 
adopters (The proposed amendment will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 July 2010).  

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International financial reporting Standards 
(effective from 1 July 2011). 

Classification of rights issues (amendment to IAS 32), issued in October 2009 (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010). 

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets (effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011). 
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C.5.5 IFRS 4 - exposure draft on Insurance contracts  

The IASB (ñthe boardò) released an exposure draft on 30 July 2010 proposing a 
comprehensive standard to address recognition, measurement and disclosure for insurance 
contracts. The board expects to issue the final standard in mid 2011 but has not yet 
proposed an effective date. Retrospective application will be required but with some practical 
expedients for transition.  

The proposals retain the IFRS 4 definition of an insurance contract but amend the scope to 
exclude fixed fee service contracts but some financial guarantee contracts may now be 
within the scope of the proposed standard. 

The proposals would require an insurer to measure its insurance contracts using a current 
measurement model. The measurement approach is based on the following building blocks: 
a current, unbiased and probability-weighted average of future cash flows expected to arise 
as the insurer fulfils the contract; the effect of time value of money; an explicit risk adjustment 
and a residual margin calibrated so that no profit is recognised on inception. 



Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

53 

D. Segment reporting  

The Board of Directors as a Groupôs chief operating decision maker makes decisions on how 
to allocate resources and assesses performance of three operating segments: the Ļesk§ 
pojiġŠovna life insurance operating segment, Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna non-life insurance operating 
segment, pension funds. These segments represent a component of the Group: 

¶ that engages in business activities from which the Group may earn revenues and incur 
expenses; 

¶ whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the management of the Group to 
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its 
performance; and 

¶ for which discrete financial information is available. 

The Group comprises Non-life insurance, Life insurance and Pension funds as the main 
business segments. Note C.3 of the financial statements provides further information about 
significant terms and conditions of insurance products. 

Products offered by reported business segments include: 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

2t [ƛŦŜ 15,656 13,585 

Traditional life insurance 11,547 12,292 

Unit link insurance  4,109 1,293 

2t bƻƴ-life 21,452 25,056 

Motor 11,357 12,946 

Personal 3,747 3,692 

Hull (cargo, marine and aviation) 212 193 

Commercial 5,433 7,547 

Non-life accidents - individual 703 678 

Pension funds 1,628 1,516 

Investment income 1,628 1,516 

 
38,736 40,157 

The Board of directors assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a 
measure of profit after taxes for all segments and for insurance segments the results are also 
measured based on net technical results.  
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The segment information provided to the Board of Directors for the reportable segments for 
the year ended 31 December 2010 is as follows: 

(CZK million) CP Life CP Non-life 
Pension 
funds Total 

Gross         

Insurance premiums 15,656 21,452 - 37,108 

Technical benefits and claims (10,164) (14,272) - (24,436) 

Total costs  (2,866)  (5,463) -  (8,329) 

     Commissions and other acquisition costs  (1,919)  (3,937) -  (5,856) 

     Administration expenses  (947)  (1,526) -  (2,473) 

Other technical items  (120) 40 -  (80) 

Gross technical result 2,506 1,757 - 4,263 

          

Reinsurance     -   

Premiums ceded to reinsurers  (1,172)  (9,586) -  (10,758) 

Reinsurer's share on claims 307 6,100 - 6,407 

Total costs 291 2,137 - 2,428 

     Commissions and other acquisition costs 291 2,137 - 2,428 

Reinsurance technical result  (574)  (1,349) -  (1,923) 

          

Net         

Insurance premiums 14,484 11,866 - 26,350 

Technical benefits and claims  (9,857)  (8,172) -  (18,029) 

Total costs  (2,575)  (3,326) -  (5,901) 

     Commissions and other acquisition costs  (1,628)  (1,800) -  (3,428) 

     Administration expenses  (947)  (1,526) -  (2,473) 

Other technical items  (120) 40 -  (80) 

Net technical result 1,932 408 - 2,340 

          

Total financial investments income 10,340 1,757 12,097 

          

Acquisition expenses relating to investment contracts -  (567)  (567) 

Total other income and expenses (292)  (68)  (360) 

Income taxes (1,188) -  (1,188) 

          

Profit after taxes 11,200 1,122 12,322 

          

Contribution of other segments       1,083 

Elimination of dividends        (1,151) 

Other intercompany eliminations        (379) 

Other consolidation adjustments        (1,971) 

Reconciliation to the income statement        (3,501) 

     Net profit of the year       9,904 
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The segment information provided to the Board of Directors for the reportable segments for 
the year ended 31 December 2009 is as follows: 

(CZK million) CP Life CP Non-life 
Pension 
funds Total 

Gross         

Insurance premiums 13,600 25,056 - 38,656 

Technical benefits and claims  (7,622)  (14,750) -  (22,372) 

Total costs  (2,970)  (5,665) -  (8,635) 

     Commissions and other acquisition costs  (1,971)  (4,073) -  (6,044) 

     Administration expenses  (999)  (1,592) -  (2,591) 

Other technical items  (122)  (120) -  (242) 

Gross technical result 2,886 4,521 - 7,407 

          

Reinsurance         

Premiums ceded to reinsurers  (1,157)  (10,076)    (11,233) 

Reinsurer's share on claims 308 5,115   5,423 

Total costs 288 2,296   2,584 

     Commissions and other acquisition costs 288 2,296   2,584 

Other technical items - 56   56 

Reinsurance technical result  (561)  (2,609) -  (3,170) 

          

Net         

Insurance premiums 12,443 14,980 - 27,423 

Technical benefits and claims  (7,315)  (9,634) -  (16,949) 

Total costs  (2,682)  (3,369) -  (6,051) 

     Commissions and other acquisition costs  (1,683)  (1,777) -  (3,460) 

     Administration expenses  (999)  (1,592) -  (2,591) 

Other technical items  (122)  (64) -  (186) 

Net technical result 2,324 1,913 - 4,237 

          

Total financial investments income 5,141 2,378 7,519 

          

Acquisition expenses relating to investment contracts -  (748)  (748) 

Total other income and expenses (593)  (107)  (700) 

Income taxes (1,405) -  (1,405) 

          

Profit after taxes 7,380 1,523 8,903 

          

Contribution of other segments       1,616 

          Elimination of dividends        (689) 

     Other intercompany eliminations       197 

     Gains/losses relating to disposal of subsidiaries        (1,069) 

     Other consolidation adjustments        (128) 

Reconciliation to the income statement        (1,689) 

          

Net profit of the year       8,830 

Nearly all segment revenues in 2010 and 2009 are generated from sales to external 
customers. There is no single external customer that would amount to 10 percent or more of 
the Groupôs revenues. 
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The following table represents the reconciliation of gross insurance premiums reported in the 
segment report and the income statement: 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

CP Life 15,656 13,601 

CP Non-life 21,452 25,056 

Other segments 557 445 

Elimination of intragroup transactions  (1)  (2) 

Insurance premiums in the income statement 37,664 39,100 

The following table shows key figures per business segment: 

2010         

(CZK million) CP Life CP Non-life Pension funds Others 

Segment revenue 15,656 21,452 1,628 900 

Capital expenditure (228) (350) (24) (13) 

Interest income 2,325 729 936 153 

Interest expense (15) (14) - (43) 

Depreciation and amortisation (210) (392) (31) (17) 

Impairment losses recognised (39) (98) - (4) 

     2009         

(CZK million) CP Life CP Non-life Pension funds Others 

Segment revenue 13,601 25,056 1,516 828 

Capital expenditure (270) (356) (6) (11) 

Interest income 2,637 776 2,053 184 

Interest expense (18) (27) - (6) 

Depreciation and amortisation (193) (444) (28) (17) 

Impairment losses recognised (345) (223) (18) (13) 

Segment assets and liabilities are not regularly included in the reports provided to the Board 
of Directors. 

Geographical information  

Total assets are allocated as follows: 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Czech Republic 181,753 174,934 

Russia - 3,878 

Other 1,414 1,350 

Total 183,167 180,162 

The Group operates mainly in the Czech Republic and in other CEE countries (see note A.1). 
The annual decline in total assets in Russia is due to the disposal of Generali PPF Life 
Insurance LLC (see note B.1). 

The geographical structure of total costs incurred to acquire segment assets that are 
expected to be used during more than one period is highly concentrated in the Czech 
Republic, the share of other countries is not significant. 

Gross earned premiums from insurance business (including both life and non-life) are set out 
below by country: 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Czech Republic 37,492 38,999 

Other 172 101 

Total 37,664 39,100 
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E. Risk report 

In the risk report the Group presents further information in order to enable an assessment of 
the significance of financial instruments and insurance contracts for an entity's financial 
position and performance. Furthermore, the Group provides information about its exposure to 
risks arising from financial instruments and insurance contracts, and it discloses the 
management's objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks, in accordance 
with IFRS 7. 

E.1 Risk Management System  

The Group is a member of the Generali Group and is part of its risk management structure. 
The Generali Group has implemented a risk management system that aims at identifying, 
evaluating and monitoring the most important risks to which the Generali Group and the 
Group are exposed, which means the risks whose consequences could affect the solvency of 
the Generali Group or the solvency of any single business unit, or negatively hamper any 
Group goals. 

The risk management processes apply to the whole Generali Group, all the countries where 
it operates and each business unit. However, the degree of integration and depth varies with 
the complexity of the underlying risks. Integration of processes within the Generali Group is 
fundamental to assure an efficient system of risk management and capital allocation for 
every business unit. 

The main objectives of the risk management processes of Generali Group is to maintain the 
identified risks below an acceptable level, to optimize the capital allocation and to improve 
the risk-adjusted performance. 

In 2010, Risk Management guidelines of the Group related to investment risk management, 
the system of limits, credit ratings and guidelines on an approval process for new instruments 
were introduced as well as the investment risk reporting for management on monthly basis. 

The risk management system is based on three main pillars: 

a) risk measurement process: aimed at assessing the solvency of the Group as well as all 
individual units, 

b) risk governance process: aimed at defining and controlling the managerial decisions in 
relation with relevant risks, 

c) risk management culture: aimed at increasing the value creation. 

E.2 Roles and responsibility  

The system is based on three levels of responsibility: 

- Assicurazioni Generali (Generali Group) ï for every country, it sets the targets in terms 
of solvency, results and risk exposure, moreover it defines the risk management policy 
through a list of Guidelines for acceptance of the main risks. The Generali Group has 
developed the Enterprise Risk Management Policy to align the risk measurement 
methodology, the governance and the reporting of each company of the Generali Group. 

- Generali PPF Holding (GPH) - defines strategies and objectives for every firm, taking 
into account the local features and regulations, providing support for the implementation 
and controlling the results. In particular, in order to assure a better solution to the 
specific features of local risks and changes in local regulation, the risk management 
responsibility and decisions are delegated to the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) of GPH 
respecting the Generali Group policy framework. Generali and GPH groups are also 
assigned performance targets for their respective areas.   

- Business Unit - defines strategies and targets for the lines of business, in respect of the 
policy and the guidelines established by GPH. Risk management involves the corporate 
governance of the Group entities and the operational and control structure, with defined 
responsibility levels, and aims to ensure the adequacy of the entire risk management 
system at every moment. 
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E.3 Risk measurement and control  

Through its insurance activity, the Group is naturally exposed to several types of risks, which 
are related to movements of financial markets, to adverse development of insurance-related 
risks, both in life and non-life business, and generally to all the risks that affect ongoing 
organised economic operations. 

These risks can be grouped in the following five main categories which will be detailed later 
in this report: market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, insurance risk and operational risk. 

Along with the specific measures for the risk categories considered by the Group, the 
calculation of the Economic Capital represents a comprehensive measure of risk that can be 
aggregated at the different organisational levels (Group, country and operative entity) and at 
the main business lines (life, non-life and asset management). 

The Economic Capital is a risk measure that corresponds to the amount of capital to be held 
so that the market value of assets is greater than the market value of liabilities in twelve 
monthsô time, with a confidence level consistent with the target rating. 

The internal models of risk measurement are constantly being improved, in particular those 
relating to calculation of the Economic Capital and Asset Liability Management (ALM) 
approaches have been harmonised at all different organisational levels within the Generali 
Group. 

E.4 Market risk  

Unexpected movements in prices of equities, real estate, currencies and interest rates might 
negatively impact the market value of the investments. 

These assets are invested to meet the obligation towards both life and non-life policyholders 
and to earn a return for the capital expected by the shareholder. The same changes might 
affect both assets and the present value of the insurance liabilities. 

The market risk of the Groupôs financial asset and liability trading positions is monitored and 
measured on a continuing basis, using a Value at Risk analysis and other methods (cash-
flow matching, duration analysis, etc.). 

Risks are monitored on a fair value basis so that some accounting categories with 
insignificant risks are omitted from further chapters. Investment portfolios therefore include all 
investments except for investment property, investments in associates, Unit-linked policies 
and some specific immaterial investments. It also includes cash and cash equivalents and 
financial liabilities. 

Trade receivables face mainly risk of credit default. Due to the short-term pattern of trade 
receivables the Group considers a market risk of trade receivables as an insignificant. 

At year-end 2010, those investments whose market risk affects the Group were of  
CZK 133,7 billion at market value1.  

 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

(CZK million)   Total fair value Weight (%) Total fair value Weight (%) 

Equities    16,599 12.4% 14,603 11.4% 

Bonds   116,948 87.4% 114,578 89.1% 

Derivatives   199 0.1% (691) -0.5% 

Total   133,746 100.0% 128,490 100.0% 

For the sensitivity analysis on market risk, please refer to section E.4.5 Risk limits and 
Market Value at Risk. The sensitivity of insurance liabilities is disclosed in note C.2.4 
Significant variables. 

                                                      
 
 
1
 Investments whose market risk affects the Group are total investments, excluding investments backing unit-

linked policies since the risk is borne by policyholders, investments in associated companies,  mortgage loans, 
receivables from banks or customers and other financial investments other than equities and bonds. 
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E.4.1 Interest  rate risk  

The Groupôs operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that 
interest-earning assets (including investments) and interest-bearing liabilities mature or 
reprice at different times or in differing amounts. In the case of floating rate assets and 
liabilities the Group is also exposed to an interest rate cash flow risk, which varies depending 
on the different repricing characteristics of the various floating rate instruments. 

Interest rate derivatives are primarily used to bridge the mismatch in the repricing of assets 
and liabilities. In some cases derivatives are used to convert certain interest-earning assets 
to floating or fixed rates to reduce the risk of losses in fair value due to interest rate changes 
or to lock-in spreads. In addition, the Group enters into interest rate swaps to fix the interest 
rates on its floating-rate debts at a certain level. 

The assets whose value is subject to interest rate risk are represented mainly by bonds.  
The below table summarises the breakdown of their carrying amount by company.  

Interest rate risk exposure         

  31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

(CZK million)   
Total carrying 

amount Weight (%) 
Total carrying 

amount Weight (%) 

2Ŝǎƪł ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴŀ  66,327 56.8% 69,449 60.7% 

PenzijnƝ Fond 2P 50,087 42.9% 44,208 38.6% 

Other companies 448 0.4% 838 0.7% 

Total   116,862 100.0% 114,495 100.0% 

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate movements is presented for the two biggest companies 
(Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna and Penzijn² Fond ĻP), since the Group exposure to interest rate 
movements is highly concentrated in these two companies. 

Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna portfolio 

The Company monitors the sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities to various standard 
and non-standard interest rate scenarios. Standard scenarios, that are considered on a 
monthly basis, include a 100 basis point (bp) parallel fall or rise in all yield curves worldwide.  

Assets are divided into 3 groups: Bonds, Interest-rate-sensitive instruments (group Interest 
rate derivatives) and others (group Money market instruments) which are almost insensitive 
to interest rate shocks. Unit-linked instruments are excluded from sensitivities due to the fact 
that investment risk is borne by the policyholders. The sensitivities shown in the following 
table concern only assets in their fair value as at the end of the year. The overall impact on 
the Companyôs position is the result of sensitivities on both the asset and liability side that 
creates a mitigating effect. 

(CZK million) 
Fair value 

100bp parallel 
increase 

100bp parallel 
decrease 

31.12.2010       

Bonds 66,396 63,596 69,621 

Money market instruments 10,717 10,716 10,723 

Interest rate derivatives (199) 326 (753) 

Total  76,914 74,638 79,591 

        

31.12.2009       

Bonds 69,615 66,271 73,470 

Money market instruments 13,640 13,632 13,653 

Interest rate derivatives 80 333 (195) 

Total  83,335 80,236 86,928 

For the sensitivity analysis please refer to note E.4.5 Risk limits and Market Value at Risk. 
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Penzijn² Fond ĻP portfolio  

Concerning Penzijn² Fond ĻP, sensitivity to interest risk movements has been calculated by 
applying a stress test (+/- 100 basis points parallel fall or rise in all yield curves) to all bond 
portfolios as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009. 

The impact is detailed in the table below.  

  31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

(CZK million)   
Income 

statement Equity 
Income 

statement Equity 

100 bp parallel 
increase 

Impact on interest income 88 - 73 - 

Impact on fair value (265) (1,795) (366) (1,565) 

Total impact (177) (1,795) (293) (1,565) 

100 bp parallel 
decrease 

Impact on interest income (88) - (73) - 

Impact on fair value 290 1,956 400 1,711 

Total impact 202 1,956 327 1,711 

E.4.2 Asset liability matching   

A substantial part of insurance liabilities may imply interest rate risk. Asset-liability 
management is significantly involved in interest rate risk management. The management of 
interest rate risk implied from the net position of assets and liabilities is a key task of asset-
liability management (ALM). 

GPH Group has an Asset and Liability Committee which is an advisory body of the Board of 
Directors and is in charge of the most strategic investments and ALM-related decisions. The 
committee is responsible for setting and monitoring the Group's strategic asset allocation in 
the main asset classes, i.e. government and corporate bonds, equities, real estate, etc. and 
also the resulting asset and liability strategic position. The objective is to establish 
appropriate return potential together with ensuring that the Group can always meet its 
obligations without undue cost and in accordance with the Group's internal and regulatory 
capital requirements. In order to guarantee the necessary expertise and mandate, the 
Committee consists of representatives of top management and of the asset management, 
risk management and ALM experts from business units. 

The ALM manages the net asset-liability positions in both, life and non-life insurance, with 
the main focus on traditional life with long-term nature and often with embedded options and 
guarantees. The insurance liabilities are analysed, including the embedded options and 
guarantees and models of future cash-flows are prepared in cooperation with actuaries. The 
models allow for all guarantees under the insurance contracts and for expected development 
of the key parameters, primarily mortality, morbidity, lapses, administration expenses. 

At first, government bonds are used to manage the net position of assets and liabilities and in 
particular its sensitivity to parallel and non-parallel shifts in the yield curve. Next, corporate 
bonds and derivatives, primarily interest rate swaps, can be used. However, in line with the 
credit risk management policy, investments in long-term and thus also high-duration 
instruments focus on government bonds. The use of interest rate swaps is limited due to their 
accounting treatment ï as their revaluation which is reported in the income statement does 
not match with the reporting of the insurance liabilities. 

There is a strategic target asset-liability interest rate position set in line with the risk and 
capital management policy ï to strictly focus on intended risks and reduce capital needed for 
risks with lower expected gain potential. The prevailing policy is to reduce this position to a 
minimum level and even though it is not possible to perfectly match future cash flows of 
assets and liabilities, the position has been substantially reduced within the last years and 
currently the parallel and non-parallel sensitivities are low. Investments in emerging long-
term government bonds also contribute to this result. 
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In addition to the management of the strategic position, there are certain limits allowed for 
tactical asset manager positions, so that asset interest rate sensitivity can deviate from the 
benchmark in a managed manner. 

E.4.3 Equity price risk  

Equity price risk is the risk that equity prices will fluctuate affecting the fair value of equity 
investments and other instruments that derive their value from a particular equity investment 
or index of equity prices. 

The Group manages its use of equity investments in response to changing market conditions 
using the following risk management tools: 

a) the portfolio is diversified, 
b) the limits for investments are set and carefully monitored. 

The equity price risk is part of the Market Value at Risk (MVaR) calculation and through it the 
equity price risk is measured (for details on the methodology, see note E.4.5). The MVaR is 
calculated for a one-year time horizon at a 99.5% confidence level. A 99% confidence level 
has been used in prior year financial statements. Comparative information has been adjusted 
to a new confidence level.  

The table below summarises the breakdown of the carrying amount of equities and 
investment fund unit portfolios by company.  

Equity risk exposure         

  31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

(CZK million)   
Total carrying 

amount weight (%) 
Total carrying 

amount weight (%) 

2Ŝǎƪł ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴŀ  11,962 72.1% 11,256 77.1% 

tŜƴȊƛƧƴƝ ŦƻƴŘ 2t 3,457 20.8% 3,198 21.9% 

Other companies 1,180 7.1% 149 1.0% 

Total   16,599 100.0% 14,603 100.0% 

Sensitivity analysis of equity prices is only presented for the two biggest companies (Ļesk§ 
pojiġŠovna and Penzijn² fond ĻP), since they represent the vast majority of the Group overall 
equity portfolio. 

Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna portfolio 

The equity price risk for Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna portfolio is part of the Market Value at Risk (MVaR) 
calculation and through it the equity price risk is measured (for details on a methodology, see 
note E.4.5). 

The positive impact of diversification can be seen in the table below.  

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Portfolio exposed to equity risk*  12,316 11,405 

Sum of MVaR for individual instrument 3,910 6,206 

Portfolio MVaR after diversification 2,522 3,147 

* The comparison of the carrying amount of equities and investment fund units with the portfolio exposed to equity risk 
requires further reconciliation: the difference is due to financial instruments classified as bonds, which nonetheless bear 
equity risk and are thusly comprised within the MVaR analysis. 

Penzijn² fond ĻP portfolio  

Concerning Penzijn² fond ĻP, equity risk evaluation has been performed by applying a stress 
test (+/- 10% change in equity prices) to all equities and investment fund unit portfolios at  
31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009. 

The impact is detailed in the table below. 

(CZK million)     31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Equity price +10% Gross impact on P&L 346 320 

Equity price -10% Gross impact on P&L (346) (320) 
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Since all Penzijn² fond ĻP equities and investment fund units are classified as Fair Value 
through Profit or Loss investments, changes in equity prices have direct impact on the 
income statement. 

E.4.4 Currency risk  

The Group is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies and through 
its assets and liabilities denominated in various currencies. The business units of the Group 
have different functional currencies.  

The currency risk is almost entirely concentrated in Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna.  

The only exception is represented by the bond portfolio held by Penzijn² fond ĻP for an 
overall amount of CZK 9,720 million at 31 December 2010 (out of which CZK 5,500 million is 
denominated in EUR and CZK 3,088 million is denominated in USD) and of  
CZK 6,283 million at 31 December 2009 (out of which CZK 3,641 million is denominated in 
EUR and CZK 1,981 million is denominated in USD). 

This exposure is however matched by the use of FX hedging derivatives, and therefore the 
net exposure of Penzijn² fond ĻP is not material. 

In light of the above-mentioned concentration, the information provided in the remaining part 
of this section concerns only the Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna portfolio.  

Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna portfolio 

The Company is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies and 
through its assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. As the currency in which 
the Company presents its financial statements is CZK, movements in the exchange rates 
between selected foreign currencies and CZK affect the Companyôs financial statements. 

The general strategy of the Company is to fully hedge currency risk exposure. The Company 
ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying and selling foreign 
currencies at spot rates when considered appropriate, or using short-term FX operations. 
The FX position is regularly monitored and the hedging instruments are reviewed on  
a monthly basis and adjusted accordingly. Derivative financial instruments are used to 
manage the potential earnings impact of foreign currency movements, including currency 
swaps, spot and forward contracts. If suitable, options and other derivatives are also 
considered and used. 

The Companyôs main foreign exposures are to European countries and the United States of 
America. Its exposures are measured mainly in Euros (ñEURò) and U.S. Dollars (ñUSDò).  

The following table shows sensitivities of the portfolio to changes in currency risk. The 
portfolio does not contain instruments covering unit-linked policies, as the investment risk is 
transferred from the Company to the policyholder. Currency shocks are considered to be a 
rise or a fall in the value of a foreign currency position by a specified percentage. Such an 
approach is in line with the Solvency II definition of a currency risk.  

Due to hedge accounting, the impact of potential increase or decrease of foreign exchange 
rates is limited and recognised through the income statement: 

31.12.2010  
(CZK million)            EUR USD CZK* Other Total 

FX investment portfolio exposure 993 209 87,684 109 88,995 

Shock up (+ 10%) 1,092 230 87,684 120 89,126 

Shock down (- 10%) 894 188 87,684 98 88,864 

      

31.12.2009  
(CZK million)            EUR USD CZK* Other Total 

FX investment portfolio exposure 1,268 177 93,035 15 94,495 

Shock up (+ 10%) 1,395 194 93,035 16 94,640 

Shock down (- 10%) 1,141 159 93,035 13 94,348 

*functional currency 
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The following table shows sensitivities of the insurance provisions to change in currency risk. 

31.12.2010  
(CZK million)            EUR USD CZK* Other Total 

FX insurance provisions exposure 1,316 22 88,981 185 90,504 

Shock up (+ 10%) 1,448 24 88,981 204 90,657 

Shock down (- 10%) 1,184 20 88,981 167 90,352 

      

31.12.2009  
(CZK million)            EUR USD CZK* Other Total 

FX insurance provisions exposure 1,171 30 87,586 162 88,949 

Shock up (+ 10%) 1,288 33 87,586 178 89,085 

Shock down (- 10%) 1,054 27 87,586 146 88,813 

*functional currency 

The following table shows the composition of financial assets and liabilities with respect to 
the main currencies: 

31.12.2010  
(CZK million)            EUR USD CZK Other Total 

Loans - - 2,345 - 2,345 

Financial assets available-for-sale 15,855 10,080 30,920 1,337 58,192 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (13,178) (9,285) 50,110 (618) 27,029 

Other investments 281 593 8,324 - 9,198 

Reinsurance assets 131 - 10,117 - 10,248 

Receivables 1,052 137 9,882 145 11,216 

Cash and cash equivalents 2 - 219 1 222 

Total 4,143 1,525 111,917 865 118,450 

      

31.12.2010  
(CZK million)            EUR USD CZK Other Total 

Insurance provisions 1,316 22 88,981 185 90,504 

Financial liabilities 1,947 1,202 (2,568) 615 1,196 

Payables 186 78 6,605 17 6,886 

Other liabilities - - 1,843 - 1,843 

Total 3,449 1,302 94,861 817 100,429 

      

Net foreign currency position ς 2010 694 223 17,056 48 18,021 

 
31.12.2009  
(CZK million)            EUR USD CZK Other Total 

Loans - - 7,861 - 7,861 

Financial assets held-to-maturity - - 87 - 87 

Financial assets available-for-sale 12,367 8,182 35,603 458 56,610 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,604 (159) 24,932 (251) 26,126 

Other investments 207 1,238 7,193 102 8,740 

Reinsurance assets 10 9 9,221 1 9,241 

Receivables 1,965 121 6,142 99 8,327 

Cash and cash equivalents 13 30 110 2 155 

Total  16,165 9,421 91,150 411 117,147 

 

31.12.2009  
(CZK million)            EUR USD CZK Other Total 

Insurance provisions 1,171 30 87,586 162 88,949 

Financial liabilities 12,857 9,113 (20,344) 298 1,924 

Payables 940 32 8,630 116 9,718 

Other liabilities - - 1,957 - 1,957 

Total 14,968 9,175 77,829 576 102,548 

      

Net foreign currency position ς 2009 1,198 246 13,320 (165) 14,599 
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E.4.5 Risk limits and Market Value at Risk  

The principal tools used to measure and control market risk exposure within the investment 
portfolios of the Parent Company Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna are a system of risk limits and Market 
Value at Risk (MVaR). 

The system includes single and total limits on foreign currency (FX), interest rate (IR) and 
equity (EQ) risks. The primarily aim of the system of limits is to control exposure to single 
type of risks. Limits are monitored on daily basis and allow Risk Management to take 
immediate action and actively manage the level of the undertaken risks. 

Risk Management uses the combination of the system of limits and MVaR as an effective 
tool for entire RM system which allows taking operative short-term measures and monitor 
risks on long-term basis as well. 

Value at Risk represents the potential losses from adverse changes in market factors for a 
specified time period and confidence level. The approach, based on JP Morgan Risk Metrics 
methodology, calculates the Value at Risk using a covariance matrix of relative changes in 
market factors and net present value of actual positions assuming that these relative 
changes are normally distributed. The MVaR is calculated for a one-year time horizon at a 
99.5% confidence level. 

The assumptions on which the MVaR model is based give rise to some limitations, especially 
the following:  

a) A holding period assumes that it is possible to hedge or dispose of positions within that 
period. This is considered to be a realistic assumption in almost all cases but may not 
be the case in situations in which there is severe market illiquidity for a prolonged 
period.  

b) A confidence level of 99.5% for a one-year time horizon does not reflect losses that 
may occur beyond this level. Even within the model used, there is 0.5 percent 
probability that losses could exceed the MVaR.  

c) The methodology is applicable to instruments with a linear relationship between 
position value and market risk factors. In the case of nonlinearity (e.g. for options), the 
analytical delta/gamma approximation is used. 

d) MVaR is calculated on an end-of-day basis and does not reflect exposures that may 
arise on positions during the trading day. 

e) The use of historical data as a basis for determining the possible range of future 
outcomes may not always cover all possible scenarios, especially those of an 
exceptional nature. The model is also very sensitive on the length of the historical data 
used as an input and therefore the Company also considers the purpose of the MVaR 
analysis when determining it. For regular calculations (as disclosed below), data for the 
most recent quarter is used as this best reflects the current market conditions. For 
longer-term analysis (such as determination of investment policies), longer data series 
are considered. 

f) The MVaR measure is dependent upon the Companyôs position and the volatility of 
market prices. The MVaR of an unchanged position reduces if the market price 
volatility declines and vice versa.  

The MVaR positions of the whole portfolio of the Parent Company were as follows. To show 
the sensitivity and the development of the total MVaR, the average, minimum and maximum 
of the MVaR within the year (calculated from end-of-month values) and their corresponding 
distribution into three main categories (FX risk, IR risk, Equity price risk) are also presented: 
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(CZK million) As at 31 December Average VaR*  Maximum* Minimum* 

2010         

Foreign currency risk 53 99 162 53 

Interest rate risk 1,594 2,102 2,026 1,594 

Other price risk 2,522 4,320 9,369 2,522 

Diversification effect (1,226) (1,508) (1,431) (1,226) 

Overall  2,943 5,013 10,126 2,943 

     

2009         

Foreign currency risk 58 181 381 58 

Interest rate risk 1,130 2,789 4,374 1,130 

Other price risk 3,147 4,487 6,009 3,147 

Diversification effect (936) (1,726) (3,290) (936) 

Overall 3,399 5,731 7,474 3,399 

*Minimum, maximum and average VaR is determined based on overall VaR calculated during the year and it is not 
necessarily indicative for minimum, maximum and average values on each single component of VaR.  

The MVaR is now calculated for a one-year time horizon at a 99.5% confidence level. A 99% 
confidence level has been used in prior year financial statements. Comparative information 
has been adjusted to new confidence level. 

E.5 Credit risk  

Credit risk refers to the economic impact from downgrades and defaults of fixed income 
securities or counterparty on the Groupôs financial strength. Furthermore, a general rise in 
spread level, due to credit crunch or liquidity crisis, impacts the financial strength of the 
Group. 

The Group has adopted guidelines to limit the credit risk of the investments. These favour the 
purchase of investment-grade securities and encourage the diversification and dispersion of 
the portfolio.  

The Chief Risk Officer of the Group collects monthly reports on the Groupôs exposure to the 
components of the credit risk and evaluates this risk. Credit risk is also evaluated at the GPH 
and Generali Group level. 

For the rating assessment of an issue or issuer, ratings from rating agencies are used. 
Securities without an external rating are given an internal one based on the Groupôs own 
credit analysis. In most cases internal ratings are based on external rating of parent company 
or its adjusted external rating due to subordination of the instrument. All internal ratings are in 
accordance with GPHôs assessment. In line with Generali Group principles, the Group uses 
the second best external rating for each counterparty in all calculations and in the system of 
credit limits.  

To manage the level of credit risk, the Group deals with counterparties with a good credit 
standing and enters into master netting agreements whenever possible. Master netting 
agreements provide for the net settlement of contracts with the same counterparty in the 
event of default.  

The Group sets up issuer/counterparty limits according to their credit quality and monitors 
compliance with these limits on a monthly basis. 

The Groupôs assets relevant for the credit risk exposure are shown in the following table. 
This table presents the Groupôs overall exposure to the credit risk (carrying amounts): 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Loans and advances 13,173 21,651 

Bonds 115,949 112,643 

Reinsurance assets 10,276 9,265 

Receivables 11,831 8,935 

Total 151,229 152,494 
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A more detailed analysis of the carrying amounts for selected positions is provided in 
following table.  

The positions of reinsurance assets are not included in this analysis, as they are neither past 
due nor impaired. As far as bonds are concerned, the figure shown is already net of an 
impairment on a single bond which was fully impaired for an amount of CZK 7.6 million. 

 Loans Receivables 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Individually impaired ς carrying amount 57 255 3,867 5,483 

Gross amount 7,685 8,311 6,214 7,981 

Up to 90 days after maturity - - 2,964 3,269 

91 days to 180 days after maturity - - 925 1,289 

181 days to 1 year after maturity - - 314 628 

More than 1 year after maturity 7,685 8,311 2,011 2,795 

    Allowance for impairment (7,628) (8,056) (2,347) (2,498) 

Neither past due nor impaired ς carrying amount  13,116 21,396 7,925 3,383 

Amounts not included in analysis - - 39 68 

Total 13,173 21,651 11,831 8,934 

Loans and advances that are neither past due nor impaired, consists mostly of receivables 
from term deposits and buy-sell agreements with banks.  

The Group place term deposits with institutions having a rating from A+ to AA. Significant 
portion of term deposits is placed with a related party, PPF Banka, a.s. (see note F.30.3) 
There were no past due or impaired term deposits either in 2010 or 2009. 

Amounts not included in the analysis consist of receivables related to taxation, which are not 
relevant for credit risk exposure. 

The following tables show the Groupôs exposure to credit risk for bonds and reinsurance 
assets (only official ratings are used, securities without a rating are shown as non-rated even 
if internal rating was allocated to them): 

Rating of bonds 

  31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

(CZK million)                                       Fair value Weight (%) Fair value Weight (%) 

AAA   3,771 3.2% 3,022 2.6% 

AA   1,220 1.0% 898 0.8% 

A   90,683 77.5% 92,251 80.5% 

BBB   5,598 4.8% 3,181 2.8% 

Non-investment grade  5,769 4.9% 2,133 1.9% 

Not rated   9,907 8.5% 13,093 11.4% 

Total   116,948 100.0% 114,578 100.0% 

The bond rating shown above corresponds to the second best rating available from external 
rating agencies. Such a rating is then converged to S&P scale. 

Rating of reinsurance assets 

  31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

(CZK million)                                       Amount  Weight (%) Amount  Weight (%) 

AAA   40 0.4% 166 1.8% 

AA   333 3.2% 227 2.5% 

A   341 3.3% 400 4.3% 

BBB   1 0.0% 4 0.0% 

Captive reinsurance 8,502 82.7% 7,825 84.5% 

Not Rated  1,059 10.3% 641 6.9% 

Total  10,276 100.0% 9,265 100.0% 
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There were no past due or impaired reinsurance assets in either 2010 or 2009.  

The significant increase in the amount of the non-rated reinsurance assets is caused by large 
risks claims in 2010 ceded to the companies Kooperativa pojiġŠovna, a.s. and Generali 
PojiġŠovna a.s. 

The individual business units of the Group hold collateral for loans and advances to banks in 
the form of securities as part of reverse repurchase agreements, collateral for loans and 
advances to non-banks in the form of mortgage interest over property and guarantees 
received. 

The following table shows the fair value of collateral held by the Group:  

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Against individually impaired 32 58 

  Property 30 55 

  Other 2 3 

Against neither past due nor impaired 1,373 4,230 

  Debt securities 1,373 4,230 

Total 1,405 4,288 

E.6 Liquidity risk  

Liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the Groupôs activities and in the management of 
its positions. It includes both the risk of being unable to fund assets using instruments with 
appropriate maturities and rates and the risk of being unable to liquidate an asset sufficiently 
quickly and in the appropriate amount, and the risk of being unable to meet obligations as 
they become due. 

All the business units have access to a diverse funding base. Apart from insurance 
provisions, which serve as a main source of financing, funds are raised using a broad range 
of instruments including deposits, other liabilities evidenced by paper, reinsurance policy, 
subordinated liabilities and shareholder equity. This enhances funding flexibility, limits 
dependence on any one source of funds and generally lowers the cost of funds.  

The business units strive to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility 
through the use of liabilities with a range of maturities. Further, all the business units hold  
a portfolio of liquid assets as part of its liquidity risk management strategy. Special attention 
is paid to the liquidity management of non-life insurance business requiring sufficient funding 
to meet all the potential obligations in the event of a natural disaster or other extraordinary 
event.  

All the business units as well as the Group as a whole continually assesses the liquidity risk 
by identifying and monitoring changes in the funding required to meet business goals and the 
targets set in terms of the overall strategy. 

The following table shows an analysis of the Groupôs financial liabilities broken down into 
their relevant maturity bands based on the residual contractual maturities. 

Residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities 

31.12.2010  
(CZK million)                     

Less than 
1 month 

Between 
1 and 3 
months 

Between  
3 months 
and 1 year 

Between 
1 and 5 
years 

More 
than  

5 years 
Non 

specified Total 

Financial liabilities 2,482 (79) (15) 844 259 - 3,491 

Financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss (22) (79) (15) 344 259 - 487 

Other financial liabilities 2,504 - - 500 - - 3,004 

Payables 6,454 452 321 15 - - 7,242 

Other liabilities 1,231 778 - 1 - - 2,010 

Total financial liabilities 10,167 1,151 306 860 259 - 12,743 
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Residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities 

31.12.2009  
(CZK million)                     

Less than 
1 month 

Between 
1 and 3 
months 

Between 
3 months 
and 1 year 

Between 
1 and 5 
years 

More 
than  

5 years 
Non 

specified Total 

Financial liabilities 1,894 210 126 763 84 4 3,081 

Financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss 837 210 126 262 84 4 1,523 

Other financial liabilities 1,057 - - 501 - - 1,558 

Payables 8,661 362 1,002 2 - 14 10,041 

Other liabilities 1,660 441 - 1 - - 2,102 

Total financial liabilities 12,215 1,013 1,128 766 84 18 15,224 

The following table shows the amount of insurance liabilities and financial liabilities for 
investment contracts broken down by contractual maturity. 

Estimated timing of the net cash outflows resulting from recognised insurance liabilities and contractual 
maturities of financial liabilities for investment contracts with DPF 

31.12.2010 
(CZK million)                     

Less than 
1 year 

Between 
1 and 5 
years 

Between 
5 and 10 

years 

Between 
10 and 15 

years 

Between 
15 and 20 

years 

More 
than 20 
years Total 

Non Life insurance liabilities 11,902 4,235 1,941 1,765 1,500 1,235 22,578 

UPR 4,706 - - - - - 4,706 

RBNS & IBNR 6,972 4,235 1,941 1,765 1,500 1,235 17,648 

Other insurance provisions 224 - - - - - 224 

Life insurance liabilities 5,368 23,228 13,886 10,293 5,471 10,300 68,546 

Financial liabilities for investment contracts 6,708 17,220 11,142 7,582 3,831 6,501 52,984 

Total  23,978 44,683 26,969 19,640 10,802 18,036 144,108 

        

31.12.2009  
(CZK million)                     

Less than 
1 year 

Between 
1 and 5 
years 

Between 
5 and 10 

years 

Between 
10 and 15 

years 

Between 
15 and 20 

years 

More 
than 20 
years Total 

Non Life insurance liabilities 11,523 3,885 1,819 1,653 1,405 1,157 21,442 

UPR 4,670 - - - - - 4,670 

RBNS & IBNR 6,612 3,885 1,819 1,653 1,405 1,157 16,531 

Other insurance provisions 241 - - - - - 241 

Life insurance liabilities 2,934 13,981 12,685 11,511 8,564 18,331 68,006 

Financial liabilities for investment contracts 4,909 15,223 15,010 7,826 2,557 2,676 48,201 

Total 19,366 33,089 29,514 20,990 12,526 22,164 137,649 

E.7 Insurance risks  

Insurance risk results from the uncertainty surrounding the timing, frequency and size of 
claims under insurance contracts. The principal risk is that the frequency or size of claims is 
greater than expected. In addition, for some contracts, there is uncertainty about the timing of 
insured events. These are, by nature, random, and the actual number and size of events 
during any one year may vary from those estimated using established statistical techniques. 

The Group is exposed to actuarial and underwriting risk through a wide range of life and non-
life products offered to customers: participating and non-participating traditional life products, 
unit-linked, annuities, universal life products, guaranteed investment products and all lines of 
non-life products (property, accident and health, car, third party liability and disability).  

The most significant components of actuarial risk concern the adequacy of insurance 
premium rate levels and the adequacy of provisions with respect to insurance liabilities and 
the capital base. The adequacy is assessed taking into consideration the supporting assets 
(fair and book value, currency and interest sensitivity), changes in interest rates and 
exchange rates and developments in mortality, morbidity, non-life claims frequency and 
amounts, lapses and expenses as well as general market conditions. Specific attention is 
paid to the adequacy of provisions for the life business. For a detailed description of the 
liability adequacy test, see note C.2.3. 
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The Group manages insurance risk in the individual business units using internal guidelines 
for product design, reserving, pricing criteria, reinsurance strategy and guidelines for 
underwriting. Monitoring risk profiles, reviewing insurance-related risk control and 
asset/liability management are also carried out by senior management. For those insurance 
contracts that contain high interest rate guarantees, stochastic modelling is used to assess 
the risk of these rate guarantees. The pricing reflects the cost of the guarantees and 
appropriate reserves are established accordingly.  

New methods based on dynamic and stochastic modelling were implemented throughout the 
Group and are continuously being improved. These methods will be used, along with others, 
to measure the economic capital of insurance risks. 

E.7.1 Concentration of insurance risk  

A key aspect of the insurance risk faced by the Group is the extent of the concentration of 
insurance risk, which determines the extent to which a particular event or series of events 
could impact significantly upon the Groupôs liabilities. Such concentrations may arise from a 
single insurance contract or through a number of related contracts where significant liabilities 
could arise. An important aspect of the concentration of insurance risk is that it could arise 
from the accumulation of risks within a number of different insurance classes. 

Concentrations of risk can arise in low frequency, high-severity events such as natural 
disasters; in situations where the Group is exposed to unexpected changes in trends, for 
example, unexpected changes in human mortality or in policyholder behaviour; or where 
significant litigation or legislative risks could cause a large single loss, or have a pervasive 
effect on many contracts.  

E.7.1.1 Geographic and sector -related concentrations  

The risks underwritten by the Group are primarily located in the Czech Republic. 

The following tables provide an overview of the direct gross written premiums according to 
the countries in which the Group operates and according to the different lines of business. 

Life gross direct premiums written by line of business and by geographical area 

2010  
(CZK million)   

Individual 
traditional 

Individual 
unit/index 

linked Health Group Total 

Czech Republic 8,644 4,109 3,159 - 15,912 

Other countries 30 - - 20 50 

Total  8,674 4,109 3,159 20 15,962 

      

2009 
(CZK million)   

Individual 
traditional 

Individual 
unit/index 

linked Health Group Total 

Czech Republic 9,440 1,293 3,107 - 13,840 

Other countries 24 - - 9 33 

Total  9,464 1,293 3,107 9 13,873 

Non-Life gross direct premiums written by line of business and by geographical area 

  Non motor   
2010  
(CZK million)   Motor  Personal 

Commercial/ 
Industrial 

Accident/ 
Health Total 

Czech Republic 11,226 3,749 5,113 823 20,911 

Other countries - - - 186 186 

Total  11,226 3,749 5,113 1,009 21,097 

    

  Non motor 

Total 
2009 
(CZK million)   Motor  Personal 

Commercial/ 
Industrial 

Accident/ 
Health 

Czech Republic 12,676 3,691 5,434 779 22,580 

Other countries - - - 90 90 

Total  12,676 3,691 5,434 869 22,670 
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The breakdown according to gross direct premium written is a reliable approximation of the 
concentration of the total sum insured from the geographical perspective.  

The reinsurance has no significant impact on the concentration of the insurance risk. 

E.7.1.2 Low -frequency, high -severity risks  

Significant insurance risk is connected with low-frequency and high-severity risks. The Group 
manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and adequate reinsurance 
arrangements. 

According to its underwriting strategy, the most significant risk of natural disaster to which the 
Group is exposed is the risk of flooding in the Czech Republic. In the event of a major flood, 
the Group expects the property portfolio to see high claims for structural damage to 
properties and contents, and high claims for business interruption while transport links are 
inoperable and business properties are closed for repair. Apart from the risk of flooding, other 
climatic phenomena, such as long-lasting snow-fall, claims caused by snow-weight or strong 
wind-storms or hail-storms would have a similar effect. The Group is participating on 
insurance of nuclear risks through Czech nuclear pool, for more information see note 
F.29.2.2. 

The underwriting strategy is an integral part of the annual business plan that specifies the 
classes of business to be written within the planned period and the target sectors of clients. 
Following approval of underwriting limits by the Board of Directors, the strategy is cascaded 
to the individual underwriters in the form of underwriting limits (each underwriter can write 
business by line size, class of business, territory and industry in order to ensure the 
appropriate risk selection within the portfolio).  

E.7.1.3 Life underwriting risk  

In the life portfolio of the Group, there is a prevailing component of saving contracts, but 
there are also pure risk covers (death plus riders, such as an accident, disability, dread 
disease, etc.) and some annuity portfolios, with the presence of the longevity risk. 

The risks related to policies with prevailing saving component are considered in a prudential 
way when pricing the guaranteed interest rate, in line with the particular situation of the local 
financial market, and also taking into account any relevant regulatory constraint. In the recent 
past a policy of re-definition of the structure of minimum guarantees has been pursued in 
order to lower their risk impact and their cost. 

As far as the demographic risk related to pure risk portfolios is concerned, the mortality 
tables used in the pricing are prudent. The standard approach is to use population or 
experience tables with adequate safety loadings. 

For the most important risk portfolios a detailed analysis of mortality experience is carried out 
every year in comparison with the expected mortality of the portfolio, determined according to 
the most up-to-date mortality tables available in each market. This analysis takes into 
consideration the mortality by sex, age, policy year, sum assured, other underwriting criteria 
and also mortality trends.  

As far as lapse risk (risks related to voluntary withdrawal from the contract) and expense risk 
(risks related to inadequacy of charges and loadings in the premiums in order to cover future 
expenses) is concerned, it is evaluated in a prudent manner in the pricing of new products, 
considering the construction and the profit testing of new tariff assumptions derived from the 
experience of the Group, or if it is not sufficiently reliable or suitable, the experience of the 
other Generali Group entities or the general experience of the local market. In order to 
mitigate lapse risk, surrender penalties are generally considered in the tariff and are 
determined in such a way to compensate, at least partially, the loss of future profits.  
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The table below shows the insurance provisions of life gross direct business by level of 
guaranteed interest rate. Financial liabilities related to investment contracts with DPF are 
included as well. 

Gross direct insurance    

(CZK million)   31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Liabilities with guaranteed interest   102,476 100,187 

        Between 0% and 2.49%  68,695 63,429 

        Between 2.5% and 3.49%  5,894 5,951 

        Between 3.5% and 4.49%  6,350 7,664 

        More than 4.5% (incl.)  21,537 23,143 

Provisions without guaranteed interest 8,915 8,996 

Total   111,391 109,183 

E.7.1.4 Non-life underwriting risk  

The pricing risk covers the risk that the premium charged is insufficient to cover actual future 
claims and expenses.  

The reserving risk relates to the uncertainty of the run-off of reserves around its expected 
value, which is the risk that the actuarial reserve is not sufficient to cover all liabilities of 
claims incurred. Its assessment is closely related to the estimation of reserves and both 
processes are performed together for consistency reasons using claim triangles and all other 
relevant information collected and analysed according to specific guidelines. 

The Group has the right to re-price the risk on renewal and reject fraudulent claims. These 
contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial replacement value of the 
properties and contents insured, and claims payment limits are always included to cap the 
amount payable on occurrence of the insured event. 

E.7.2 Reinsurance strategy  

All the business units of the Group reinsure some of the risks they underwrite in order to 
control exposures to frequent and catastrophic losses and protect their capital resources.  

The Group concludes the proportionate and non-proportionate reinsurance treaties or a 
combination of these reinsurance treaties to reduce its net exposure. The maximum net 
exposure limits for particular business lines are reviewed annually. To provide additional 
protection, the Group uses facultative reinsurance for certain insurance policies. 

The reinsurance arrangements include quota-share, excess of loss, stop-loss and 
catastrophe coverage. The majority of reinsurance treaties are concluded with GP RE ï the 
GPH group captive reinsurance company based in Bulgaria. On the top of it the Group 
benefits from the consolidated reinsurance programme and diversification of its risks due to 
the GP RE group cover which is retro-ceded on the regular reinsurance market. 

Ceded reinsurance contains a reinsurersË credit risk as the cession does not relieve the 
Group of its obligations to its clients. Through the GPH credit risk management, the Group 
regularly evaluates the financial status of its reinsurers and monitors the concentration of 
credit risk to minimise its exposure to financial loss caused by a reinsurerôs insolvency. 
Placement of non-life obligatory reinsurance treaties is managed by the GPH and is guided 
by the Security List of Generali Trieste. 

All reinsurance issues are subject to strict review. This includes the evaluation of reinsurance 
arrangements, setting the minimum capacity and retention criteria, monitoring the purchase 
of reinsurance against those criteria, erosion of the reinsurance programme and its ongoing 
adequacy and credit risk. Treaty capacity needed is based on both internal and group 
modelling.  
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The overview of parameters of obligatory reinsurance treaties for the main programme and 
underwriting year 2010: 

Line of business / Treaty Form of reinsurance Leader 

Property      

Property/Engineering  QS + Risk X/L GP Re 

Property Catastrophe CAT X/L GP Re 

Civil Building  Quota Share GP Re 

Household Quota Share GP Re 

SME Property Quota Share GP Re 

Liability     

Commercial Liability  Quota Share + Risk X/L  GP Re 

Motor Third Party Liability  QuotaShare + Risk X/L  GP Re 

Marine     

Parcel transport Risk X/L  GP Re 

CASCO Quota Share + CAT X/L GP Re 

Medical Expenses Quota Share GP Re 

Agriculture     

Livestock  Risk + CAT X/L  GP Re 

Hail  Stop Loss GP Re 

Guarantee     

Guarantee Quota Share GP Re 

Life, pensions     

Individual life insurance  Surplus Generali Trieste 

Group life insurance Quota Share Generali Trieste 

Life & Disability Surplus Swiss Re 

Personal Accident Quota Share GP Re 

E.8 Operating risk and other risks  

Operational risk is defined as the potential losses, including opportunity costs, arising from 
lack or underperformance in internal processes, human resources and systems or from other 
causes which may result from internal or external reasons. 

As part of the on-going processes of Generali Group, the Group has set some common 
principles for these kinds of risks:  

- policies and basic requirements to handle specific risk-sources as defined at the 
Generali Group level; 

- criteria to measure operational risk. Moreover, a specific worldwide task force has 
been settled to define a common Generali Group methodology in order to identify, 
measure and monitor operational risks; 

- common methodologies and principles guiding internal audit activities in order to 
identify the most relevant processes to be audited. 

The operational risk management process is based primarily on analysing the risks and 
designing modifications for work procedures and processes to eliminate, as far as possible, 
the risks associated with operational events (losses caused by risks other than market and 
credit risk). Work procedures governing the investment and risk management processes 
constitute a part of the Groupôs system of mandatory policies and procedures. 

E.8.1 Operating systems and IT security management  

The Parent Companyôs IT Organisation is based on separating the IT security unit from IT 
operations and IT development. The rules set by the Company regarding IT risk 
management and IT security are based on the rules and recommendations contained in 
ISO/IEC 17799:2000 Information Technology ï Code of practice for information security 
management.  
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E.9 Financial strength  monitoring by third parties  

The Groupôs risks are also monitored by third parties such as the insurance regulators.  

Also, the leading rating agencies periodically assess the financial strength of the whole 
Generali Group expressing a judgment on the ability to meet the ongoing obligations 
assumed toward policyholders. 

This assessment is performed taking into account several factors such as, financial and 
economic data, the positioning of the Group within its market, and the strategies developed 
and implemented by the management. 

On 27 January 2011, the rating agency Standard & Poorôs (S&P) confirmed the long-term 
counterparty credit and insurer financial strength ratings of the Company to be A+ with  
a stable outlook.  

E.10 Capital management  

The objectives of Generali Groupôs as well as the individual business unitsô capital 
management policy are: 

- To guarantee meeting the solvency requirements as defined by the specific laws of 
each sector where the participated companies operate (insurance, pension funds and 
financial sector). 

- To safeguard the going concern and the capacity to develop own activities. 

- To continue to guarantee an adequate remuneration of the shareholderôs capital. 

- To determine adequate pricing policies that are suitable for the risk level of each 
sectorsô activity. 

E.10.1 Solvency  I 

The Group undertakes insurance business which is a regulated industry. In every country in 
which the Group operates, local law and or local supervisory authorities have minimum 
capital requirements for insurance companies. 

The Group closely monitors its compliance with regulatory capital requirements. The 
minimum capital should be maintained by each business unit to face its insurance obligations 
and operational risks. 

The following table summarises the minimum capital requirements prescribed by different 
local supervisory authorities and the available capital for each company. 

(CZK million) Required solvency margin available solvency margin 

Company 2010 2009 2010 2009 

2Ŝǎƪł ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴŀΣ ŀΦǎΦ 5,335 5,698 25,374 24,060 

2Ŝǎƪł ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴŀ ½ŘǊŀǾƝΣ ŀΦǎΦ 49 45 210 217 

W{/ άDŜƴŜǊŀƭƛ [ƛŦŜέΣ YŀȊŀŎƘǎǘŀƴ 18 8 176 161 

Generali PPF Life Insurance LLC, Russia - 499 - 1,630 

Generali foreign insurance Co, Belarus 13 6 74 56 

Total 5,415 6,256 25,834 26,124 

The Group closely monitors its compliance with regulatory capital requirements. The current 
approach for calculating capital requirements is based on Solvency I principles which are to 
be replaced by a new system of regulatory capital calculation - Solvency II. The Group is 
gradually implementing the Solvency II standards into its own risk capital management 
procedures.  
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E.10.2 Solvency II  

The Group is gradually implementing the Solvency II standards into its own risk capital 
management procedures, starting with its most important business units. 

The capital management policy is based on a consistent approach for the evaluation of the 
economic value and its related risks and makes use of proper internal models (Embedded 
value, Economic Balance Sheet). 

This approach in fact anticipates the expected development within the ñSolvency IIò 
framework, that is the solvency regulation for insurance companies which the European 
Union is now developing. As confirmed in the Framework Directive issued in 2007, the future 
capital requirements will focus on economic solvency of insurance companies and will reflect 
more precisely the specific risk positions, also giving possible credits for better risk 
management policies. 

In this phase of changes in the law and market conditions, the capital management policy 
integrates the internal economic logic with the necessary considerations about existing 
capital constraints, with reference in particular to current local and Group solvency 
requirements and Rating Agency requirements. 



Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

75 

F. Notes to the consolidated statement of financial position 

and income statement 

F.1 Intangible assets  

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Goodwill 1,273 1,323 

ƻŦ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǎ ƎƻƻŘǿƛƭƭ ƻƴ tŜƴȊƛƧƴƝ ŦƻƴŘ 2ŜǎƪŞ ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴȅΣ ŀΦǎΦ 584 584 

of which is goodwill on Generali SAF de Pensii Private S.A. 693 739 

Other intangible assets 1,613 1,512 

   Software 1,448 1,315 

   Present value of future profits from portfolios acquired 123 134 

   Other intangible assets 42 63 

Total 2,886 2,835 

F.1.1 Goodwill  

The balance of the goodwill on Penzijn² fond Ļesk® pojiġŠovny, a.s. represents the goodwill 
that arose from the acquisition of ABN AMRO Penzijn² fond, a.s. in 2004. The goodwill 
related to Generali SAF de Pensii Private S.A. is connected with the acquisition of the 
company in 2008. 

A cash-generating units (CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for 
impairment annually by comparing the carrying amount of the CGU, including the goodwill, 
with the recoverable amount of the unit. Annual impairment review resulted in no impairment 
charge neither for 2010 nor 2009. 

The following sections describe how the Group determines the recoverable amount of its 
goodwill carrying cash-generating units and provides information on certain key assumptions 
on which management based its determination of the recoverable amount. 

Generali SAF de Pensii Private S.A. 

The recoverable amount of Generali SAF de Pensii Private S.A. is calculated on the basis of 
value-in-use. The Group employs a valuation model based on discounted cash flows. The 
model calculates the present value of the estimated future cash inflows and outflows, 
considering projections on budgets/forecasts approved by management. The cash flows are 
projected for 20 years in order to take into account the long-term nature of the pension fund 
investments. Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations to test the recoverability of 
goodwill are as follows: 

Long-term growth rate   2.0% 
Pre-tax discount rate 14.0% 

These key assumptions have been made by management reflecting past experience and are 
consistent with relevant external sources of information. The key assumptions to which the 
calculation of value-in-use is most sensitive are the earnings projection, long-term growth 
and discount rate. The discount rate applied is comprised of a risk-free interest rate and a 
market risk premium. Management believes that, currently, there are no reasonably possible 
changes in any of the key assumptions, which would lead to the recoverable amount being 
below the carrying amount. 
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Penzijn² fond Ļesk® pojiġŠovny (PFĻP) 

The Dividend Discount Model has been used for the determination of the value in use of 
PFĻP. 

The Dividend Discount Model is based on the hypothesis that the value of a cash-generating 
unit is equal to the present value of the cash flows available for its shareholders. These cash 
flows are supposed to be equal to the flows derived from the distributable dividends, while 
maintaining an adequate capital structure as required by the laws in force and the entityôs 
economic nature and to maintain its expected future development.  

According to this method, the value of the cash-generating unit is equal to the sum of the 
discounted value of future dividends plus the terminal value of the cash-generating unit itself. 

The application of this criterion has generally entailed the following phases: 

- For forecasting the future cash flows of PFĻP, the detailed information included in the 
last available Rolling Plan 2011ï2013 has been considered. The main economic-
financial data (i.e. net profit) has been calculated for two additional years (2014 and 
2015) on the basis of the growth rate in the last year of the Rolling Plan (2013) to extend 
the forecast period. 

- Explicit forecasting of the future cash flows to be distributed to shareholders in the 
planned time frame, taking into account limits requiring the maintenance of an adequate 
capital level. 

- Calculating the cash-generating unitôs terminal value, that is the expected value of the 
cash-generating unit at the end of the latest year planned. 

- The discount rate of the future cash flows has been defined on the basis of the Capital 
Asset Pricing Model (CAPM) formula. This model considers the return rate of risk-free 
investments and the consequent premium return requested by the capital market of 
reference regarding risk-free investments.  

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as follows:  

Long-term growth rate  1.0%  
Pre-tax discount rate 8.5% 

F.1.2 Other intangible assets  

Tables below show the development of individual classes of other intangible assets. 

31.12.2010  
(CZK million) Software 

Other 
intangible 

assets PVFP Total 

Net carrying amount as at 1 January 4,762 173 153 5,088 

Additions 546 20 - 566 

Disposals (130) (15) - (145) 

Net exchange differences (1) - - (1) 

Balance as at 31 December 5,177 178 153 5,508 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses         

Balance as at 1 January (3,447) (110) (19) (3,576) 

Amortisation charge for the year (411) (37) (11) (459) 

Disposals - 1 - 1 

Decreases of accumulated amortisation 129 10 - 139 

Balance as at 31 December (3,729) (136) (30) (3,895) 

Net carrying amount 1,448 42 123 1,613 
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31.12.2009 
(CZK million) 

  
Software 

Other 
intangible 

assets 
  

PVFP 
  

Total 

Net carrying amount as at 1 January 4,263 148 153 4,564 

Additions 548 54 - 602 

Disposals (49) (28) - (77) 

Net exchange differences - (1) - (1) 

Balance as at 31 December 4,762 173 153 5,088 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses         

Balance as at 1 January (3,032) (80) (8) (3,120) 

Amortisation charge for the year (416) (59) (11) (486) 

Decreases of accumulated amortisation 1 29 - 30 

Balance as at 31 December (3,447) (110) (19) (3,576) 

Net carrying amount 1,315 63 134 1,512 

Present value of future profits 

The Group performs a valuation of present value of future profits related to ABN AMRO 
portfolio, within the annual embedded value calculations. This valuation showed the present 
value of the respective portfolio to be in the amount of CZK 636 million, which significantly 
exceeds its carrying amount (CZK 123 million). 

Embedded value calculation follows the Market Consistent European Embedded Value 
(MCEEV) Principles. The reference rates used to derive risk-neutral economic scenarios are 
calibrated to CZK government bonds and both investment rates and implied volatilities are as 
at the end of year 2010. The following chart presents the applied rates: 
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F.2 Tangible assets  

F.2.1 Land and buildings ( own use ) 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Gross book value as at 1 January 203 195 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment as at 1 January (88) (88) 

Carrying amount as at 31 December previous year 115 107 

Increases 49 42 

Decreases (35) (34) 

Depreciation of the period (12) - 

Carrying amount as at 31 December 117 115 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment as at 31 December  100 88 

Gross book value as at 31 December 217 203 

F.2.2 Other tangible assets  

Other tangible assets consist mainly of furniture, office and IT equipment. 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Gross book value as at 1 January 2,068 2,183 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment as at 1 January (1,734) (1,790) 

Carrying amount as at 1 January 334 393 

Foreign currency translation effects - (5) 

Increases 158 320 

Business combinations 1 1 

Decreases (362) (422) 

Other changes 3 (9) 

Depreciation and impairment 181 56 

Depreciation of the period (179) (196) 

Depreciation - Foreign currency translation effects - 1 

Depreciation - changes in scope and other movements - 1 

Decreases of accumulated amortisation 360 250 

Carrying amount as at 31 December 315 334 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment as at 31 December (1,553) (1,734) 

Gross book value as at 31 December 1,868 2,068 

F.3 Investments  

F.3.1 Investment properties  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Gross book value as at 1 January 85 84 

Additions 1,823 - 

Revaluation (19) 1 

Carrying amount as at 31 December 1,889 85 

Additions in 2010 of CZK 1,671 million represent property acquired by purchase of CITY 
EMPIRIA a.s. (see note B.1). The transaction is considered to be a purchase of group 
assets. Remaining additions relate to the purchase of City Forum property. 

The fair value of investment properties is based on the valuation of an independent valuator 
who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in 
the location and category of the investment property being valued. 

For investment income see note F.18, for investment expense see note F.22. 
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F.3.2 Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies  

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries 6 9 
Generali PPF Services a.s. - 3 

Karlǻv Most foundation 5 5 

bŀŘŀŎŜ 2ŜǎƪŞ ǇƻƧƛǑǙƻǾƴȅ 1 1 

Generali PPF Services a.s. is fully consolidated in 2010. 

F.3.3 Held-to-maturity investments  

  31.12.2010 31.12.2009 
(CZK million) Book value Fair value Book value Fair value 

Quoted bonds - - 87 99 

Fair value of quoted bonds is determined in accordance with the principles described in note 
C.1.5. 

F.3.4 Loans and receivables  

  31.12.2010 31.12.2009 
(CZK million) Book value Fair value Book value Fair value 

Loans 13,173 13,258 21,651 21,722 

Unquoted bonds 911 997 1,852 1,923 

Deposit under reinsurance business accepted 1 - 1 1 
Other loans and receivables 12,261 12,261 19,798 19,798 

   Term deposit with credit institutions 10,477 10,477 12,245 12,245 

   Reverse REPO transactions 1,725 1,725 4,230 4,230 

   Other loans 59 59 3,323 3,323 

Current portion 12,181   19,541   
Non-current portion 992   2,110   

In November 2009, the Group provided a short-term loan to East Bohemia Energy Holding 
Ltd. in the amount of CZK 1,500 million which was repaid on 24 March 2010. The related 
amount was presented in 2009 in line other loans. 

F.3.5 Available -for -sale financial assets  

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 
Unquoted equities at cost 100 100 

Equities at fair value 3,505 3,058 

   Quoted  3,504 3,057 

   Unquoted 1 1 

Bonds 94,934 87,405 
   Quoted  80,388 77,781 

   Unquoted 14,546 9,624 

Investments in fund units 4,968 4,648 

Total 103,507 95,211 

Current portion 11,304 6,194 

Non-current portion 92,203 89,017 

Fair value measurement as at the end of the reporting period: 

31.12.2010         
(CZK million) Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total 

Unquoted equities at cost - - 100 100 
Equities at fair value 3,504 - 1 3,505 

Quoted 3,504 - - 3,504 

Unquoted - - 1 1 

Bonds 75,203 19,731 - 94,934 

Quoted 75,203 5,185 - 80,388 

Unquoted - 14,546 - 14,546 
Investments in fund units 4,968 - - 4,968 

Total 83,675 19,731 101 103,507 
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There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurement 
categories in 2010. 

31.12.2009         

(CZK million) Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total 

Unquoted equities at cost - - 100 100 

Equities at fair value 3,057 - 1 3,058 

Quoted 3,057 - - 3,057 

Unquoted - - 1 1 

Bonds 77,781 9,624 - 87,405 

Quoted 77,781 - - 77,781 

Unquoted - 9,624 - 9,624 

Investments in fund units 4,630 18 - 4,648 

Total 85,468 9,642 101 95,211 

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurement 
categories in 2009. 

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year-ended  
31 December. There were no changes in inputs for fair value measurement that would 
significantly change the fair value of financial assets in 2010 and 2009. 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Opening balance 101 217 

Total gains or losses in income statement  - (116) 

Closing balance 101 101 

Total gains/losses for the period included in income statement for assets held at 
the end of the reporting period - (115) 

Maturity of available-for-sale financial assets ς bonds (fair value) 

   (CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Up to 1 year 11,304 6,194 

Between 1 and 5 years 44,564 39,810 

Between 5 and 10 years 21,792 18,732 

More than 10 years 17,274 22,669 

Total 94,934 87,405 

Realised gains and losses, and unrealised losses on available-for-sale financial assets 

31.12.2010 
(CZK million) 

Realised gains 
(F.18) 

Realised losses 
(F.22) 

Impairment 
losses (F.22) 

Equities 659 (218) (13) 

Bonds 1,699 (97) (0) 

Investment fund units 457 (94) (50) 

Total 2,815 (409) (63) 

    31.12.2009 
(CZK million) 

Realised gains 
(F.18) 

Realised losses 
(F.22) 

Impairment 
losses (F.22) 

Equities 1,273 (6) (116) 

Bonds 567 (165) (8) 

Investment fund units 248 (191) (29) 

Total 2,088 (362) (153) 
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F.3.6 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  

  
Financial assets held-for-

trading 

Financial assets  
designated as at fair value 

through profit and loss 

Total financial  
assets at fair value  

through profit and loss 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Equities - 808 1,205 1,111 1,205 1,919 

   Quoted  - 808 1,205 1,111 1,205 1,919 

Bonds - 5,404 21,017 19,747 21,017 25,151 

   Quoted  - 5,404 8,729 7,934 8,729 13,338 

   Unquoted - - 12,288 11,813 12,288 11,813 

Investments in fund units - 2,391 6,012 2,487 6,012 4,878 

Derivates 86 679 738 - 824 679 

Unit-linked investments and 
investments back to pension 
funds - - 7,205 3,450 7,205 3,450 

Other financial investments - - 809 - 809 - 

Total 86 9,282 36,986 26,795 37,072 36,077 

Current portion         6,532 3,897 

Non-current portion         30,540 32,180 

Fair value measurement as at the end of the reporting period: 

31.12.2010         

(CZK million) Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total 

Equities 1,205 - - 1,205 

Quoted 1,205 - - 1,205 

Bonds 8,347 12,605 65 21,017 

Quoted 8,347 382 - 8,729 

Unquoted - 12,223 65 12,288 

Investments in fund units 5,876 136 - 6,012 

Derivatives 111 713 - 824 

Unit-linked investments  7,184 21 - 7,205 

Other 809 - - 809 

Total 23,532 13,475 65 37,072 

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurement 
categories in 2010. 

31.12.2009         

(CZK million) Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total 

Equities 1,919 - - 1,919 

Quoted 1,919 - - 1,919 

Bonds 12,398 12,676 77 25,151 

Quoted 12,398 863 77 13,338 

Unquoted - 11,813 - 11,813 

Investments in fund units 4,663 215 - 4,878 

Derivates 91 588 - 679 

Unit-linked investments  3,398 52 - 3,450 

Total 22,469 13,531 77 36,077 

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurement 
categories in 2009. 
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The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year-ended  
31 December. There were no changes in inputs for fair value measurement that would 
significantly change the fair value of financial assets in 2010 and 2009. 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Opening balance 77 67 

Total gains or losses (12) 10 

    in income statement (12) 10 

Closing balance 65 77 

Total gains/losses for the period included in income statement for assets held  
at the end of the reporting period (12) 10 

F.3.7 Reclassifications between categories of financial assets  

High price volatility and low liquidity of markets and instruments were the main features of 
the financial market developments in 2008. This negative development lasted the whole year 
and even accelerated during the second half of the year. Such market behaviour represented 
rare circumstances which led the Group to change its investment strategy and reclassify 
financial assets (equities) in the amount of CZK 14,135 million from the Fair value through 
profit and loss category to Available-for-sale category. The reclassification was done on  
1 October 2008. The carrying amount and fair value of the reclassified financial assets 
outstanding as at 31 December 2010 is CZK 445 million (2009: CZK 1,573 million).  

Had these financial assets not been reclassified, the income statement line Net income from 
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss would be lower by CZK 43 million 
(2009: CZK 497 million). Out of this revaluation, no impairment loss is recognised in the 
income statement and CZK 15 million (2009: CZK 59 million) is reported in the income 
statement as a loss on foreign currency revaluation under fair value hedge accounting. Had 
these financial assets not been reclassified, the income statement would not show gains on 
realisation of CZK 228 million (2009: loss CZK 430 million). 

F.4 Reinsurance assets    

  Direct insurance Accepted reinsurance Total 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Non-life 9,348 8,280 99 130 9,447 8,410 

   Provision for unearned premiums 1,950 1,907 68 79 2,018 1,986 

   Provision for outstanding claims 5,320 4,277 20 36 5,340 4,313 

   IBNR 2,051 2,081 11 15 2,062 2,096 

   Other insurance provisions 27 15 - - 27 15 

Life 829 855 - - 829 855 

   Provision for unearned premiums 74 68 - - 74 68 

   Provision for outstanding claims 457 578 - - 457 578 

   IBNR 298 208 - - 298 208 

   Other insurance provisions - 1 - - - 1 

Total 10,177 9,135 99 130 10,276 9,265 

Current portion 5,250 4,942 80 99 5,331 5,041 

Non-current portion 4,927 4,193 19 31 4,945 4,224 

The amounts included in reinsurance assets represent expected future claims to be 
recovered from the Groupôs reinsurers and the reinsurersô share of unearned premiums. 

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group of its direct obligations to 
policyholders. Thus, a credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded to the extent 
that any reinsurer is unable to meet the obligations assumed under the reinsurance 
agreements. 
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F.5 Receivables  

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Receivables arising out of direct insurance operations 2,931 3,707 

Amounts owed by policyholders 2,781 3,662 

Amount owed by intermediaries and others 150 45 

Receivables arising out of reinsurance operations 1,946 3,008 

Other receivables 6,918 2,154 

Current income tax receivables 36 65 

Total receivables 11,831 8,934 

Current portion 11,680 8,842 

Non-current portion 151 92 

As at 31 December 2010, other receivables include a receivable from the sale of interest in 
Generali PPF Life Insurance LLC of CZK 5,561 million. 

On 29 December 2009, the Company sold its 100% interest in CP Strategic Investments B.V. 
to its sole shareholder CZI Holdings N.V. for EUR 31.8 million (CZK 840 million).  
The receivable was settled in 2010. 

F.6 Other assets  

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Deferred acquisition costs 801 791 

Deferred tax assets 178 112 

Other assets 365 238 

Other assets total 1,344 1,141 

Current portion 594 504 

Non-current portion 750 637 

F.6.1 Deferred acquisition costs  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Carrying amount as at 1 January 791 1,969 

Reclassification to non-current assets held-for-sale - (962) 

Movements of the period 10 (216) 

Carrying amount as at 31 December 801 791 

The Group defers only non-life insurance acquisition costs. All deferred acquisition costs are 
usually to be released within one year. The balance of 2009 in the line Reclassification to 
non-current assets held-for-sale relates to the subsidiary Generali PPF Life Insurance LLC. 

F.7 Cash and cash equivalents  

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Cash and cash equivalents 7 8 

Cash at bank 744 532 

Total cash from continued operations 751 540 

Total cash from discontinued operations - 258 

Total 751 798 
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F.8 Non-current assets held -for -sale 

As at 31 December 2010, there were no non-current assets classified as held-for-sale.  

As at 31 December 2009, the assets classified as held-for-sale amounted to CZK 3,878 
million and the related liabilities amounted to CZK 2,190 million.  

The balance as at 31 December 2009 relates to a subsidiary Generali PPF Life Insurance 
LLC. The intention to sell the interest in the subsidiary was approved by the Board of ĻP in 
November 2009 and on 20 December 2010 the Group sold the subsidiary to its shareholder 
CZI Holdings N.V. for CZK 5,561 million. A gain of CZK 3,228 million was recognised through 
the income statement in 2010. The payment will be settled in 2011. 

The following table shows details of assets and liabilities of Generali PPF Life Insurance, 
which were disclosed in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009 as non-
current assets and associated liabilities held-for-sale. 

(CZK million)  2009 

Investments 2,460 

Available-for-sale 1,304 

Other investments 1,156 

Reinsurance assets 5 

Receivables 142 

Receivables arising out of insurance operations 24 

Receivables arising out of reinsurance operations 1 

Receivables relating to taxation 68 

Other Receivables 49 

Other assets 1,013 

Deferred acquisition costs 962 

Tangible assets and inventories 32 

Accrued income and prepayments 19 

Cash and cash equivalents 258 

Total assets held-for-sale 3,878 

Insurance provisions 1,937 

Other provisions 20 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 3 

Derivatives 3 

Payables 205 

Payables arising out of insurance operations 190 

Payables arising out of reinsurance operations 1 

Other payables 14 

Deferred tax liabilities 25 

Total liabilities related to assets held-for-sale 2,190 
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The income statement amount for 2010 presented as Profit from discontinued operations 
includes net profit related to discontinued operations in the total amount of CZK 601 million 
(2009: CZK 941 million) and the realised gains of CZK 3,228 million. The following table 
shows details of the profit of Generali PPF Life Insurance in the income statement: 

(CZK million)  
Period from 1.1. 
to 20.12.2010 

2009 

Earned premiums 3,317 3,396 

Gross earned premiums 3,397 3,394 

Earned premiums ceded (80) 2 

Interests and other investment income 238 237 

Interests and other income from investments AFS 112 112 

Interests from term deposits 101 71 

Interests on bank accounts 25 54 

Other income from financial instruments and other investments 37 75 

Realised gains from investments AFS 37 75 

Net loss from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (6) (12) 

Realised losses from derivatives (4) (9) 

Unrealised losses on derivatives (2) (3) 

Other income 15 227 

Other income 15 224 

Gains on foreign currency - 3 

Total income 3,601 3,923 

Net insurance benefits and claims (467) (330) 

Gross insurance benefits and claims (482) (331) 

Reinsurers' share 15 1 

Interest expenses - (10) 

Interest expenses on reverse repurchase agreement - (10) 

Other expenses for fin. instruments and other investments (37) (44) 

Impairment (17) (35) 

Realised losses on investments AFS - (9) 

Other expenses for investments (20) - 

Acquisition costs (2,074) (1,986) 

Acquisition commissions, net of reinsurance (2,492) (1,841) 

Change in deferred acquisition costs 418 (145) 

Administration costs (256) (207) 

Other expenses (8) (125) 

Other charges (8) (125) 

Total expenses (2,842) (2,702) 

Profit from discontinued operations before tax 759 1,221 

Income taxes (158) (280) 

Net profit for the period 601 941 

The cash flows from discontinued operations were as follows: 

(CZK million)  2010 2009 

Net cash flow from operating activities 1,186 648 

Net cash flow from investing activities 80 (3) 

Net cash flow from financing activities - (428) 
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F.9 Shareholderôs equity 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Shareholder's equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent 24,186 23,120 

Share capital 4,000 4,000 

Revenue reserves and other reserves 9,008 9,027 

Reserve for currency translation differences (152) (291) 

Reserve for unrealised gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets 1,415 1,553 

Reserve for other unrealised gains and losses through equity 4 4 

Cash-flow hedge reserve 18 - 

Result of the period 9,893 8,827 

Shareholder's equity attributable to non-controlling interest 67 20 

Total 24,253 23,140 

The following table provides details on reserves for unrealised gains and losses on 
investments available-for-sale. 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

As at 1 January 1,553 (1,317) 

Gross revaluation as at 1 January 2,067 (1,433) 

Tax on revaluation as at 1 January (514) 116 

Revaluation gain/loss in equity ς gross 2,384 5,124 

Revaluation gain/loss presented in income statement ς gross (2,405) (1,726) 

Impairment losses 63 152 

Changes related to accounting for associated companies - 61 

Changes in Group structure (126) (111) 

Tax on revaluation  (54) (630) 

Gross revaluation as at 31 December 1,983 2,067 

Tax on revaluation as at 31 December (568) (514) 

End of the year 1,415 1,553 

Changes in cash-flow hedging reserve 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Carrying amount as at 1 January - - 

Fair value gains of the year 24 - 

Tax on fair value gains / losses (6) - 

Carrying amount as at 31 December current year 18 - 

The following table provides details of authorised and issued shares. 

  31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Number of shares authorised, issued and fully paid 40,000 40,000 

Par value per share (CZK) 100,000 100,000 

All ordinary shares have the same rights. 

F.9.1 Dividends  

At the Annual General Meeting on 30 April 2010, the sole shareholder approved distribution 
of dividends of CZK 219,950 per share amounting to CZK 8,798 million. Distribution 
concerns the prior year profit of CZK 7,380 million and retained earnings of CZK 1,418 
million. 

At the Annual General Meeting on 24 August 2009, the sole shareholder approved the 
distribution of retained earnings in the form of a dividend of CZK 146,829.23 per each share 
in the nominal value of CZK 100,000 amounting to CZK 5,873 million.  

  



Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

87 

F.10 Other pro visions  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Provisions for taxation 20 19 

Provisions for commitments 1,758 1,974 

Provision for restructuring charges 94 56 

Other provisions 3 7 

Total 1,875 2,056 

Current portion 98 86 

Non-current portion 1,777 1,970 

 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Carrying amount as at 31 December previous year 2,056 2,339 

Foreign currency translation effects - (1) 

Changes in consolidation scope - (20) 

Variations (181) (262) 

Carrying amount as at 31 December current year 1,875 2,056 

Provisions for commitments consist of provisions for the MTPL deficit of CZK 1,673 million 
(2009: CZK 1,854 million) and other provisions.  

Provision for MTPL deficit: 

On 31 December 1999, statutory MTPL insurance was replaced by contractual MTPL 
insurance in the Czech Republic. All rights and obligations arising from statutory MTPL 
insurance prior to 31 December 1999, including the deficit of received premiums to cover the 
liabilities and costs, were transferred to the Czech Bureau of Insurers (ñthe Bureauò). 

On 12 October 1999, the Parent Company obtained a license to write contractual MTPL 
insurance in the Czech Republic and, as a result, the Parent Company became a member of 
the Bureau (see also note F.29.2.3).  

Each member of the Bureau guarantees the appropriate portion of the Bureauôs liabilities 
based on the memberôs market share for this class of insurance.  

Based on information publicly available and information provided by members of the Bureau, 
the Group created a provision adequate to cover the cost of claims likely to be incurred in 
relation to the liabilities ceded. However, the final and exact amount of the incurred cost of 
claims will only be known in several years. 

F.11 Insurance provisions  

  Direct insurance Accepted reinsurance Total 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Non-life insurance provisions 22,050 20,931 527 512 22,577 21,442 

Provisions for unearned premiums 4,529 4,482 176 189 4,705 4,670 

Provisions for outstanding claims and for 
claims incurred but not reported 17,323 16,232 325 300 17,648 16,531 

Other insurance provisions 198 217 26 23 224 241 

Life insurance provisions 68,547 68,006 - - 68,547 68,007 

Provisions for unearned premiums 470 442 - - 470 442 

Provisions for outstanding claims 2,043 2,107 - - 2,043 2,107 

Mathematical provisions 58,015 60,578 - - 58,015 60,578 

Provisions for unit-linked policies 7,047 3,391 - - 7,047 3,391 

Other insurance provisions 972 1,488 - - 972 1,489 

of which provisions for liability adequacy 
test 726 1,249 - - 726 1,249 

Total 90,597 88,937 527 512 91,124 89,449 

Current 16,982 13,898 330 332 17,315 14,232 

Non-current 73,615 75,039 197 180 73,809 75,217 
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F.11.1 Life insurance provisions  

2010 
(CZK million) Gross 

wŜƛƴǎǳǊŜǊǎΩ 
share Net 

Balance as at 1 January 68,007 (854) 67,153 

Premium allocation  17,227 - 17,227 

Release of liabilities due to benefits paid, surrenders and other 
terminations (15,933) - (15,933) 

Fees deducted from account balances (2,436) - (2,436) 

Unwinding of discount / accretion of interest 1,927 - 1,927 

Changes in unit-prices 318 - 318 

Change in liability arising from liability adequacy test (528) - (528) 

Change in IBNR and RBNS (64) 26 (38) 

Change in UPR  28 (1) 27 

Currency translation differences 1 - 1 

Balance as at 31 December 68,547 (829) 67,718 

 

2009 
(CZK million) Gross 

wŜƛƴǎǳǊŜǊǎΩ 
share Net 

Balance as at 1 January 69,804 (845) 68,959 

Premium allocation  11,911 - 11,911 

Release of liabilities due to benefits paid, surrenders and other 
terminations (12,456) - (12,456) 

Fees deducted from account balances (2,504) - (2,504) 

Unwinding of discount / accretion of interest 2,064 - 2,064 

Changes in unit-prices 483 - 483 

Change in liability arising from liability adequacy test (763) - (763) 

Change in IBNR and RBNS (5) (2) (7) 

Change in UPR  (22) (7) (29) 

Changes in Group structure (473) - (473) 

Currency translation differences (32) - (32) 

Balance as at 31 December 68,007 (854) 67,153 

Provisions for unit-linked policies 

  Gross amount, direct insurance 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Carrying amount as at 31 December previous year 3,391 1,800 

Premiums, payments and interests 3,650 1,584 

Acquisitions and disinvestments 6 7 

Carrying amount as at 31 December current year 7,047 3,391 

F.11.2 Non-Life insurance provisions  

F.11.2.1 Provision for unearned premiums  

The tables below show the roll-forward of the non-life provision for unearned premiums: 

2010       

(CZK million) Gross Reinsurance Net 

Balance as at 1 January 4,670 (1,986) 2,684 

Change of the period  35 (33) 2 

Balance as at 31 December 4,705 (2,019) 2,686 

    2009       

(CZK million) Gross Reinsurance Net 

Balance as at 1 January 8,379 (1,791) 6,588 

Change of the period  (1,936) (195) (2,131) 

Change of the period related to discontinued operations (F.6.1) (347) (3) (350) 

Changes in Group structure (1,426) 3 (1,422) 

Balance as at 31 December 4,670 (1,986) 2,685 
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F.11.2.2 Provisions for outstanding claims  (RBNS) 

  Gross amount, direct insurance 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Motor 11,644 11,326 

Non-Motor 5,679 4,906 

Personal and commercial lines 5,201 4,469 

Personal 836 700 

Commercial/industrial 4,365 3,769 

Accident/Health 478 437 

Total 17,323 16,232 

The following tables show the roll-forward of provisions for outstanding claims: 

2010       

(CZK million) Gross Reinsurance Net 

Balance as at 1 January 11,373 (4,313) 7,060 

Change of current year 4,091 (2,361) 1,730 

Change of previous year (2,875) 1,335 (1,540) 

Balance as at 31 December 12,589 (5,339) 7,250 

 

2009 
 

    

(CZK million) Gross Reinsurance Net 

Balance as at 1 January 11,100 (3,899) 7,201 

Change of current year 3,050 (1,258) 1,792 

Change of previous year (2,749) 843 (1,906) 

Changes in Group structure (28) 1 (27) 

Balance as at 31 December 11,373 (4,313) 7,060 

F.11.2.3 Provisions for c laims incurred but not reported  (IBNR) 

The following tables show the roll-forward of claims incurred but not reported: 

2010       

(CZK million) Gross Reinsurance Net 

Balance as at 1 January 5,158 (2,096) 3,062 

Change of current year 2,026 (838) 1,188 

Change of previous year (2,125) 871 (1,254) 

Balance as at 31 December 5,059 (2,063) 2,996 

    2009       

(CZK million) Gross Reinsurance Net 

Balance as at 1 January 5,328 (2,025) 3,303 

Change of current year 1,969 (790) 1,179 

Change of previous year (2,116) 719 (1,397) 

Changes in Group structure (23) - (23) 

Balance as at 31 December 5,158 (2,096) 3,062 

F.11.2.4 Development of policyholders claims (RBNS and IBNR)  

The following table shows the cumulative claim payments and the ultimate cost of claims by 
underwriting year and the development thereof from 2001 to 2010. The ultimate cost includes 
paid losses, outstanding reserves on reported losses, estimated reserves for IBNR claims 
and claim handling costs. The amounts refer to direct business gross of reinsurance. 
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(CZK million) 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total 

Cumulative claim payments                       

at the end of underwriting year 4,993 6,453 6,680 7,700 8,088 8,180 7,150 7,103 7,502 6,792   

one year later 7,501 9,673 9,956 10,573 11,077 10,712 9,622 9,453 9,761     

two years later 7,917 10,186 10,359 11,004 11,427 11,129 10,105 9,886       

threes years later 8,105 10,361 10,525 11,178 11,579 11,261 10,344         

four years later 8,198 10,446 10,608 11,261 11,632 11,365           

five years later 8,270 10,492 10,659 11,338 11,679             

six years later 8,300 10,542 10,703 11,379               

seven years later 8,333 10,575 10,724                 

eight years later 8,357 10,596                   

nine years later 8,380                     

Estimate of ultimate cumulative claims costs:                       

at the end of underwriting year 7,199 11,348 12,154 13,372 13,992 13,888 12,582 11,980 12,175 11,879 120,568 

one year later 9,926 11,513 12,094 13,038 13,464 13,300 12,417 11,827 11,992     

two years later 9,361 11,442 11,928 12,855 13,096 13,219 12,215 11,539       

threes years later 9,362 11,504 11,657 12,618 12,811 12,931 11,986         

four years later 9,207 11,354 11,605 12,343 12,572 12,587           

five years later 9,061 11,325 11,490 12,202 12,407             

six years later 8,991 11,183 11,441 12,047               

seven years later 8,895 11,124 11,349                 

eight years later 8,830 11,051                   

nine years later 8,810                     

Estimate of ultimate cumulative claims costs at the end of the 
reporting period 8,810 11,051 11,349 12,047 12,407 12,587 11,986 11,539 11,992 11,879 115,647 

Cumulative payments to date (8,380) (10,596) (10,724) (11,379) (11,679) (11,365) (10,344) (9,886) (9,761) (6,792) (100,906) 

Provision recognised in the Statement of financial position 430 455 625 668 728 1,222 1,642 1,653 2,231 5,087 14,741 

Provision not included in the claims development table                     2,907 

catastrophic events                     1,190 

accepted reinsurance                     325 

Provisions for outstanding claims not included in underwriting years                     1,392 

Total provision as at 31 December 2010                     17,648 

Provisions for outstanding claims which were not included in underwriting years include provisions for claims which occurred before 2001 of  
CZK 988 million and provisions related to individually minor non-life insurance products. 
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F.11.2.5 Other insurance provisions  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Gross     

Balance as at 1 January  241 614 

Creation of provisions 408 2,223 

Utilisation of provisions (425) (2,596) 

Balance of gross provisions as at 31 December  224 241 

.ŀƭŀƴŎŜ ƻŦ ǊŜƛƴǎǳǊŜǊǎΨ ǎƘŀǊŜ ŀǎ ŀǘ ом 5ŜŎŜƳōŜǊ  (27) (15) 

Balance of net provisions as at 31 December  197 226 

Creation and utilisation of provisions relates mainly to provision for non-discretionary 
bonuses. 

F.12 Financial liabilities  

  31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

(CZK million) Book value Fair value Book value Fair value 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 676 676 1,461 1,461 

Other financial liabilities 55,987 55,988 49,758 49,760 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost related to 
investment contracts 52,982 52,982 48,201 48,201 

Bonds issued 500 501 499 501 

Net asset value attributable to unit holders in 
consolidated investment funds 1,080 1,080 672 672 

Other 1,425 1,425 386 386 

Total 56,663 56,664 51,219 51,222 

Current portion 9,258 9,258 8,368 8,368 

Non-current portion 47,405 47,406 42,851 42,853 

On 13 December 2007, the Group issued 250 fixed-coupon bonds with a total nominal value 
of CZK 500 million. The issue price was CZK 2 million each. The bonds bear an interest rate 
of 5.10% p.a. Transaction costs related to the bonds issue amounted to CZK 2 million. 

The amortisation of any discount, premium or direct transaction cost and interest related to 
financial liabilities, evidenced by paper, is calculated using an effective interest rate method, 
and is recognised in interest expense and similar charges. 

Other liabilities consist of repurchase agreements of CZK 79 million (2009: CZK 378 million) 
and a bank loan to CITY EMPIRIA a.s. of CZK 1,344 million (2009: nil). As collateral to the 
loan, the Group pledged the CITY EMPIRIA a.s. investment property and also other 
receivables, fixed assets, shares, receivables from bank accounts, service charge account 
and claims arising from lease agreements, existing and future claims arising from the 
insurance agreement of the CITY EMPIRIA a.s. as well as provided a guarantee to pay up to  
EUR 2 million (CZK 50 million). 

Fair value measurement as at the end of the reporting period: 

31.12.2010         

(CZK million) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1 675 - 676 

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurement 
categories in 2010. 

31.12.2009         

(CZK million) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 67 1,394 - 1,461 

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurement 
categories in 2009. 
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F.13 Payables  

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Payable arising out of direct insurance operations 1,985 2,130 

Payable arising out of reinsurance operations 3,884 4,934 

Current income tax payables 27 1,587 

Other payables 1,346 1,389 

Payables to employees 150 211 

Payables to clients and suppliers 404 286 

Social security 75 74 

Other payables 717 818 

Total 7,242 10,040 

Current portion 7,204 10,040 

Non-current portion 38 - 

F.14 Other liabilities  

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Deferred tax liabilities 125 77 

Other liabilities 1,885 1,991 

Accrued interest expense 17 1 

Other accrued expenses 1,831 1,956 

of which: Commissions 855 870 

of which: Accrual for personal expenses 151 98 

of which: Non-invoiced supplies 809 931 

Deferred expenses 11 9 

Other liabilities 26 24 

Total 2,010 2,068 

Current portion 1,846 2,068 

Non-current portion 164 - 

F.15 Net earned premiums  

  Gross amount Reinsurers' share Net amount 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Non-life earned premium 21,500 25,071 (9,586) (10,076) 11,914 14,995 

Premiums written 21,536 23,135 (9,618) (10,271) 11,918 12,864 

Change in the provision for 
unearned premium (36) 1,936 32 195 (4) 2,131 

Life premium 16,164 14,029 (1,250) (1,223) 14,914 12,806 

Total 37,664 39,100 (10,836) (11,299) 26,828 27,801 

F.16 Net income from financial instruments  at fair value through profit or 
loss  

  

Financial 
investments held-

for-trading 

Financial 
investments back to 
unit-linked policies 

and related to 
pension funds 

Financial 
investments 

designated as at fair 
value through profit 

or loss 

Total financial 
investments at fair 

value through profit 
or loss 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Interest and other income 144 792 2 2 1,103 1,290 1,249 2,084 

Interest and other expenses (208) (127) - - (1) - (209) (127) 

Realised gains 5,027 7,812 3 4 783 1,490 5,813 9,306 

Realised losses (5,186) (6,688) - (1) (434) (885) (5,620) (7,574) 

Unrealised gains 499 321 41 66 1,489 2,723 2,029 3,110 

Unrealised losses (363) (1,039) (1) - (225) (1,379) (589) (2,418) 

Total (87) 1,071 45 71 2,715 3,239 2,673 4,381 
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F.17 Net gains / (losses) related to disposal of subsidiaries and associates  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Realised losses - (648) 

Realised gains - 10 

Dividends from non-consolidated subsidiaries - 39 

Net gains (losses) from subsidiaries - (599) 

Realised losses in 2009 related mainly to disposal of associate Generali Slovensko 
poisŠovna, a.s. Profit from sale of Generali PPF Life Insurance was presented in line Profit 
from discontinued operations (F.8). 

F.18 Income from other financial instruments and investment prop erties  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Interest income 4,003 3,907 

Interest income from held-to-maturity investments - 6 

Interest income from loans and receivables 282 576 

Interest income from available-for-sale financial assets 3,709 3,313 

Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 12 12 

Other income 269 132 

Income from investment properties 103 4 

Other income from available-for-sale financial assets 166 128 

Realised gains 2,844 2,094 

Realised gains on loans and receivables 29 - 

Realised gains on available-for-sale financial assets 2,815 2,088 

Realised gains on other receivables - 6 

Total 7,116 6,133 

F.19 Other income  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Income from tangible assets 1 45 

Income from service and assistance activities and recovery of charges 180 282 

Other technical income 91 137 

Other income 219 69 

Total 491 533 

The main part of other income arises from administration services relating to the Employerôs 
liability provided by the Company for the state. For this type of insurance, the Group bears no 
insurance risk; it only administrates the fee collection and claims settlement. The income is 
recognised in the accounting period when services are provided and in the amount stated by 
law. 

F.20 Net insurance benefits and claims  

  Gross amount Reinsurers' share Net amount 
(CZK million) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Non-life net insurance benefits and claims 14,274 14,752 (6,100) (5,114) 8,174 9,638 

Claims paid 13,174 15,002 (5,095) (4,620) 8,079 10,382 

Change in technical provisions 1,100 (250) (1,005) (494) 95 (744) 

Change in the provisions for outstanding claims 1,117 124 (993) (486) 124 (362) 

Change in other insurance provisions (17) (374) (12) (8) (29) (382) 

Life net insurance benefits and claims 12,041 9,521 (357) (349) 11,684 9,172 

Claims paid 11,548 11,011 (380) (341) 11,168 10,670 

Change in technical provisions 493 (1,490) 23 (8) 516 (1,498) 

Change in the provisions for outstanding claims (64) 22 31 (3) (34) 19 

Change in the mathematical provisions (2,574) (2,358) (8) (5) (2,582) (2,363) 

Change in the provisions for unit-linked policies 
and provisions for pension funds 3,649 1,584 - - 3,649 1,584 

Change in other insurance provisions (518) (738) - - (517) (738) 

Total 26,315 24,273 (6,457) (5,463) 19,858 18,810 
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Life insurance 

The change in the mathematical provision is influenced primarily by increased claims 
payments in comparison to 2009. The change in the provision for unit-linked policies is 
primarily influenced by an increase in new premium for unit-linked policies. 

The change in other insurance provision relates to the change in Additional reserve resulting 
from Liability adequacy testing (see note C.2.3) and is determined by the development of the 
portfolio and relevant assumptions. 

Non-life insurance 

The significant decrease in other insurance provisions is mainly caused by increase in the 
provision of profit sharing and premium refunds in 2009 which was caused by the termination 
of insurance of the financial risk line of business, resulting from the termination of 
cooperation with Home Credit, a.s. and the resulting settlement of mutual obligations. 

The significant increase in the Gross amount of the provision for outstanding claims is 
caused mainly by large calamity claims (floods, hails) and large risks claims in 2010. The 
same reason also influenced the change in the Reinsurerôs share of this provision.  

F.21 Fee and commission expenses and expenses from financial services 
activities  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Fee and commission expenses from asset management activities 161 57 

Fee and commission expenses related to investment management services 279 456 

Total 440 513 

F.22 Expenses from other financial instruments and investment properties  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Interest expense 1,046 578 

Interest expense on loans, bonds and other payables 1,046 571 

Other interest expense - 7 

Other expenses 51 9 

Expenses from investment properties 51 9 

Realised losses 409 362 

Realised losses on available-for-sale financial assets 409 362 

Impairment losses 141 598 

Impairment of loans and receivables 69 450 

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 63 153 

Reversal of impairment of available-for-sale financial assets - (1) 

Impairment of other receivables 9 (4) 

Total 1,647 1,547 

Expenses arising from investment property that generated rental income amounted to  
CZK 38 million (2009: CZK 7 million) consists mainly of energy, repairs and other services. 
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F.23 Acquisition and administration costs  

  Non-life segment Life segment Financial segment Total 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Acquisition costs and other commissions 1,729 1,787 1,793 1,700 - - 3,522 3,487 

Change of DAC 14 (7) (24) (2) - - (10) (9) 

Investment management expenses 64 67 230 198 5 4 299 269 

Other administration costs 1,511 1,604 1,327 1,399 100 86 2,938 3,089 

Total 3,318 3,451 3,326 3,295 105 90 6,749 6,836 

Other administration costs consist mainly of wages and salaries, building and offices rentals, 
and IT expenses.   

The following table shows the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
operating leases for each of the following periods. 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Not later than one year 365 388 

Later than one year and not later than five years 822 1.190 

Later than five years 641 926 

Total 1,828 2,504 

F.24 Other expenses  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 459 486 

Depreciation of tangible assets 191 196 

Expenses from tangible assets 8 45 

Losses on foreign currencies 438 294 

Restructuring charges and allocation to other provisions 115 46 

Expenses from service and assistance activities and charges incurred on behalf of third parties 80 122 

Other expenses 14 148 

Total 1,305 1,337 

F.25 Income taxes  

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Current taxes 1,219 1,469 

Czech Republic 1,199 1,461 

Other countries 20 8 

Deferred taxes (65) (85) 

Czech Republic (64) (94) 

Other countries (1) 9 

Total 1,154 1,384 

The table below shows the reconciliation between an expected and effective tax rate, which 
is based on tax rates applicable in the Czech Republic which was decreased to 19% in 2010 
from 20% in 2009. 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Expected income tax rate 19.0% 20.0% 

Earnings before taxes 7,229 9,273 

Expected income tax expense (benefit) 1,373 1,855 

Net tax exempt income (251) (381) 

Realised gains on investments in subsidiaries tax exempt - 127 

Non-tax deductible expenses 183 406 

Effect of different tax rates in other countries (193) (371) 

Other adjustments 42 (252) 

Tax expenses 1,154 1,384 

Effective tax rate 16.0% 14.9% 
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The tax authorities of the territories in which group entities operate may at any time inspect 
the books and records of group entities within a maximum period of 3 to 10 years depending 
on the tax jurisdiction subsequent to the reported tax year, and may impose additional tax 
assessments and penalties. The Group's management is not aware of any circumstances 
which may give rise to a potential material liability in this respect. 

F.25.1 Deferred tax  

  Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Intangible assets - - (80) (50) 

Tangible assets  and Land and buildings 8 7 - (20) 

Loans 95 60 - - 

Financial assets held-to-maturity - - (1) (1) 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - - (4) (5) 

Deferred acquisition costs 4 2 - - 

Insurance provisions 8 7 - - 

Other 63 36 (40) (1) 

Total deferred tax asset/(liability) 178 112 (125) (77) 

Net deferred tax asset 53 35 - - 

Current portion 47 25 - (10) 

Non-current portion 131 87 (125) (67) 

The increase in the deferred tax asset from loans and receivables was caused by creation of 
additional allowance to receivables from Kreditn² banka of CZK 188 million leading to 
recognition of an additional deferred tax asset of CZK 36 million. The Group estimates that 
the deferred tax asset will be recovered within three years. 

In accordance with the accounting method, the amount of deferred tax provided is based on 
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted as at the end of the reporting 
period which, for the year 2011 and the following years, is 19% (2010 ï 19%). 

  
Net deferred tax 

asset/liability 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Balance as at 1 January  35 (25) 

Deferred income tax for the period 65 85 

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity (48) (51) 

Total deffered tax income for the period 17 34 

Business combination - 28 

Currency translation differences 1 (2) 

Balance as at 31 December  53 35 

The Group did not recognise a deferred tax asset of CZK 169 million (2009: CZK 139 million) 
from deductible temporary differences (unused tax losses) since their realisation is not 
considered probable.  

Tax losses and tax credits, for which no deferred tax was recognised, are presented in the 
following table:  

Not recognised temporary differences 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Expire in 1 year - 2 

Expire between 1 and 3 years 1,545 148 

Expire between 3 and 5 years 1,836 2,604 

Total 3,381 2,754 
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F.26 Information  on employees  

  31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Managers 418 425 

Employees 3,222 3,192 

Sales attendants 719 793 

Others 7 11 

Total 4,366 4,421 

 

(CZK million) 2010 2009 

Wages and salaries 2,014 2,007 

Compulsory social security contributions 653 628 

Others 36 39 

Total 2,703 2,674 

Staff costs are reported in the sections Acquisition costs, Insurance Benefits and Claims and 
Administrative expenses.  

Other expenses include the costs of the Groupôs health and social programmes (e.g. health 
programme for managers, medical check-up for employees and social benefits). 

Compulsory social security contributions comprise mainly contributions to state-defined 
contribution pension plans in 2010 and amount to CZK 413 million (2009: CZK 397 million).  

F.27 Hedge accounting  

F.27.1 Fair value hedge  

Starting 1 October 2008, hedge accounting is applied by the Group to foreign currency risks 
(FX risk). The Group applies fair value hedge. 

The functional currency of the Group and the currency of its liabilities is CZK. However, in the 
investment portfolios, there are also instruments denominated in foreign currencies. 
According to the general policy, all these instruments are dynamically hedged into CZK via 
FX derivatives.  

Foreign currency hedging is in place for all foreign currency investments, i.e. bonds, 
investment fund units, equities, etc. in order to fully hedge the implied FX risk. The process is 
in place which guarantees the high efficiency of the hedging. 

The FX difference on all financial assets and derivatives, except for equities classified in the 
available-for-sale portfolio, are reported in profit or loss according to IFRS rules. FX 
revaluation on AFS equities is within the hedge accounting reported in profit or loss either as 
other income ï gains on foreign currency or other expenses ï losses on foreign currency. 

Hedged items 

Hedge accounting is applied to financial assets ï defined as all non-derivative financial 
assets denominated or exposed in foreign currencies (i.e. all bonds, equities, investment 
fund units, term deposits and current bank accounts denominated in EUR, USD and other 
currencies) except for: 

a) financial assets backing unit-linked products; 
b) cross-currency swaps and bonds are economically hedged by them; 
c) other particular exclusions predefined by the investment management strategy. 

Hedged items include financial assets classified in the available-for-sale category, fair value 
through profit or loss, other investments and cash and cash equivalents. The hedged items 
do not include financial liabilities. 

Hedging instruments 

Hedging instruments are defined as all FX derivatives, except for cross-currency swaps as 
described above, and options. The derivatives are designated as hedging instruments in its 
entirety. 
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Assets according to this definition can be clearly identified at any time. As at 31 December, 
hedged items and hedging instruments were as follows: 

(CZK million) Fair value as at 31.12.2010 
FX gain/(loss) for the period 

from 1.1. to 31.12.2010 

Equities, bonds, investment fund units 28,383 (452) 

Term deposits and current bank accounts 919 129 

Derivatives 276 384 

Hedging effectiveness - 119% 

   

(CZK million) Fair value as at 31.12.2009 
FX gain/(loss) for the period from 

1.1. to 31.12.2009 

Equities, bonds, investment fund units 18,517 (293) 

Term deposits and current bank accounts 1,491 (177) 

Derivatives (518) 571 

Hedging effectiveness - 121% 

F.27.2 Cash flow hedge  

Starting 1 June 2010, a cash-flow hedge has been applied by the Group to foreign currency 
risks (FX risk). The hedge accounting is applied selectively for individual subsidiaries; as at 
31 December 2010 the cash-flow hedge has only been applied by City Empiria.  

As a result of its real estate rent operations, most of the City Empiriaôs transactions are 
denominated in foreign currencies. In terms of the Groupôs overall currency risk management 
strategy, this company minimises its exposure to changes in the cash flows from the rental 
contracts by entering into loans denominated in foreign currencies. 

Hedged items 

The hedged items are payments (cash inflows) in EUR from lease contracts concluded in 
EUR. During the validity period of current existing rental contracts the cash inflows are 
constituted by payments related to these contracts. As the Company intends to continue 
entering into lease contracts denominated in EUR, the expected future lease contracts that 
will be entered into after the existing contracts have expired are also presented as a hedged 
item. The future lease payments are modelled over the depreciation period of the building. 

Hedging instrument 

The Company hedges the receivables by foreign currency loans received and used for 
construction and operation of the real estate owned by the company. The loan is being 
prolonged. In the case that the loan is not prolonged, the company expects to get a new loan 
in the same currency that will be used to repay the current loan. This assumption is based on 
the fact that rental contracts denominated in EUR will be a sufficient guarantee for receiving 
a new loan in EUR. 

Prospective effectiveness test 

(CZK million) 1.6.2010 31.12.2010 

Loan balance ς achal 1,117 1,088 

Loan balance - theoretical (81% or the actual loan balance) 1,117 1,078 

The amount of the loan used as hedging instrument 1,117 1,078 

PV of lease payments 1,123 1,083 

PV od hedged lease payments 1,117 1,078 

      

Change in value of the hedging item   (19) 

Change in value of the hedged item   19 

      

Ratio of rent payments to hedging item (considered effective if between 80% and 
125%) 100% 100% 

Is the hedging prospectively effective? Yes Yes 

  



Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

99 

The retrospective effectiveness is measured as the ratio of payments that are expected by 
the model to be obtained and rent income that is actually obtained. The company has to 
obtain at least the expected amount of rent payments in order for the hedging to be effective. 

(CZK million) 31.12.2010 

Cumulative values   

Value of modelled CF from rent 57 

Received rent volume 77 

    

Is the hedging retrospectively effective? Yes 

F.28 Earnings per  share  

The next table shows the earnings per share: 

 
2010 2009 

Profit from continuing operations (CZK million) 6,064 7,885 

Profit from discontinuing operations (CZK million) 3,829 942 

Result of the period (CZK milion) 9,893 8,827 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (pcs) 40,000 40,000 

Earnings per share      

From continuing operations (CZK thousands) 152 197 

From discontinued operations (CZK thousands) 96 24 

Total (CZK thousands) 248 221 

The earnings per share figure is calculated by dividing the result of the period by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. There were no share transactions, 
changes in the number of shares or any instruments issued which could cause the dilution of 
shares in 2010 and 2009. 

F.29 Off-balance sheet items  

F.29.1 Commitments  

As at 31 December 2010 the Group had no significant contractual commitments other than 
contractual leasing payments showed in Note F.23. 

F.29.2 Other contingencies  

F.29.2.1 Legal  

As at the release date of the financial statements, there were 4 cases pending concerning 
the decision of the general meeting of the Group in 2005 approving a squeeze-out of minority 
shareholders. Based on legal analyses carried out by external legal counsel, management of 
the Group believes that none of these cases gives rise to any contingent future liabilities for 
the Group. 

F.29.2.2 Participation in nuclear pool  

As a member of the Czech Nuclear Pool, the Parent Company is jointly and severally liable 
for the obligations of the pool. This means that, in the event that one or more of the other 
members are unable to meet their obligations to the pool, the Parent Company would take 
over the uncovered part of this liability, pro-rata to its own net retention used for the contracts 
in question. The management does not consider the risk of another member being unable to 
meet its obligations to the pool to be material to the financial position of the Group.  

The potential liability of the Group for any given insured risk is contractually capped at twice 
the Companyôs net retention for that risk.  
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The subscribed net retention is as follows: 

(CZK thousands) 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 

Liability  138 133 

CƛǊŜΣ ƭƛƎƘǘƴƛƴƎΣ ŜȄǇƭƻǎƛƻƴΣ ŀƛǊŎǊŀŦǘ όαC[9·!άύ ŀƴŘ ōǊŜŀƪ Řƻǿƴ ƻŦ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ 480 480 

Transportation risk 96 96 

Technical insurance and breakdown of operations 240 240 

Total 954 949 

F.29.2.3 Membership in the Czech Insurance Bureau  

As a member of the Czech Insurance Bureau (ñthe Bureauò) related to MTPL insurance, the 
Group is committed to guarantee the MTPL liabilities of the Bureau. For this purpose, the 
Group makes contributions to the guarantee fund of the Bureau based on the calculations of 
the Bureau. The Group created a provision adequate to cover the cost of claims likely to be 
incurred, see note F.10. 

In the event of a fellow member of the Bureau being unable to meet its liabilities arising from 
MTPL due to insolvency, the Group may be required to make additional contributions to the 
guarantee fund. The management does not believe the risk of this occurring to be material to 
the financial position of the Group.  

F.30 Related parties  

This chapter contains information about all important transactions with related parties 
excluding those which are described in other parts of the notes. 

F.30.1 Identity of related parties  

As at 31 December 2010, CZI Holdings N.V. is the sole shareholder of the Company.  
The ultimate parent company is Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A. 

The Group is related to its parent companies which is CZI Holdings N.V., Assicurazioni 
Generali S.p.A. and to companies controlled by them.  

The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. 

The key management personnel of the Group and its parent, their close family members and 
other parties which are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such 
individuals and entities in which such individuals hold significant voting power are also 
considered related parties. 

Key management personnel of the Group comprise the members of the Board of Directors 
and the Supervisory Board. 

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance 
of the relationship and not merely the legal form. 

F.30.2 Transactions with key management personnel of the Group  

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Board of Directors Supervisory Board 

(CZK million) 

Related to the 
board 

membership 

Related to 
employment 

contract 

Related to the 
board 

membership 

Related to 
employment 

contract 

Short-term monetary benefits provided by the Group 4 71 1 9 

State-defined contribution pension plan - 2 - - 
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 Board of Directors Supervisory Board 

(CZK million) 

Related to the 
board 

membership 

Related to 
employment 

contract 

Related to the 
board 

membership 

Related to 
employment 

contract 

Short-term monetary benefits provided by the Group 2 53 2 5 

State-defined contribution pension plan - 1 - - 

Short-term employee benefits include wages, salaries and social security contributions, 
allowances provided for membership in the statutory bodies, bonuses and non-monetary 
benefits such as medical care and cars.  

There were no other post-employment benefits, other long-term benefits or termination 
benefits paid to the key management personnel of the Group in 2010 and 2009. 

As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the members of the statutory bodies held 
no shares of the Group.  

F.30.3 Related party transactio ns 

The Group entered into no transactions and had no outstanding balances with the ultimate 
parent company Generali in 2010 or in 2009. 

The dividend declared and paid to the sole shareholder is disclosed in the note F.9.1. 

The other related parties fall into the following groups: 

¶ Group 1 - CZI Holdings, N.V. - the Company's shareholder 

¶ Group 2 - Entities in the Generali Group 

¶ Group 3 ï other related parties (primarily entities from PPF Group N.V., indirect 49% 
shareholder of the Company) 

31.12.2010         

(CZK million) notes Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 

Receivables from insurance and reinsurance business i - 1,327 - 

Technical provisions ceded to reinsurers ii - 8,661 - 

Other financial assets iii - - 10,138 

Other assets iv 5,561 38 57 

Total assets   5,561 10,026 10,195 

Payables from insurance and reinsurance business v - 3,527 2 

Technical provisions   - 128 - 

Other financial liabilities   - - 79 

Other liabilities   - 56 77 

Total liabilities   - 3,711 158 

Notes: 

i. The balances with companies in Group 2 comprise especially receivables from reinsurance from GP Reinsurance 
EAD, Bulgaria (GP RE) in the amount of CZK 1,241 million.  

ii. The balances with companies in Group 2 comprise technical provisions ceded to GP RE of CZK 8,494 million. 

iii. The balances with companies in Group 3 include mainly bonds issued by Home Credit Group companies in the 
amount of CZK 4,707 million, bonds issued by Nomos Bank in the amount of CZK 606 million and bank deposits and 
reverse repurchase agreements (reverse REPO) with PPF Banka a.s. in the amount of CZK 4,728 million 

iv. The balances with companies in Group 1 comprise receivables from CZI Holding of the sale of interest in Generali 
PPF Life Insurance LLC of CZK 5,561 million. 

v. The balances with companies in the Group 2 comprise liabilities from reinsurance to GP RE in the amount of  
CZK 3,475 million. 

  



Ļesk§ pojiġŠovna a.s. | Annual Report 2010 
 

102 

31.12.2009         
(CZK million) Notes Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 

Receivables from insurance and reinsurance business i - 2,722 503 

Technical provisions ceded to reinsurers ii - 7,860 - 

Other financial assets iii - - 13,509 

Other assets iv 840 63 68 

Total assets   840 10,645 14,080 

Payables from insurance and reinsurance business v - 4,577 50 

Technical provisions   - 160 - 

Other financial liabilities   - - 381 

Other liabilities   - 25 111 

Total liabilities   - 4,762 542 

Notes: 

i. The balances with companies in Group 2 comprise especially receivables from reinsurance from Generali Slovensko 
tƻƛǎǙƻǾƶŀΣ ŀΦǎΦ όDŜ {Yύ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ amount of CZK 970 million and receivables from reinsurance from GP Reinsurance 
EAD, Bulgaria (GP RE) in the amount of CZK 1,599 million. The balances with companies in Group 3 comprise 
receivables from Home Credit Group companies in amount of CZK 503 million.  

ii. The balances with companies in Group 2 comprise technical provisions ceded to GP RE CZK 7,819 million. 

iii. The balances with companies in Group 3 include bonds issued by Home Credit Group companies in the amount of 
CZK 4,690 million and bank deposits and reverse REPO  with PPF Banka a.s. in the amount of CZK 8,484 million 

iv. The balances with companies in Group 1 comprise receivables from CZI Holding of the sale of interest in CP Strategic 
Investments B.V. CZK 840 million. 

v. The balances with companies in the Group 2 comprise liabilities from reinsurance to GP RE in the amount of CZK 
3,612 million and to Ge SK CZK 896 million. 

2010         
(CZK million) Notes Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 

Income from insurance and reinsurance business i - 8,068 - 
Income from financial activities  ii - 22 737 
Other income   - 5 10 

Total income   - 8,095 747 
Expenses from insurance and reinsurance business iii - (10,058) (26) 
Expenses from financial activities   - (220) (158) 
Other expenses   - (196) (390) 

Total expenses   - (10,474) (574) 

Notes: 

i. The balances in Group 2 include transactions from reinsurance with GP RE in the amount of CZK 7,666 million 
(commissions and claims paid by GP RE). 

ii. Group 3 includes the income related to interest of the bonds issued by Home Credit Group companies and Nomos 
Bank in the amount of CZK 550 million. 

iii. The balances in Group 2 include ceded earned premium to GP RE in the amount of CZK 9,914 million.  

2009         
(CZK million) Notes Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 

Income from insurance and reinsurance business i - 5,485 2,311 

Income from financial activities   - 510 463 

Other income   - 1 3 

Total income   - 5,996 2,777 

Expenses from insurance and reinsurance business ii - (8,198) (2,260) 

Expenses from financial activities   (12) (718) (209) 

Other expenses   - (188) (390) 

Total expenses   (12) (9,104) (2,859) 

Notes: 

i. The balances in Group 2 include ceded earned premium with GP RE in the amount of CZK 5,284 million. Group 3 
includes mainly earned premium from Home Credit a.s. in the amount of CZK 2,247 million. 

ii. The balances in Group 2 include mainly transactions from reinsurance with GP RE in the amount of CZK 8,017 
million (reinsurance commission and claims paid). The balances in Group 3 include expenses of the bonus of Home 
Credit a.s. (share in profit) in the amount of CZK 2,156 million.  

F.31 Audit fees  

The audit fees for 2010 were CZK 22 million (2009: CZK 23 million). No other services were 
provided.  
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G. Subsequent events 

The Group has identified no significant events that have occurred since the end of the 
reporting period up to 26 April 2011. 

 

 


